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In less than a year, Independence Air has moved forward from pre-launch announcement, to operating as a true coast-to-coast
national low-fare carrier. As of May 1%, the FLYi network included 46 destinations—including six Western cities and five in Florida.

The Independence Air operation at Washington Dulles International Airport has quickly become one of the largest low-fare hubs in the
world, with hundreds of daily departures to cities as close as Norfolk and as far away as Los Angeles and San Francisco.

As more Airbus A319 aircraft arrive in 2006 and beyond, Independence Air will continue to reach out to new destinations, bringing low
fares and our unigue Tender Loving Service™ to people all across America.
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Login and book to receive double
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Change/Cancel Online - The
fastest and easlest way to
change your flight or seats.

through June 30th

Get emall updates on FLYI specials:

As has become our custom over the past several years, the hard copy version of our Annual Report is produced with economy and
efficiency in mind. Rather than spend lavishly on expensive printed materials, we invite you to visit our website at www.FLYi.com.
There, you will find financial reports, press releases, SEC filings and other news and information about Independence Air and
FLYi, Inc.

And while you're there, take an extra moment to plan your next business or leisure trip. If you have not yet had the occasion to fly with
us, a very different kind of travel experience awaits you. Our enthusiastic employees look forward to the opportunity to show you what
Independence Air is all about.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Many who have analyzed the launch of our new Independence Air brand have remarked, “..you
sure picked the worst possible time in history to begin a new airline.” As those of you who have followed
us over the years already know, the timing was not exactly ours to choose—it was chosen for us. But
there is no question that this is an extraordinarily challenging time for Independence Air and every
other airline, for that matter. The one-two punch of record-high fuel prices and chronic weakness in
yields is having a severely depressing effect on value.

Given all this, we remain focused on the things we can control—our product, our costs and our
spirit. As we work through our first year of operation as an independent low-fare airline, there are
many significant accomplishments and positive trends worth noting that give us the best possible chance
to succeed in the coming months. These include:

* Extremely positive customer reaction to our Independence Air service
The glowing comments we get from customers every day are a source of pride and inspiration to
all our employees. The typical comment goes something like, “I was first attracted to your airline
by the low fares. But the reason I enjoyed the experience—and the reason I am now a repeat
customer—is your people.”

The high level of positive response we’re getting is beyond anything we could have imagined.
Customers say they love the enthusiasm of our FLYi team, the convenience of flying with us,
and come away with the clear impression that Independence Air sincerely cares about them. We
recognize that service in the airline business has deteriorated to the point where customers now
expect to be treated poorly, or at least indifferently. At Independence Air, while we don’t do
everything perfectly, one thing we really concentrate on is treating people with a genuine sense
of “putting the customer first.” To many of our first four million passengers, it’s the reason they
have been so generous in their praise.

* Significant improvement in operating performance
The Department of Transportation does a very thorough job of evaluating and ranking the top
U.S. airlines on their operations in four categories—what percentage of flights arrive on time,
how many flights are canceled, how well baggage is handled, and how often consumers complain
about poor service. And frankly, before we were Independence Air we operated as a partner
airline and were not in complete control of our performance in these critical categories. As a
result, we did not always rank high on the DOT list.

But we created Independence Air with efficient, streamlined procedures designed to produce
consistently good results. And as it turns out, what looked good on paper is now working well in
reality. We are very proud to report that FLYi is now among the national leaders in operating
performance. That makes a big difference in customer satisfaction, and it’s really helping the
Independence Air name stand for something in addition to just low fares.

* Customer excitement about our new Airbus aircraft, and new Florida and West Coast Airbus
destinations
The Independence Air plan was predicated on the idea that shorter regional jet routes up and
down the East Coast, connecting in and out of a substantial mid-Atlantic hub that offered
longer-haul service to Florida and the West Coast would be a winning formula for a new
low-fare airline.

But when we first launched Independence Air we had zero Airbus aircraft. By June we will be
operating the first 12 of the 28 A319s we’ve ordered. And we are now just starting to see the
formula begin to work. Our significant increase in load factor during the first quarter of 2005 is
the first early sign that we are on the correct path.

Customers have told us they love the Airbus planes, and the destinations we’ve chosen have
proven to be very popular—even as competitors fight to keep people from flying our new routes.



As we continue to add new Airbus planes, while reducing our regional jet fleet, the formula
appears to be working better and better all the time.

Furthermore, we are constantly improving our marketing and distribution methods, making it
even easier for new customers to access our flights. And once people do book us for the first
time, we work hard to create an experience that makes new customers want to fly Independence
Air again and again.

* A continued focus on cost control—an area we certainly know something about
Since our inception in December, 1989, we have always prided ourselves on being able to do
more with less. Our history as a former regional carrier speaks to our past success in the area of
cost control. It’s a trait we are fortunate to have retained.

We know how to trim the budget, how to tighten our belts and how to make the very difficult
decisions that are sometimes necessary when times get tough. After an incredible effort by our
restructuring team, we have improved our liquidity and bought ourselves financial breathing
room. We have downsized our CRJ operation, and are in the process of creating a streamlined
hub network that better balances our 50-seaters with our new Airbus capacity.

And we’re definitely not done. There are many additional cost-cutting moves that are well along
in development, and others we will undoubtedly still have to make over time. But we’ve made
hard choices in the past, and are well-prepared to do what we must to keep costs as low as
possible—while maintaining the excellent product our people have worked so hard to create.

In closing, to our customers, we thank you for being so appreciative of our efforts to “make things
right” by reversing the trend of poor service and ever-increasing hassles that the airline industry has
unfortunately become known for. And thanks for your continued praise of our people.

To our employees, we offer our deepest thanks for demonstrating your commitment and passion to
Independence Air, and for creating a product that people really love.

And finally, to our shareholders, we thank you for your patience and support as we all look ahead to a
time when the efforts of a spirited team—doing the daily work of producing a very good product—may
again achieve financial results we can all be proud of.

Gt e

Kerry Skeen Tom Moore
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer President and Chief Operating Officer
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Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report to Stockholders contains forward-looking statements. Statements in the
Business sections of this filing, together with other statements beginning with such words as “believes”,
“intends”, “plans”, and “expects” include forward-looking statements that are based on management’s
expectations given facts as currently known by management on March 31, 2005, except for the
information in Item 9A of Part II, which is as of May 2, 2005. Actual results may differ materially.
Factors that could cause the Company’s future results to differ materially from the expectations
described here include: the ability of Independence Air to effectively implement its low-fare business
strategy utilizing regional jets and Airbus aircraft, and to compete effectively as a low-fare carrier,
including passenger response to Independence Air’s new West Coast service, and the response of
competitors with respect to service levels and fares in markets served by Independence Air; the effects
of high fuel prices on Independence Air; the ability to successfully and timely complete the acquisition
of, maintain certification for, and secure financing of, its Airbus aircraft, and to successfully integrate
these aircraft into its fleet; the ability to successfully remarket or otherwise make satisfactory
arrangements for its nine J-41 aircraft not terminated as part of its restructuring and for three 328Jet
aircraft not assigned to Delta; the ability to successfully hire, train and retain employees; the ability to
reach and ratify agreement with AMFA on mutually satisfactory terms; the ability of government
agencies involved in airport operations to handle the increased number of flights and passengers at
Washington Dulles without interference with airline operations; the ongoing deterioration in the
industry’s revenue environment; and general economic and industry conditions, any of which may
impact Independence Air or the Company, its aircraft manufacturers and its other suppliers in ways
that the Company is not currently able to predict. The statements in this Annual Report are made as
of March 31, 2005, except for the information in Item 9A of Part 11, which is as of May 2, 2005, and
the Company undertakes no obligation to update any of the forward-looking information included in
this document, whether as a result of new information, future events, changes in expectations or
otherwise.



Explanatory Note

This Annual Report to Stockholders reflects the information filed by the Company with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 2005 in Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A except
that the information set forth under Part II, Item 9A, “Controls and Procedures” sets forth the
information from that item contained in a Form 10-K/A filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 2, 2005. This Annual Report omits the exhibits that were included with those
filings, as well certain information that is set forth in the Company’s proxy statement for its 2005
annual meeting.

PART 1
Item 1. Business
Overview

FLYi, Inc. formerly known as Atlantic Coast Airlines Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation
(“FLY1” or the “Company”), is a holding company with its primary subsidiary being Independence
Air, Inc. (“IA”). IA is an air carrier and provides regularly scheduled low-fare air service under the
brand “Independence Air” to East Coast destinations with a combination of 132-seat Airbus A319
(“A3197) aircraft and 50-seat Canadair regional jets (““CRJs”), and is introducing A319 service to six
new West Coast destinations between March and May 2005. Previously, IA was named and operated as
Atlantic Coast Airlines (“ACA”). ACA operated as a regional airline under code share agreements with
United Airlines, Inc. (“United”), providing service since 1992 as part of the United Express program,
and under code share agreements with Delta Air Lines, Inc. (“Delta”), providing service since 1999 as
part of the Delta Connection program. IA transitioned out of the United Express program between
June 1, 2004 and August 3, 2004 and completed its transition out of the Delta Connection Program on
November 1, 2004.

The Company is incorporated under the laws of Delaware and its principal executive offices are
located at 45200 Business Court, Dulles, Virginia 20166. Unless the context indicates otherwise, the
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terms “the Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our” refer herein to the holding company FLYi, Inc.

Independence Air

Operations under the Independence Air brand as a low-fare airline with a hub at Washington
Dulles International Airport (“Washington Dulles””) commenced on June 16, 2004. Independence Air’s
strategy is to capitalize on and stimulate demand for air travel to, from and through its Washington
Dulles hub, utilizing A319 narrowbody aircraft to primarily serve larger, long haul markets and CRIJs to
offer frequent service primarily to smaller, short haul markets from Washington Dulles. The
Independence Air business model is based on providing reliable and easy to use air transportation with
excellent customer service, and achieving simplicity in operations, high employee and asset productivity
and low overhead to offer low fares.

As of March 1, 2005, Independence Air operated over 400 flights on each business day, serving 41
destinations, including four destinations in Florida plus Las Vegas served by A319s. Independence Air
has announced its expansion of A319 service to five West Coast destinations starting between April and
May 2005. In December 2004, Independence Air reduced its flight schedule in connection with its sale
of four CRJs and announced the closure of two cities effective in January 2005. In February 2005,
Independence Air realigned operations at its Washington Dulles hub from continuous flow schedule
where flights arrive and depart continuously throughout the day to a six bank schedule where arrivals
and departures occur within a short period of time, at various intervals during the day, facilitating
connections to multiple destinations. These schedule changes were made in coordination with
Independence Air’s planned removal of 24 CRIJs, as described further below. As compared to a
continuous flow operation, the six bank schedule will reduce daily aircraft utilization on the CRJ fleet
and, to a lesser extent, the A319 fleet, but will increase connecting opportunities for passengers.



While Independence Air believes it has been successful in stimulating demand to, from and
through its Washington Dulles hub, through February 2005 it has not achieved the load factor and
yields projected in its original business model and thus has not met revenue projections. Factors
contributing to lower revenues than originally projected include the addition of new competitive service
in markets served by Independence Air and a lower level of business traffic relative to leisure traffic
than had been anticipated. This revenue shortfall combined with unprecedented high fuel prices has
caused Independence Air to sustain higher losses and to expend more cash than it anticipated when it
embarked on its strategy of becoming an independent airline. To address this situation, Independence
Air has undertaken a number of steps in addition to schedule changes discussed above, including a
financial restructuring, capital spending reductions and changes in its distribution strategy as discussed
below. While Independence Air believes that these actions have provided it an opportunity to continue
operating through 2005 and into 2006 by improving liquidity and generating additional sales, the
Company is operating in an extremely difficult industry environment that presents a number of risks
and uncertainties that could adversely affect the Company’s yield, liquidity and business plan. These are
discussed in detail below in “Business—Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Results of Operations and Financial Condition”.

Financial Restructuring

The airline industry is characterized by high fixed costs, consisting primarily of aircraft lease and
financing costs. In the fourth quarter of 2004 and the first quarter of 2005, the Company took the
following steps to address liquidity.

A319 Aircraft:

Independence Air entered into an agreement with Airbus’ wholly-owned affiliate AVSA S.A.R.L.
(“AVSA”) on November 12, 2004 to amend its purchase agreement for 16 Airbus A319 aircraft. Under
the terms of the amended aircraft purchase agreement, delivery of ten A319s originally scheduled for
2005 has been rescheduled to 2007. The rescheduling of aircraft deliveries to 2007 reduced the amount
of pre-delivery payments due in 2004 and 2005 under the purchase agreement as these deposits are not
due until pre-set intervals prior to scheduled delivery. The amendment of the aircraft purchase
agreement does not affect the scheduled delivery of six Airbus A319s in early 2006 that Independence
Air has contracted to purchase from AVSA or the four remaining leased aircraft to be delivered in
April and May 2005.

CRJ Aircrafft:

Independence Air entered into an agreement with Bombardier in December 2004 to further
amend its aircraft purchase agreement in order to access approximately $38.8 million on deposit with
Bombardier for aircraft orders. Under the amended agreement, Independence Air applied the majority
of these deposits and progress payments against the outstanding debt owed to an affiliate of
Bombardier on two CRIJs delivered in October 2003 and against other outstanding trade payables owed
to Bombardier and its affiliates. Independence Air thereafter effected the sale of the two CRJs and of
two other CRJs and one spare CRIJ engine, all of which it owned free and clear of any liens, for
approximately $49 million. Bombardier continues to hold $3.4 million as deposits for Independence
Air’s commitment for 34 undelivered CRJs. Independence Air’s commitments toward these undelivered
aircraft continue to be subject to certain conditions.

On February 18, 2005, the Company and Independence Air entered into a series of agreements
with GE Commercial Aviation Services, Inc. and certain of its affiliates (“GECAS”) as owner
participant under leveraged leases relating to 24 CRJs, and with the various parties as loan participant
under those leveraged leases, providing for the early termination of the leases. These agreements
provide for the amendment of the leases to shorten the term of the leases such that they expire
between February 2005 and July 2005. The agreements also reduce the rent between January 1, 2005



and the date of the lease expiration to the amount of accrued interest on the underlying leveraged
lease loans. Under the agreements, Independence Air will be required to meet certain amended return
conditions and to deliver the aircraft to the lessors by agreed dates, but upon satisfaction of these
obligations will have no further rent obligations with respect to periods after the amended lease
expiration dates, for these aircraft. The termination of the 24 leases will result in a non-cash accounting
charge currently estimated at $7.5 million to be taken as the leases are terminated to reflect the
write-off of deferred credits that resulted from training, spare parts, and other services previously
provided by the manufacturer to the Company net of accruals for prepaid rents for these aircraft. The
Company expects that the return of the 24 CRIJs will save approximately $30 million in rent on an
annual basis.

The Company and Independence Air also entered into an agreement with GECAS on February 18,
2005 that establishes certain financial milestones applicable to three-month periods ending in June,
September, October, November and December 2005 and January, February and March 2006 (Milestone
Months). The financial milestones consist of tests of (1) the Company’s unrestricted cash balance and
(2) its earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, and aircraft rents as a percentage of
passenger revenues. Should the Company fail to satisfy the tests for a Milestone Month, or fail to
provide the information necessary for the measurement of the milestones, GECAS will have the option,
exercisable within ninety days following the delivery of the financial statements for such Milestone
Month, to terminate the lease for one additional CRIJ aircraft for each Milestone Month, up to a
maximum of eight CRJ aircraft. The terms of the termination of the leases would be similar to those
for the 24 aircraft to be early terminated as described above.

Independence Air has amended, as of February 18, 2005, the operative lease or loan agreements
for a total of 52 CRIJ aircraft that are financed through leveraged leases or through mortgage loan
financings, to revise the rental and loan payment structure from semi-annual payments to monthly
payments and to defer approximately $70 million of the rent or loan payments that would have been
due between January 2005 and February 2007. Depending on which operative lease or loan agreement,
interest at a rate of Libor plus 250 basis points or a fixed rate of 7.01% will be charged on the
outstanding deferral balance. The interest portion of the payments will be paid monthly retroactive to
January 1, 2005, and the principal portion of the deferred rent and loan payments will be repaid on a
monthly basis beginning in May 2006 through the end of the lease or loan term.

In exchange for concessions from CRJ aircraft financing parties, the Company agreed to issue a
total of 2,035,000 additional shares of FLYi common stock, $0.02 par on February 18, 2005. The shares
of common stock are to be issued to certain aircraft lessors and lenders as partial consideration for
their agreeing to participate in the restructuring of the terms of their respective aircraft loans or leases
through the transactions described above. The number of shares of common stock issued to each lessor
or lender was determined through arms-length negotiations, and no separate valuation was assigned to
the issuance of the shares. None of the shares of common stock were issued in exchange for cash. The
shares were issued in privately negotiated transactions in reliance upon the exemption from registration
provided under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933. The Company will expense the fair market
value of the shares at date of issuance as part of restructuring costs in the first quarter of 2005.

J41 Aircraft:

During 2005, Independence Air has entered into a series of agreements for the consensual early
termination of leases for 21 of the 30 Jetstream 41 (“J41”) turboprop aircraft that were previously
retired from Independence Air’s operating fleet and are not currently used in Independence Air
operations. The agreements are with the lessors of those aircraft, with the lenders in the leveraged
leases covering three of the aircraft, and with the manufacturer that provided certain residual support
in connection with the leases.

BAE Systems (Operations), Limited and its affiliates (“BAE”), the manufacturer of the J41
aircraft, had provided certain residual value support to the lessors of 10 of the J41 aircraft that are



subject to early termination agreements. The Company and Independence Air entered into an
agreement with BAE on February 18, 2005 to resolve certain issues relating to BAE and to the lessors
as a result of the early termination of the leases, and to resolve any claims which BAE may have
against the Company or Independence Air resulting from the termination of those leases. BAE agreed
to accept the applicability of its residual value support agreements to the lessors upon the early
termination of the leases, and agreed that it would not pursue further claims against the Company or
Independence Air relating to those agreements. The Company and Independence Air agreed to provide
consideration to BAE in exchange, including a cash payment of $2.0 million and the issuance of a
promissory note of $3.5 million bearing interest at 6.75% payable monthly with principal repayments
beginning in June 2006 and ending in June 2007. The Company and Independence Air also agreed to
issue a non-interest bearing convertible note in the amount of $5.0 million, convertible into 1 million
shares of the Company’s stock, and agreed to turn over all of its remaining J41 spare engines, parts
and tooling to BAE during 2005. The Company and Independence Air also agreed that should BAE
elect to settle any of its residual value agreements by purchasing the aircraft from the lessors, the
Company and Independence Air would relinquish their claim to any refund of the security deposits for
any purchased aircraft. The amount of the deposits is further described below.

The agreements with the lessors of the J41 aircraft provide for the early termination of the leases,
the return of the aircraft to the lessors, and the elimination of future rent obligations. These
agreements were entered into as of January 14, 2005 for four aircraft and as of February 18, 2005 for
an additional 17 aircraft. These lease terminations are expected to reduce Independence Air’s net
payments during the period from January 2005 through February 2007 by approximately $13.5 million.
Independence Air will be responsible for certain return obligations with respect to these aircraft, but
upon satisfaction of these obligations will have no further rent obligations with respect to these aircraft.
Independence Air posted, at the time it initially entered into the original leases, a total of $3.7 million
in security deposits applicable to the J41 aircraft that are subject to these agreements. Independence
Air has permanently relinquished its claim to $2.2 million of these deposits and conditionally
relinquished its claim to the remainder of these deposits. Independence Air is not able to currently
estimate how much, if any, of the remaining $1.5 million of deposits may be returned to it. The
Company previously recorded an early retirement charge for the J41 aircraft as they were removed
from operation. The early retirement charges previously recorded for these aircraft will be reconciled as
the actual costs of the lease terminations are recorded in 2005.

The Company and Independence Air agreed to provide consideration to the counterparties for
entering into these agreements including cash payments totaling approximately $3.5 million and the
issuance of interest bearing promissory notes totaling approximately $2.6 million bearing interest at
6.75% payable monthly and with equal payments of principal and interest monthly from February 2007
through June 2010. The Company also agreed to issue non-interest bearing convertible notes in the
total amount of $20,952,113, convertible into 3,619,127 shares of the Company’s stock. Independence
Air also agreed to various terms with respect to the redelivery of the aircraft and in certain cases, to
the condition of the aircraft upon return.

328Jet Aircraft:

Independence Air had previously disclosed that, as a result of the termination of its Delta
Connection agreement without cause, it had the right to assign to Delta Air Lines, Inc. (“Delta”) leases
for 30 Fairchild Dornier 328 regional jet (328Jet) aircraft formerly used in Delta Connection operations
and to require Delta to assume the leases. In its prior disclosure, the Company indicated that it would
continue to be liable for future obligations under the leases in the event that Delta at any time did not
fulfill those obligations. On March 21, 2005, Independence Air completed the delivery of these aircraft
to Delta in connection with the assignment and assumption of the lease obligations. As part of its
restructuring effort, as of the date of delivery of the aircraft to Delta, the Company entered into
agreements with the lenders in the leveraged leases of these aircraft under which the lenders effectively
released the Company and Independence Air from future obligations to them under the 328Jet leases.



While the owner participant in the leveraged leases, a bankrupt entity that is in default of its
obligations to the lenders and the Company, has not committed to a release of the Company, the
lenders, which have an assignment of the owner participant’s interest in the leases and have a priority
of payment superior to that of the owner participant, have agreed that they will not assert any claims
against the Company with respect to events occurring after assumption by Delta. The lenders have also
agreed that, if Independence Air is required to make any payments under the leases and the lenders
receive any portion of such payments, they will return those payments to Independence Air. In
consideration for this arrangement, the Company has issued 1.5 million shares of the Company’s stock.
Independence Air obtained rent deferrals similar to those reached on its CRJ fleet for the remaining
two leased 328Jets that are not being assigned to Delta in exchange for the issuance of 130,000 shares
of FLYi common stock and is actively marketing for sale one unencumbered 328Jet owned by
Independence Air. The fair value of the 1.6 million shares issued will be recorded as part of the
Company’s restructuring charge in the first quarter of 2005.

Other Actions:

On February 18, 2005, Independence Air entered into a term loan agreement with GECAS for
$16.2 million and borrowed the full amount available under the term loan. The loan bears interest at a
spread over three month Libor based on an agreed market rate, and is payable in 60 monthly
installments ranging from approximately 1.4% of principal to approximately 2.0% of principal, with a
final maturity on February 18, 2010. Independence Air is not permitted to voluntarily prepay the loan
for three years and may do so thereafter only if it provides a letter of credit or other acceptable
security in an amount equal to the payments that are being deferred under leases of 13 CRIJ aircraft.
The loan is secured by Independence Air’s 11 CRJ spare engines and all of its CRJ spare parts. The
loan agreement also provides that the sum of the outstanding amounts of the loan and lease deferral
amounts may not exceed specified percentages of the appraised values of the collateral. If these
percentages are exceeded, Independence Air is required to make a partial prepayment on the loans or
provide additional collateral to restore compliance. Subject to these requirements, Independence Air is
permitted to dispose of collateral to the extent they become surplus to normal operations.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, Independence Air also initiated and responded to proposals
with other carriers to consider arrangements that would supplement or substitute for its Independence
Air operations with respect to some or all of its operations or aircraft, and during the first quarter of
2005 it continued to explore whether any such arrangements might be available on attractive terms.
The Company also continues to evaluate opportunities to finance the acquisition of aircraft, engage in
other financing transactions, sell additional equity or debt securities, enter into credit facilities with
lenders, or sell underutilized assets, all for either strategic reasons or to further strengthen our financial
position.

Marketing and Sales

Independence Air initially adopted the distribution model used by other low-cost carriers like
Southwest and JetBlue that limited ticket sales to its own web site and call centers. However, during
the fourth quarter of 2004, Independence Air began to enter into agreements that would allow it to
offer its inventory through the Global Distribution Systems (“GDSs”). Additional GDSs were
implemented during the first quarter of 2005, and Independence Air now participates in most of the
major GDSs and a number of online travel sites including Travelocity and Orbitz. Participation in the
GDS:s is supported by Independence Air’s team of sales professionals who solicit individual
corporations and travel agencies, creating additional interest and incentives for booking Independence
Air flights.

Although 85% of Independence Air’s total bookings are created online or through the GDSs, the
remaining volume is processed through Independence Air’s toll-free reservations phone lines.
Independence Air maintains a reservations staff at its headquarters facility to monitor and handle the



most complex customer service matters and to solicit and assist in corporate account bookings. In
addition, Independence Air has contracted with a third party specialist to handle routine reservations
calls at various facilities operated by those parties.

Independence Air offers a frequent flyer program known as iCLUB. Members earn iPOINTs based
on the amount of money spent on Independence Air travel. iPOINTs are credited when travel is flown
and are good for 12 months. Awards are posted to an iCLUB account when thresholds are met within
a specified period, and may be redeemed for roundtrip fares on Independence Air. The Company
accounts for the estimated cost of its frequent flyer program by accruing a liability for the estimated
incremental cost of providing service to those customers who will redeem awards.

Fuel

The Company’s finances have been dramatically affected by record high fuel prices. Recently,
Independence Air has purchased fuel at a price of $1.65 per gallon. When Independence Air
operations commenced in June 2004, fuel prices were $1.27 per gallon, and the original business plan
from June 2004 for Independence Air estimated fuel prices, based on then-prevailing market prices,
was at $.90 per gallon. Independence Air estimates that it will consume approximately 100 million
gallons of jet fuel in 2005. Independence Air has not hedged fuel costs.

Competition

The airline industry is highly competitive. Airline profits are sensitive to adverse changes in fuel
costs, average fare levels and passenger demand. Passenger demand and fare levels have historically
been influenced by, among other things, the general state of the economy, international events, industry
capacity and pricing actions taken by other airlines. The principal competitive factors in the airline
industry are fare pricing, customer service, routes served, flight schedules, types of aircraft, safety
record and reputation, code-sharing relationships, in-flight entertainment systems and frequent flyer
programs.

Recently competition has become even more intense as a result of the initiatives of low-fare
airlines, including Independence Air, to introduce service to markets that have been traditionally served
by legacy carriers and by the initiatives of the legacy carriers in response. The legacy carriers, in some
cases operating under the protection of Federal bankruptcy laws and in the case of US Airways
operating with government provided financing, have reacted by matching fares, reducing restrictions,
offering additional frequent flyer incentives, increasing advertising, and by taking aggressive steps to
reduce their own costs. They have also, in several instances, increased their capacity in routes served by
low-fare carriers. United, for example, responded to Independence Air’s service introduction by
increasing capacity by 37% in markets served by Independence Air from Washington Dulles. In other
markets where Independence Air competes, US Airways, Delta, and Northwest have matched fares,
added frequency to existing markets, and/or started service to markets they previously did not serve.
The result of this increased intensity in competition has been a substantial increase in available flight
options for the consumer at substantially reduced prices, which has lead to an increase in overall
passenger traffic but at substantially reduced revenue for the airlines. The intense competition has also
limited the ability of carriers to adjust pricing to reflect the increased cost of high fuel prices.

Our competitors and potential competitors include major U.S. airlines, low-fare airlines, regional
airlines and new entrant airlines. The major airlines are larger, generally have greater financial
resources and serve more routes. They also use advanced technologies, such as ticketless travel and
website bookings. Our primary competitors in the non-stop markets that we serve are United, US
Airways and, to a lesser extent, Southwest Airlines, each of which has greater financial resources and
name recognition than we do. United and US Airways have also benefited from their operation under
bankruptcy court protection, and US Airways has benefited from government provided financing.



Seasonality

The Company’s business is highly seasonal in nature with the winter months being the worst and
the spring/summer months being the best. As such, the Company’s quarterly results may not be
indicative of full year results.

Previous Code-Share Operations

The Company’s prior agreements with United (“UA Agreements”) defined the terms of 1A’s
operation in the United Express program. [A's United Express operations accounted for approximately
71% of the Company’s 2004 passenger revenue and 100% of its 2003 passenger revenue after excluding
the discontinued Delta Connection operation. In November 2000, the Company and United amended
and restated the UA Agreements, effectively changing from a revenue sharing arrangement to a
fee-per-departure arrangement. Under the UA Agreements in effect prior to December 2000, IA was
responsible for, among other things, scheduling, pricing, and marketing its flights, in coordination with
United’s operations, for which it paid United a portion of its revenues. Under the fee-per-departure
arrangement in effect as of December 1, 2000, IA operated a flight schedule designated by United, for
which United paid IA an agreed amount per departure regardless of the number of passengers carried,
with IA being able to receive additional incentive payments based on operational performance. [A
thereby assumed the risks associated with operating the flight schedule and United assumed the risk of
scheduling, marketing, and selling seats to the traveling public. Pursuant to the restated UA
Agreements, United, at its own expense, provided a number of additional services to IA. These
included reservations, route planning, scheduling, pricing, revenue management, revenue accounting,
marketing, frequent flyer administration, and the provision of ticket handling services, customer service,
and ground support services at most of the airports where both companies operate flights concurrently.

On December 9, 2002, UAL, Inc. and its subsidiaries, including United, filed for protection under
Chapter 11 of the United States bankruptcy code. UAL has continued operating and managing its
business and affairs as a debtor in possession. In bankruptcy, United had the right to assume or reject
all executory agreements including the Company’s UA Agreements. In July, 2003, the Company
announced that it intended to utilize IA’s assets to operate as an independent low-fare airline in the
event that United determined to reject the UA Agreements as a part of United’s reorganization in
bankruptcy. On April 5, 2004 the Company announced it had reached an agreement with United
providing for a transition schedule and exit plan for all IA's United Express aircraft and related
operations as a result of United’s decision to reject the UA Agreements. That agreement and United’s
rejection of the UA Agreements was approved by the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern
District of Illinois, which oversees United’s bankruptcy, on April 16, 2004. TA subsequently phased out
of United Express operations and operated its last United Express service on August 3, 2004. On
September 3, 2004, FLYi and Independence Air filed claims in United’s chapter 11 case for damages
resulting from United’s rejection of the UA Agreements. United has indicated to the Company that it
will object to the Company’s claims.

The Company and United reached a settlement on the amounts owed under the United Express
agreement in a settlement agreement approved by the bankruptcy court on October 15, 2004. This
settlement required United to pay the Company $4.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2004. Upon
payment by United, the Company and United discharged each other from any further charges related
to the Company’s participation in the United Express program prior to September 30, 2004, the
effective date of the settlement agreement, except that the settlement does not affect the Company’s
claim against United for damages from its rejection of the Company’s United Express Agreement. The
effect of the settlement agreement was recognized in the fourth quarter. Despite the settlement, United
continues to dispute certain billing matters.

The Company’s Delta Connection Agreement (“DL Agreement”) defined the terms of 1A’
operation in the Delta Connection program. Prior to being accounted for as a discontinued operation,
IA's Delta Connection operations accounted for approximately 20% of the Company’s 2004 passenger
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revenue and approximately 17% of its 2003 passenger revenues. IA was compensated by Delta on a
fee-per-block hour basis at rates that were reset annually based on anticipated costs in the coming year.
Under the fee-per-block hour arrangement, IA was contractually obligated to operate a flight schedule
designated by Delta, for which Delta paid IA an agreed amount per block hour regardless of the
number of passengers carried, with incentive payments based on operational performance. IA thereby
assumed the risks associated with operating the flight schedule and Delta assumed the risks of
scheduling, marketing, and selling seats to the traveling public. Pursuant to the DL Agreement, Delta,
at its expense, provided a number of support services to the Company. These included reservations,
customer service, ground handling, station operations, pricing, scheduling, revenue accounting, revenue
management, frequent flyer administration, marketing, a maintenance hangar facility in Cincinnati, and
other passenger, aircraft and traffic servicing functions in connection with IA’s Delta Connection
operation. On April 6, 2004, the Company announced it had received formal notification from Delta
that Delta would end its fee-per-block hour agreement with IA by invoking its right under the Delta
Connection Agreement to terminate without cause upon 180 days notice. Subsequently, a transition
agreement was entered into with Delta to specify the terms of the transition, and IA completed its
Delta Connection operations on November 1, 2004. The Company is treating the termination of the
Delta code share agreement as a discontinued operation, and accordingly, has removed the revenues,
expenses, and operating statistics attributable to the Delta Connection operation from all reported
operating results presented in these consolidated financial statements and results of operations and is
including these amounts, net of income tax, as results from discontinued operations.

Employees

As of March 1, 2005, the Company and Independence Air had 3,683 full-time and 339 part-time
employees, classified as follows:

Classification Full-Time  Part-Time
Pilots . ... 947 —
Flight attendants . . . . ....... ... ... . 560 —
Station personnel . .......... ... .. L 1,035 279
Maintenance personnel . ............. ..., 352
Management, administrative and clerical personnel . ......... 789 58
Total employees. . . . ............. .. ..., 3,683 339

Independence Air’s pilots are represented by the Airline Pilots Association (“ALPA”), flight
attendants are represented by the Association of Flight Attendants-Communications Workers of
America (“AFA-CWA”), and aviation maintenance technicians and ground service equipment mechanics
are represented by the Aircraft Mechanics Fraternal Association (“AMFA”).

In November 2003, the Company and Independence Air finalized an amended collective
bargaining agreement with ALPA on pay reductions and work rule changes that were contingent on
signing a purchase agreement with an aircraft manufacture for delivery of twenty-five narrow body
aircraft. The agreement extended the term of the collective bargaining agreement such that it will next
be amendable as of December 31, 2007, and established pay rates and work-rules for pilots operating
narrow-body jets that the Company believes are competitive with other low-fare carriers. The new
agreement also included terms designed to decrease costs and increase productivity for operating its
regional jets including a reduction in CRJ rates that took effect in June 2004.

Independence Air’s collective bargaining agreement with the AFA-CWA, which was ratified in
October 1998, became amendable in October 2002. Independence Air and AFA-CWA reached a
Tentative Agreement on February 10, 2005 and the agreement was ratified on March 21%, 2005. The
new agreement will be amendable July 31, 2007. The agreement is designed to address quality of life
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issues that were of concern to the work group and to update work rules of interest to the parties, and
provides for the first pay rate increase to be effective in August 2006.

Independence Air’s collective bargaining agreement with AMFA, which was ratified in June 1998,
became amendable in June 2002. Independence Air has been in mediated negotiations with AMFA
during 2004. The Mediator recessed negotiations in October 2004 and Independence Air and AMFA
have not met in formal negotiations since. Independence Air expects meetings will resume in the
second quarter of 2005, and does not anticipate that any issues relating to these negotiations will have
a material effect on Independence Air’s operations for the foreseeable future.

In the airline industry, labor relations are regulated by the Railway Labor Act (“RLA”). Under the
RLA, collective bargaining agreements do not expire but, rather, become amendable. The wage rates,
benefits and work rules contained in a contract that has become amendable remain in place and
represent the status quo until a successor agreement is in place. The parties may not resort to self-help,
such as strikes or lockouts, until the RLA processes for collective bargaining have been exhausted. It is
impossible to predict how long the RLA processes will take.

Independence Air’s other work groups are not unionized. Independence Air believes that certain
of its unrepresented labor groups are from time to time approached by unions seeking to represent
them. On March 24, 2005, Independence Air received a notice from the Communications Workers of
America that it was working with the Company’s fleet service and passenger service employees in
organizing efforts. Independence Air has not received any other official notice of organizing activity
and there have been no representation applications filed with the National Mediation Board by any of
these groups. Independence Air believes that the wage rates and benefits for non-union employee
groups are comparable to similar groups at other similarly situated airlines.

Pilot Training

Independence Air conducts its CRJ pilot training through a training program managed internally,
conducted by in-house instructors, and utilizing simulators operated by a third party. Independence Air
has entered into agreements with Pan Am International Flight Academy (“PAIFA”) for CRJ simulator
usage at PAIFA’s facility near Washington Dulles. This facility currently houses three CRJ simulators,
and Independence Air believes that these facilities will be adequate to support its training
requirements. The agreements require Independence Air to purchase an annual minimum number of
CRIJ simulator training hours at agreed rates through 2010. In early 2005, Independence Air amended
its agreements with PAIFA to reduce its simulator costs for 2005. Independence Air’s payment
obligations for CRJ simulator usage over the remaining years of the agreements now total
approximately $7.1 million.

Independence Air conducts its Airbus training through a training program provided by Airbus. The
training is provided by Airbus and certain rates have been agreed as part of the Airbus acquisition
agreement. Independence Air is also free to purchase training from alternative sources. Independence
Air believes that adequate training services, including simulator time in North America, will be
available from Airbus to fulfill its training requirements for the foreseeable future. Independence Air is
utilizing manufacturer credits issued with each aircraft delivered in lieu of payment for its initial
training requirements. When these credits are fully utilized it will need to pay cash for subsequent
training. In addition to the usage of the manufacturer’s training program, Independence Air may
conduct a limited amount of training using its own training program and instructors, and will consider
development of an in-house training program for A319s pilots in the future.

Industry Regulation and Airport Access

Economic. The Department of Transportation (“DOT”) has extensive authority to issue
certificates authorizing carriers to engage in air transportation, establish consumer protection
regulations, prohibit certain unfair or anti-competitive practices, mandate certain conditions of carriage
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and make ongoing determinations of a carrier’s fitness, willingness and ability to provide air
transportation. The DOT can bring proceedings for the enforcement of its regulations under applicable
federal statutes, which proceedings may result in civil penalties, revocation of operating authority or
criminal sanctions.

The Company’s Independence Air subsidiary holds a certificate of public convenience and
necessity, issued by the DOT, which authorizes it to conduct scheduled and charter air transportation of
persons, property and mail between all points in the United States, its territories and possessions with
regional jet and narrow-body equipment. In addition, Independence Air may conduct scheduled and
charter air transportation with regional jet aircraft to points outside the United States, subject to
obtaining any necessary authority from any foreign country to be so served. Were Independence Air to
operate its narrow-body aircraft outside of the United States, additional DOT authority would be
required to conduct such air transportation. Independence Air’s certificate requires that Independence
Air maintain DOT-prescribed minimum levels of insurance, comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations and remain continuously “fit” to engage in air transportation. Based on conditions in the
industry, or as a result of Congressional directives or statutes, the DOT from time to time proposes
and adopts new regulations or amends existing regulations that may impose additional regulatory
burdens and costs on Independence Air. Imposition of new laws and regulations on air carriers could
increase the cost of operation and or limit carrier management discretion.

Safety. The FAA extensively regulates the safety-related activities of air carriers. Independence
Air is subject to the FAA’s jurisdiction with respect to aircraft maintenance and operations, equipment,
ground facilities, flight dispatch, communications, training, weather observation, flight personnel, the
transportation of hazardous materials and other matters affecting air safety. To ensure compliance with
its regulations, the FAA requires commercial airlines under its jurisdiction to obtain an operating
certificate and operations specifications for the particular aircraft and types of operations conducted by
such airlines. The Company’s Independence Air subsidiary possesses an operating certificate and
related authorities issued by the FAA authorizing it to conduct operations with turboprop, regional jet
and narrow-body equipment. Independence Air’s authority to conduct operations is subject to
suspension, modification or revocation for cause. The FAA has authority to bring proceedings to
enforce its regulations, which proceedings may result in civil penalties, which can be substantial,
criminal penalties, or suspension or revocation of operating authority.

From time to the time and with varying degrees of intensity, the FAA conducts inspections of air
carriers. Such inspections may be scheduled or unscheduled and may be triggered by specific events
involving either the specific carrier being inspected or other air carriers. In addition, the FAA may
require airlines to demonstrate that they have the capacity to properly manage growth and safely
operate increasing numbers of aircraft.

In order to ensure the highest level of safety in air transportation, the FAA has authority to issue
maintenance directives and other mandatory orders. These relate to, among other things, the inspection
of aircraft and the mandatory removal and replacement of parts or structures. In addition, the FAA
from time to time amends its regulations and such amended regulations may impose additional
regulatory burdens on Independence Air, such as the required installation of new safety-related items.
Depending upon the scope of the FAAs orders and amended regulations, these requirements may
cause Independence Air to incur substantial, unanticipated expenses.
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On November 19, 2001 the President signed into law the Aviation and Transportation Security Act
(the “Security Act”). The Security Act requires heightened passenger, baggage and cargo security
measures to be adopted as well as enhanced airport security procedures. The Security Act created the
Transportation Security Administration (“TSA”) that has taken over the responsibility for conducting
the screening of passengers and their baggage at the nation’s airports as of February 17, 2002. The
activities of the TSA are funded in part by the application of a $2.50 per passenger enplanement
security fee (subject to a maximum of $5.00 per one way trip) and payment by all passenger carriers of
a sum not exceeding each carrier’s passenger and baggage screening cost incurred in calendar year
2000. In the Administration’s fiscal year 2006 budget, it has proposed to authorize TSA to collect an
additional $3.00 per passenger segment security fee, or $5.50 per segment and a maximum of $8.00 per
one-way trip. If Congress accepts the Administration’s proposal, Independence Air will have to collect
these additional fees from its passengers, thereby making the cost of air transportation more expensive
which, in turn, may dampen demand for the services of Independence Air. In addition, competitive
pressures in the industry may preclude Independence Air from being able to pass on the added fee
such that the fee may further diminish Independence Air’s air transportation revenues.

The Security Act imposes new and increased requirements for air carrier employee background
checks and additional security training of flight and cabin crew personnel. These additional and new
requirements have increased the security related costs of Independence Air. The Security Act also
mandates and the FAA has adopted new rules requiring the strengthening of cockpit doors, some of
the costs of which have been reimbursed by the FAA. Independence Air has completed all mandatory
cockpit door modifications and has been reimbursed $2.7 million under the Security Act, although the
cost of such modifications exceeded this amount. At times, when the aviation security threat level is
elevated by the Department of Homeland Security, Independence Air may experience security-related
disruptions, including reduced passenger demand, resulting from enhanced passenger screening at
airports and possible flight cancellations. Independence Air believes that its exposure to such
disruptions is no greater than that faced by other providers of regional air carrier services.

Although the TSA has taken over the former responsibilities of the air carriers for the screening of
all passengers and baggage, the TSA, as with the FAA before it, requires air carriers to adopt and
enforce procedures designed to safeguard property, and to protect airport and aircraft against terrorist
acts. The TSA, from time to time, may impose additional security requirements on air carriers and
airport authorities based on specific threats or world conditions or as otherwise required. The TSA has
issued a number of security directives and altered procedures upon changes in the Office of Homeland
Security announcements of heightened threat levels, and Independence Air has adjusted its security
procedures on numerous occasions in response to these directives. Independence Air incurred
substantial expense in complying with current security requirements and it cannot predict what
additional security requirements may be imposed in the future or the cost of complying with such
requirements.

Associated with the FAA's security responsibility is its program to ensure compliance with rules
regulating the transportation of hazardous materials. Independence Air has policies against accepting
hazardous materials or other dangerous goods for transportation. Employees of Independence Air are
trained in the recognition of hazardous materials and dangerous goods through an FAA approved
training course. Independence Air may ship aircraft and other parts and equipment, some of which may
be classified as hazardous materials, using the services of third party carriers, both ground and air. In
acting in the capacity of a shipper of hazardous materials, Independence Air must comply with
applicable regulations. The FAA enforces its hazardous material regulations by the imposition of civil
penalties, which can be substantial.

Other Regulation. In the maintenance of its aircraft fleet and ground equipment, Independence
Air handles and uses many materials that are classified as hazardous. The Environmental Protection
Agency and similar local agencies have jurisdiction over the handling and processing of these materials.
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Independence Air is also subject to the oversight of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration
concerning employee safety and health matters. Independence Air is subject to the Federal
Communications Commission’s jurisdiction regarding the use of radio frequencies.

Federal law establishes maximum aircraft noise and emissions limits. At the present time, all of the
aircraft operated by Independence Air comply with all applicable federal noise and emissions
regulations. Federal law generally preempts airports from imposing unreasonable local noise rules that
restrict air carrier operations. However, under certain circumstances airport operators may implement
reasonable and nondiscriminatory local noise abatement procedures, which could impact the ability of
Independence Air to serve certain airports, particularly in off-peak hours.

Slots.  Slots are reservations for takeoffs and landings at specified times and are required by
governmental authorities to operate at certain airports within the United States. Independence Air has
rights to and utilizes takeoff and landing slots at New York-Kennedy, and White Plains, New York
airports. Airlines may acquire slots by governmental grant, by lease or purchase from other airlines, or
by loan when another airline does not use a slot but desires to avoid governmental reallocation of a
slot for lack of use. All leased and loaned slots are subject to renewal and termination provisions.
Under law presently in effect, slot regulation at Kennedy airport is scheduled to end after January 1,
2007. The rules also provide that, in addition to those slots currently held by carriers, operators of
regional jet aircraft and new entrant air carriers may apply for, and the Secretary of Transportation
must grant, additional slots at New York-Kennedy in order to permit the carriers to offer new service,
increase existing service or upgrade to regional jet service in qualifying smaller communities. There is
no limit on the number of slots a carrier may request. Prior to the commencement of services by
Independence Air, Independence Air requested and obtained from the FAA, under the provisions of
current law, slots necessary to operate its flight schedule to and from New York Kennedy Airport. The
New York Kennedy Airport slots are permanent, subject to loss due to nonuse. To the extent
Independence Air would seek to operate narrow-body aircraft at Kennedy or any other slot controlled
airport, it will have to either purchase or lease slots from another air carrier or be qualified to obtain
such slots under the then current regulatory regime. Slots at White Plains, New York airport are held
in the name of Independence Air and are sufficient to conduct operations at the airport. As a result of
congestion at Chicago O’Hare Airport, on January 21, 2004, the FAA entered an Order requiring the
two largest O’Hare carriers, United Airlines and American Airlines, to reduce their O’Hare flight
schedules, including the schedules operated by carriers affiliated with these major carriers. The FAA
order was subsequently extended until October 2004. Prior to its expiration, the FAA, on August 18§,
2004, issued another order setting limits through April 30, 2005 on the number of air carrier arrivals at
O’Hare during peak hours to reduce the level of airport congestion and applied the terms of the order
to all domestic carriers operating at O’Hare, including Independence Air. The FAA has proposed to
extend the effectiveness of this order until October 30, 2005 during which time the FAA has indicated
that it intends to propose and adopt a longer term, more permanent solution to the issue of O’Hare
airport delays. At the current time, Independence Air has sufficient rights to conduct flights at O’Hare
during the controlled hours. Should the FAA propose additional limits on Independence Air flight
arrivals, it may not be able to develop a flight schedule that maximizes Independence Air’s revenue
opportunities.

Risk Factors Affecting the Company

The Company’s business is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, as described below and in
the section titled, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial
Condition—Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About
Market Risk”.
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Risk Factors Affecting the Company Relating to Independence Air
We face pressure to increase operating revenues and reduce operating costs to avoid a liquidity crisis

The fierce competition and weak revenue environment that Independence Air operations have
encountered, combined with lower than expected passenger traffic and unprecedented high jet fuel
prices have resulted in Independence Air’s revenue falling significantly below anticipated levels and the
Company expending cash at an unsustainable rate. Although we have implemented cost savings
measures, we may not be able to reduce our operating costs enough to offset the revenue shortfall.

We expect to have substantial cash needs as we continue to establish ourselves under the new
brand “Independence Air” as a low-fare carrier, including cash required to fund increases in accounts
payable, prepaid expenses, aircraft security deposits on new aircraft to be leased, pre-delivery payments
on new aircraft to be purchased, as well as anticipated operating losses. As of December 31, 2004, our
debt of $238.8 million exceeded our total capitalization. In addition to long-term debt, we have a
significant amount of other fixed obligations under operating leases related to our aircraft, airport
terminal space, other airport facilities and office space. As of December 31, 2004, future minimum
lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms in excess of one
year were approximately $1.7 billion for 2005 through 2024, not including commitments for the
remaining Airbus A319 aircraft we intend to acquire. The restructuring of the lease and loan payments
on the 52 CRIJs defers-but does not eliminate-the payment of approximately $70 million that would
have been due between January 2005 and February 2007 and converts the previous semi-annual
payment dates to monthly payment dates. We remain obligated to repay the $70 million of deferrals
and associated interest in monthly installments over the remaining term of the financing beginning in
May 2006.

Future operating lease commitments for the eight leased Airbus aircraft undelivered at
December 31, 2004 are expected to be approximately $325 million, and our purchase commitment for
16 additional Airbus aircraft is expected to be approximately $560 million over the next three years,
including estimated amounts for contractual price escalations. We will continue to incur additional debt
and other fixed obligations as we take delivery of new aircraft and other parts and equipment and
continue to expand into new markets. The leases for the Airbus aircraft require security deposits to be
held by the lessors in addition to payments of monthly rent and maintenance reserves. The purchase
agreement for the Airbus aircraft requires progress payments to be made for each aircraft as the
delivery date approaches. We have historically funded the majority of our aircraft acquisitions by
entering into off-balance sheet financing arrangements known as leveraged leases, in which third parties
provide equity and debt financing to purchase the aircraft and simultaneously enter into long-term
agreements to lease the aircraft to us. However, we do not anticipate that this source of financing will
be available to us for the foreseeable future, and that we will need to finance our aircraft through
secured debt or operating leases. We are exposed to interest rate risks that can affect our costs under
any of these financing techniques. There can be no assurance that we will be able to secure lease
and/or debt financing on terms acceptable to us or at all.

Our outstanding indebtedness and significant fixed obligations, and our lack of a history of
profitability for Independence Air operations, could have important consequences. For example, they
could:

* adversely affect our ability to obtain additional financing to support our planned growth and for
working capital and other general corporate purposes;

¢ divert substantial cash flow from our operations and expansion plans in order to service our
fixed obligations or to place deposits or collateral to secure financing;

* require us to incur significantly more interest or rent expense than we currently do; and
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* place us at a possible competitive disadvantage compared to less leveraged competitors and
competitors that have better access to capital resources.

We have no lines of credit, other than letters of credit collateralized by cash, and we will continue
to rely on our existing cash balances, cash flow from operations and other sources of capital to satisfy
our obligations. In connection with our recently completed financial restructuring, we pledged
substantially all of our remaining unencumbered collateral. Even with the recent completion of our
financial restructuring, if passenger traffic or yield do not achieve anticipated levels, fuel costs continue
at current high levels or other events affect its operations, the Company may again face liquidity
concerns. If the Company is not able to achieve its current business plan, cash balances and cash flow
from operations together with operating lease financing and other available equipment financing may
not be sufficient to enable the Company to meet its working capital needs, expected operating lease
financing commitments, other capital expenditures, and debt service requirements as they come due for
the remainder of 2005 and into 2006. If we are unable to make payments on our debt and other fixed
obligations as they come due, we could be forced to consider commencing a bankruptcy case under
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or may be the subject of an involuntary Chapter 11 case
commenced against us by creditors.

Because we have limited operating history as a low-fare carrier, it is difficult to evaluate our ability to succeed
in this business

Although we have operated as an airline since 1992, our past results offer little meaningful
guidance with respect to our future performance because, prior to June 16, 2004, we had not operated
as an independent carrier. In addition, we have not had responsibility for route planning, scheduling,
pricing, marketing, advertising, sales, revenue management or revenue accounting functions since
December 2000, and for the first time we are operating our own distribution, reservations and ticketing
functions. Also, while previous operations have been under the United and Delta brands, Independence
Air is a new brand, and has limited market recognition. As a result, because we have only recently
begun to operate as an independent, low-fare carrier, it is difficult to evaluate our future prospects.
Our future performance will depend on a number of factors, including our ability to:

 Further develop our Independence Air brand and product to make it attractive to our target
customers;

* implement our business strategy by placing into service additional A319 aircraft into new and
longer-haul markets than we have previously served;

* successfully choose new A319 markets and service levels, and successfully choose the markets
and service levels to be operated by our reduced CRI fleet;

* reduce our expenses to adjust to the current revenue and fuel cost environment, and to reflect a
reduced number of aircraft in operation;

* secure favorable terms with airports, suppliers and other contractors;
* monitor and manage major operational and financial risks;

e return a significant number of aircraft to their lessors during 2005, without incurring unexpected
costs or disruption of ongoing operations;

* obtain and maintain necessary regulatory approvals, including airport “slots” where necessary;
e attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel;
* finance the necessary capital investments including future aircraft deliveries;

* maintain the safety and security of our operations; and
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* react to responses from our competitors, including both legacy and low-fare airlines.

There can be no assurances that we will successfully address any of these factors, and our failure to do
so could harm our business.

Our recently completed financial restructuring may result in significant expenditures and limits the flexibility
of our operations

As discussed above under “Item 1. Business—Financial Restructuring,” in connection with our
recently completed financial restructuring, we have entered into agreements that require us to satisfy
certain obligations. We may have to incur unexpected costs to satisfy certain of these obligations, and
our failure to satisfy these or other obligations arising under our financial restructuring could limit the
flexibility of our operations. We have reached agreements with the lessors for 24 of Independence Air’s
CRIJs and, as stated above, with the lessors for 21 of the J-41 turboprops that were formerly used in
our United Express operations for the return of the aircraft to the lessors and the elimination of our
future rent obligations. The terms of those agreements include certain obligations with respect to the
return of the aircraft, including physical condition and timing of the return. We may incur unexpected
charges arising from those obligations and/or may fail to satisfy all of those obligations as to some or
all of the aircraft. We have also agreed to permit the lessor to require us to return up to eight
additional CRI aircraft if we do not meet certain financial milestones. The removal of these aircraft
could result in additional costs, and could be harmful to the business plan if we are forced to remove
aircraft that are providing a positive contribution to our performance.

We are under pressure to control and reduce our costs

The extensive competition, high fuel costs, excess capacity and success of low-fare carriers has
resulted in increased emphasis in the airline industry on controlling and reducing expenses. Many of
our competitors are effecting cost reductions that will increase their ability to compete against
Independence Air. In this environment, if we are unable to align our costs with our business plan or to
control and reduce our costs in general, we may not be able to effectively compete against other
regional carriers flying for legacy carriers, other low-fare carriers, or legacy carriers that choose to
compete with us to maintain or expand our existing operations and carry out our business plan.

We are subject to risks arising from fuel costs and availability of fuel

Like all airlines, our finances have been dramatically affected by record high fuel prices. Recently,
we have purchased fuel at a price of $1.65 per gallon. When we first started Independence Air
operations in June 2004, we were purchasing fuel at $1.27 per gallon. With about 100 million gallons
projected to be consumed in 2005, at today’s rates we would incur approximately $38.1 million in
additional cost for 2005 compared to what that fuel would have cost at prices that were prevailing when
we first started operations. We have not hedged our fuel needs. We cannot predict the future cost and
availability of fuel. Both fuel costs and availability are subject to many economic and political factors
and events occurring throughout the world over which we have no control. Fuel availability is also
subject to periods of market surplus and shortage and is affected by demand for both home heating oil
and gasoline. Because of the intense pricing competition, the ability of carriers to adjust pricing to
reflect higher fuel costs has been limited. We do not believe that this present situation is sustainable
either for us or for the industry as a whole, and that without either a reduction in fuel prices or an
increase in ticket prices, we, like many other airlines, may not be successful.

We rely on third parties and supply infrastructure to provide sufficient fuel for our operations. The
inability of these third parties to perform, the interruption of fuel supplies at an airport, or the inability
to deliver sufficient fuel to us due to infrastructure constraints could result in cancelled flights and/or
higher fuel prices.
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We have costs and possible exposure arising from the Fairchild Dornier 328 regional jet (“328]et”) and
termination of our Delta Connection operations

In April 2002, Fairchild Dornier GmbH (“Fairchild”), the manufacturer of the 32-seat 328Jet, was
placed under the supervision of a court-appointed interim trustee and in July 2002 Fairchild opened
formal insolvency proceedings in Germany. The lack of manufacturer product support, along with a
high level of unscheduled maintenance events for the engines that power the aircraft, resulted in an
increase in the cost to operate the 328Jet aircraft type and a decrease in the aircraft’s value. Following
Delta’s notice that it would terminate the Delta Agreement without cause upon 180 days notice, we
notified Delta that we were exercising our right under the terms of the Delta Agreement to require
Delta to assume the leases on 30 of the 33 328Jets used in the Delta program. We have entered into
agreements with the loan participants of those leveraged leases to relieve us of further obligations to
them under the leases provided we can complete the assignment to Delta within a specified period of
time. We do not have such an agreement with the equity participant in such aircraft although we
believe that other circumstances relating to the structure of the leases and to certain defaults to us by
that party effectively insulates us from further liability. We also are responsible for the remarketing of
the two leased and one owned 328Jet aircraft that we do not have a right to require Delta to assume,
as well as the spare parts inventory, tooling and ground equipment unique to the 328Jet. There can be
no assurance that we will be able to redeploy in a profitable manner these three 328Jets. We recorded
impairment charges of $13.8 million in connection with our one owned 328Jet and 328Jet spare parts,
early retirement charges of $7.2 million in connection with the two leased 328Jets that we do not have
the right to require Delta to assume and may incur additional one-time costs in connection with the
termination of the Delta relationship.

We will incur cash charges and may incur other unexpected charges as we return the J-41 aircraft to
the lessors

We have retired all J-41 type aircraft from our fleet. As part of our recently completed financial
restructuring, we have reached agreement with the lessors for 21 of those aircraft on the terms for the
return of the aircraft to the lessors and the elimination of our future rent obligations. The terms of
those agreements include certain obligations with respect to the return of the aircraft, including in
some cases physical condition, the production of certain records, and timing of the returns. We may
incur unexpected charges arising from those obligations and/or may fail to satisfy all of those
obligations as to some or all of the aircraft. For the remaining nine J41 aircraft, we are still
contractually required to continue to make payments under the lease/loan agreements for the aircraft,
and do not expect to be able to obtain any significant amount of sublease income relative to our rent
obligations. While we have recorded early retirement charges for the future rent costs, cash from
operations will be negatively impacted by approximately $17.3 million for payments due over the
remaining term of the leases/loans.

Our expansion of Independence Air requires significant new infrastructures

Our business strategy involves successfully establishing Washington Dulles as the hub for a new
low-fare airline, establishing the Independence Air brand in regional jet markets we have been serving
to and from Washington Dulles, expanding our operation into certain markets not previously served,
and creating flight connection opportunities. We must continue to establish and maintain significant
new infrastructures that are necessary to operate as an independent airline, including scheduling,
market planning and marketing, advertising, ground operations and information systems. Achieving our
business strategy is critical in order for our business to create passenger connecting opportunities for
markets to be served with our existing fleet of CRJs and with the Airbus A319 aircraft that we
currently operate and are acquiring, and to achieve economies of scale, both of which are critical to
profitable operations. Increasing the number of markets we serve depends on our ability to successfully
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introduce the Airbus aircraft into our fleet, and to secure suitable slots, gates, ticket counter positions
and other facilities at airports located in our targeted geographic markets. In some of our markets we
must establish and maintain ground operations and, in some markets, we compete with United and
others for facilities and employees. Opening new markets requires us to commit a substantial amount
of resources, even before new service commences. Expansion also requires additional skilled personnel
and equipment. An inability to hire and retain skilled personnel or to secure the required equipment
and facilities efficiently and cost-effectively or to successfully develop and implement other necessary
systems may affect our ability to achieve our business strategy. In addition, Independence Air
operations may also increase the demands on management and our operating systems and internal
controls beyond levels we currently anticipate. Such expansion may strain our existing management
resources and operational, financial and management information systems to the point that they may
no longer be adequate to support our operations, requiring us to make larger expenditures in these
areas than we currently anticipate. There can be no assurance that we will be able to develop these
controls, systems or procedures on a timely or cost-effective basis, and the failure to do so could harm
our business.

Failure to successfully implement our strategy for Independence Air could harm our business

Our business strategy for Independence Air involves, among others, attractive schedule and
connection opportunities to the markets we serve, aggressive management of unit costs, and offering
fares that are significantly lower than existed prior to our entry in order to stimulate demand. While we
have found that our new fare structure has in fact stimulated passenger growth, our competitors’
response in aggressively matching our fares and increasing capacity on many of our markets has
resulted in an overcapacity of seats relative to the increased passenger growth. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to sufficiently balance our costs with the demand for our product, and
failure to do so may prevent us from successfully implementing our strategy for Independence Air.

Our maintenance costs will increase as our regional jet fleet ages and as certain aircraft are returned to the
lessors and retired from our fleet

As our fleet of regional jet aircraft ages, the maintenance costs for such aircraft will likely increase.
In addition, the CRIJs being returned to lessors under our recently completed financial restructuring are
generally among our newer aircraft, and thus have operated at lower costs than our average fleet.
Although we cannot accurately predict how much our maintenance costs will increase in the future,
they may increase significantly. Any such increase could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. We are vulnerable to any problems associated with the
aircraft in our fleet, including design defects, mechanical problems or adverse perception by the public
that would result in customer avoidance or an inability to operate our aircraft.

Our business plan for Independence Air is heavily dependent on the metropolitan Washington, D.C. market,
including Northern Virginia, and a reduction in demand for air travel in this market or the inability of
Washington Dulles to accommodate our operations would harm our business

Our operations focus on flights to and from our primary base of operations at Washington Dulles.
As a result, we are highly dependent upon the Washington, D.C. and Northern Virginia markets. Our
business would be harmed by any circumstances causing a reduction in demand for air transportation in
the Washington, D.C. and Northern Virginia metropolitan area, such as adverse changes in local
economic conditions, political disruptions or violence (including any terrorist attacks), negative public
perception of the city or region, significant price increases linked to increases in airport access costs
and fees imposed on passengers or the impact of past or future terrorist attacks. Likewise, our business
could be harmed by any disruption of service or facilities at Washington Dulles or by any disruption in
our ability to obtain supplies necessary for our operation at Washington Dulles.
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We face competition as a low-fare airline from legacy carriers as well as low-fare airlines to which we have
not been previously exposed

The airline industry is highly competitive, primarily due to the effects of the Airline Deregulation
Act of 1978, which substantially eliminated government authority to regulate domestic routes and fares,
and increased the ability of airlines to compete with respect to destination flight frequencies and fares.
Independence Air operates in a new sector of the airline industry that is highly competitive and is
particularly susceptible to price discounting because airlines typically incur only nominal costs to
provide service to passengers occupying otherwise unsold seats. Our competition includes legacy
carriers and low-fare carriers, which are aggressively responding to our new Independence Air service
to protect their markets and expand into new ones by adding service in markets we serve or plan to
serve, reducing fares to these markets and/or providing frequent flyer and other incentives. The
competitive response has included not only flights to and from Washington Dulles, Reagan National
and BWI airports, but has also included origination and destination markets that we connect through
Washington Dulles. Several legacy carriers, including United and Delta, have introduced low-fare
carriers to their operations. In addition, because of the nature of our past relationship with United and
because we offer service between key United hubs, United’s response to our operation as
Independence Air has been and is expected to continue to be highly competitive and unpredictable.
Independence Air also competes against established brands used by both legacy carriers and low-fare
carriers that carry greater name recognition, both at Washington Dulles and at the other cities that we
serve. Both legacy carriers and low-fare carriers also continue to take delivery of regional jets, and we
may face increased competition from regional jets at Washington Dulles, including the use of new 70 or
90 seat regional jets, which would be larger than those we currently have in our regional jet fleet. The
use of new, larger scale regional jets will allow competitors to serve markets smaller than can now be
served by low-fare carriers using larger aircraft, with a seat mile cost that may be lower than ours.

Our base of operations for Independence Air is Washington Dulles, which is served by a number
of larger airlines that have greater name recognition and greater resources than we do. These larger
airlines have and may in the future commence or increase their capacity and service at Washington
Dulles because there are currently no rules restricting access at this airport. We are competing in
markets at fares offered by airlines at other airports that currently serve the Washington, D.C.
metropolitan area, including Reagan National Airport and Baltimore Washington International Airport.
We may also face competition from other airlines that may begin serving any of the markets we serve
and from ground transportation alternatives. Other airlines with greater financial resources than ours
also have or may, in the future, meet or price their fares below our fares or introduce new nonstop
service between cities served by our flights to and from Washington Dulles, Reagan National Airport or
Baltimore Washington International Airport and prevent us from attaining a share of the passenger
traffic necessary to operate profitably. We expect that competition will exist in all the direct markets
that we currently serve and will serve in the future, as well as in the market for flights that connect
through Washington Dulles. We further expect that the competition for passengers connecting through
Washington Dulles will be both from airlines offering service through Washington Dulles and from the
large number of alternative hubs throughout the U.S., instead of Washington Dulles, through which
connecting passengers can elect to route their travel.

Our new West Coast services marks our entry into the highly competitive transcontinental market.
Transcontinental routes were priced aggressively by low-fare carriers prior to our entry, and our
offering of these routes poses a direct threat to legacy carriers on routes that we believe have
traditionally been more profitable for them. We have already seen substantial fare-cutting by United
and other legacy carriers on our new West Coast routes and anticipate a continued strong competitive
response to our service.
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Our business model is dependent on our ability to continue to take delivery of, place into service and integrate
new Airbus A319 aircraft into our operations

As of March 28, 2005, we were operating eight Airbus A319 aircraft and have 20 additional Airbus
single aisle aircraft on order. The Airbus A319 aircraft will operate in markets that are important to
serving a broad selection of cities from Washington Dulles, and providing that service is critical to
attracting customers to our airline. The A319 aircraft also will allow us to connect passengers to and
from markets served by the regional jets to additional long haul markets, and we will thus rely on the
Airbus A319 aircraft to generate incremental revenues for the regional jet fleet.

If we, Airbus or the aircraft lessors are unable or unwilling to satisfy contractual obligations
relating to the aircraft, we would be required to obtain alternative aircraft. A number of factors could
limit or preclude our ability to obtain the aircraft from Airbus, including:

* Airbus, the aircraft lessors or we could refuse, or not be financially able, to perform important
obligations as set forth in the final agreement; and

* Airbus could experience a disruption to its operations that affects its ability to complete or
timely fulfill its obligations.

Our ability to execute our business plan could be materially impaired if we were required to order
alternate aircraft, or if the delivery schedule for the Airbus aircraft were delayed for any meaningful
period.

Acquisition of an all-new type of aircraft, such as the Airbus A319 aircraft, involves a variety of
risks relating to our ability to successfully place those aircraft into service, including:

* delays in meeting the agreed upon aircraft delivery schedule;

* difficulties in obtaining financing on acceptable terms to complete our purchase or lease of all of
the firm ordered aircraft;

* inability of the aircraft and all of its components to comply with agreed upon specifications and
performance standards; and

* inability to successfully complete the required training of flight crews and maintenance staff.

We have limited experience operating and maintaining the Airbus A319 aircraft and we, therefore,
face risks in continuing to integrate the aircraft into our existing infrastructure and operations,
including among other things, the additional costs, resources and time needed to hire and/or train new
or existing pilots, technicians and other skilled support personnel. Our failure to successfully take
delivery of, place into service and integrate into our operations all of the new Airbus single aisle
aircraft could harm our business.

In the event that our Airbus aircraft are removed from scheduled service for repairs or other
reasons (other than routine maintenance), we could experience a disruption in our scheduled service
that would have an adverse effect on our operations. Similarly, our operations could also be harmed by
the failure or inability of Airbus to provide sufficient parts or related support services on a timely basis.

We rely on maintaining a high daily aircraft utilization rate of our Airbus to keep our costs low, which makes
us especially vulnerable to delays

One of the key elements of the Independence Air business strategy is to maintain a high daily
aircraft utilization rate of our A319 aircraft, which is the amount of time that our aircraft spend in the
air carrying passengers. High daily aircraft utilization allows us to generate more revenue from our
aircraft and is achieved, in part, by reducing turnaround times at airports so we can fly more hours on
average in a day. Aircraft utilization is reduced by delays from various factors, many of which are
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beyond our control, including, among others, air traffic and airport congestion, inclement weather,
security requirements, crew availability, fueling and ground handling and unscheduled maintenance.
Because many of our A319 routes will be to distant markets that will be remote from our hub, we may
have a difficulty in recovering from irregular operations. Furthermore, a schedule that contemplates
high aircraft utilization is subject to the increased risk that once an aircraft falls behind schedule during
the day, it could remain behind schedule during the remainder of that day and potentially into the next
day, which can result in disruption in operating performance leading to passenger dissatisfaction and
missed connections. All of the foregoing delays may increase our costs as well as diminish our
reputation among our customers.

We do not participate in the types of marketing alliances used by many of our competitors

Many airlines have marketing alliances with other airlines under which they market and advertise
their status as marketing alliance partners. Among other things, they share the use of flight designator
codes to identify their flights and fares in the computerized reservation systems and permit reciprocity
in their frequent flyer programs. In recent years, alliance activity among major carriers has significantly
expanded within the airline industry, increasing the scope of operations and resources of our
competitors, which, in turn, could adversely affect our ability to compete. Independence Air is not a
member of any marketing alliance. Our lack of a marketing alliance could harm our business and
competitive ability. We also do not participate in interline baggage handling agreements, under which
we forward and receive customer baggage to and from other airlines that may operate flights with
which our customers may be connecting, which may discourage potential customers from flying on
Independence Air.

We rely heavily on automated systems to operate our business and any failure of these systems could harm
our business

We depend on automated systems to operate our business as Independence Air, including our
computerized airline reservation system, our telecommunication systems, kiosks, and our website. Our
website and reservation and check-in systems must be able to accommodate a high volume of traffic
and deliver important flight information. Substantial or repeated website, reservations system, kiosk, or
telecommunication systems failures could reduce the attractiveness of our services and could cause our
customers to purchase tickets from another airline. While we have backup systems for some aspects of
our operations, our systems have not been fully tested for the volume of transactions possible in our
operations and are not fully redundant, and our disaster recovery planning may not be sufficient for all
eventualities. In order to provide a reservations system and the infrastructure to receive customer calls,
we contract with third party vendors to provide the software, hardware, and technical support of the
reservations system and the physical location and staffing for a call center. We also may need to rely on
third-party vendors to implement our back-up systems, which would place aspects of maintaining
important data beyond our control. Any disruption in our or our third parties’ systems or in the ability
of the third party vendors to provide their services could result in the loss of customer bookings or
important data, increase our expenses and generally harm our business.

Our inability to obtain and maintain approval from the FAA and the DOT to operate aircraft could
materially affect our operations

We possess all of the DOT and FAA authority necessary to operate our fleet of A319 and CRJ
aircraft. We are required to maintain this authority and to satisfy on-going regulatory requirements in
order to continue our operations. We recently paid a substantial civil penalty to the FAA and are
involved in an ongoing review by the FAA of the Company’s maintenance records program. The
outcome of this review cannot be predicted at this time, but could result in additional fines or actions
by the FAA.
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We may not be able to maintain access to suitable airports located in our targeted geographic area

Independence Air is materially dependent on our ability to access suitable airports located in our
targeted geographic markets for both our larger, single aisle aircraft and our regional jets at costs that
are consistent with our low-fare strategy. Some airports served by Independence Air are subject to FAA
imposed capacity controls and, although Independence Air currently has the slots necessary to conduct
operations at these airports, additional limits could be placed on the airports that might restrict
Independence Air’s access to them. In August 2004, the FAA issued an order limiting hourly operations
at Chicago’s O’Hare International Airport. The effect of this order caused the Company to shift the
hours of certain of its operations and to place an upper limit on the number of daily O’Hare arrivals
through the end of April 2005. Other airports that are not currently capacity controlled that become
severely congested, which could include Washington Dulles, could become the subject of some
regulatory limit and thereby restrict Independence Air’s access to or operations at those airports. Any
condition that would deny, limit or delay our access to airports we serve or seek to serve in the future
would constrain our ability to grow. A change in the terms of our access to existing facilities or any
increase in the relevant charges paid by us as a result of the expiration or termination of such
arrangements and our failure to renegotiate comparable terms or rates could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations. We base our operations predominantly at Washington Dulles. There
can be no assurance that such airport will not impose higher airport charges in the future or that such
increases would not adversely affect our operations.

Our current operations benefit from government support for insurance costs

Following the September 11 terrorist attacks, the aviation insurance industry imposed a worldwide
surcharge on aviation insurance rates as well as a reduction in coverage for certain war risks. In
response to the reduction in coverage, the Air Transportation Safety and System Stabilization Act
provides U.S. air carriers with the option to purchase certain war risk liability insurance from the
United States government on an interim basis at rates that are more favorable than those available
from the private market. Prior to December 2002, we purchased hull war risk coverage through the
private insurance market, and purchased liability war risk coverage through a combination of U.S.
government provided insurance and private insurance. In December 2002, the U.S. government offered
to provide additional war risk coverage that included certain risks previously covered by private
insurance. We have purchased, at rates that are significantly lower than those charged by private
insurance carriers, hull and liability war risk coverage from the U.S. government (through the FAA)
through August 31, 2005. Due to the cost and difficulty in obtaining insurance in the commercial
markets, we anticipate renewing the insurance through the FAA for so long as it is available. The FAA
has indicated that the extension of its war risk insurance program past August 31, 2005 is under
consideration but has not yet been approved. The inability to obtain insurance at any cost or the
availability of insurance only at excessive rates, could affect our ability to operate.

We have had difficulty implementing in a timely manner the documentation, assessments, testing and
remediation of our internal control over financial reporting necessary to allow our management to report
whether our internal control over financial reporting is effective.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we are required to include a report in
our Annual Report on Form 10-K of management’s assessment of the design and effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of the fiscal year ending December 31, 2004. Management,
with the participation of the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer, is in
the process of conducting an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Our auditors will then be required to attest to, and report
on, management’s assessment. They will also be required to report on the effectiveness of our internal
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control over financial reporting. As reported in the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2004, management had identified internal control weaknesses existing at that time that
constituted material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. The Company undertook to implement
compensating controls to remediate or mitigate those weaknesses, including segregation of duties and
monitoring controls over the purchasing process and monitoring controls, to include adequate
documentation, over the information technology control environment. See Part I Item 9A of this filing,
“Controls and Procedures.” Securities and Exchange Commission Release No. 34-50754 provides
certain companies, including us, up to 45 additional days beyond the required filing date of this

Form 10-K for the filing of management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting,
and the related attestation report of our auditors on management’s report on internal control over
financial reporting and the related report of the auditors on their own assessment of our internal
control over financial reporting. There can be no assurance that management will be able to complete
the necessary work in a timely manner to issue its report that our internal control was effective as of
December 31, 2004 or that, upon completing such work, our management will conclude that our
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2004. If we are not able to
timely complete our internal control work necessary for management’s assessment and regardless of
whether our management concludes that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as
of December 31, 2004, our auditor may issue an adverse report or qualify its report on management’s
assessment of internal control over financial reporting and/or in its own report on our internal control
over financial reporting. In addition, we might be subject to sanctions or investigation by regulatory
authorities. Certain material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal controls also could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. We also expect to incur additional expenses
and diversion of management’s time as a result of performing the system and process evaluation,
testing and remediation required in order to comply with the management certification and auditor
attestation requirements.

Our contract with one of our unions currently is amendable

Our contract with the Aircraft Mechanics Fraternal Association (“AMFA”), which was ratified in
June 1998, became amendable in June 2002. The AMFA contract covers all aviation maintenance
technicians and ground service equipment mechanics working for us. We have been in negotiations with
AMEFA since 2003 and more recently have been in mediation under the Railway Labor Act. Although
there can be no assurances as to the outcome of these negotiations and mediation, we anticipate
ultimately being able to reach agreement with AMFA on a mutually satisfactory contract with no
material effect on our results of operations or financial position. However, the failure to resolve this
negotiation on appropriate terms could affect our ability to compete effectively.

Our results of operations will fluctuate

We expect our quarterly operating results to fluctuate in the future based on many factors
including the extent of passenger revenue, competition, changes in aircraft fuel costs, security costs,
weather, the timing and amount of maintenance and our ability to successfully develop the
“Independence Air” brand, including costs related to aircrafts and marketing expenditures in this
effort. Because a substantial portion of airline travel (both business and personal) is discretionary, the
industry tends to experience adverse financial results during general economic downturns. Any
prolonged general reduction in airline traffic may particularly affect us because our business plan is
more dependent, in part, on the stimulation of discretionary air travel. In addition, seasonal variations
in weather and traffic affect our operating results from quarter to quarter. Given our high proportion
of fixed costs, this seasonality affects our profitability from quarter to quarter. Our base of operations is
located in the Washington, D.C. area, and many of our areas of operations are located in the
Northeast, which makes our operations susceptible to air traffic and airport congestion as well as bad
weather conditions in the winter, causing increased costs associated with deicing aircraft, cancelled
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flights and accommodating displaced passengers. Due to our geographic area of operations and our use
of regional jets, we are more susceptible to adverse weather conditions along the East Coast than some
of our competitors, who may be better able to spread weather-related risks over more diverse route
systems. As we enter new markets, we could be subject to additional seasonal variations. Due to the
factors described above, quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our operating results may not be good
indicators of our future performance. In addition, it is possible that in any future quarter our operating
results could be below the expectations of investors and any published reports or analyses regarding
Independence Air.

Our business would be harmed if we lost the services of any key personnel

Our success depends to a large extent, on the continued service of our executive management
team and other key personnel. Although we have employment agreements with certain executive
officers, it is possible that members of management may resign. Other key personnel may depart the
Company due to our financial condition. We may incur unexpected expenses and have difficulty
replacing management or other key personnel who leave and, therefore, the loss of the services of any
of these individuals could harm our business. We fund key-man life insurance on certain executive
officers only to the extent necessary to fund life insurance commitments under employment agreements
in the event of death.

Risk Factors Affecting the Airline Industry
The U.S. airline industry is experiencing significant restructurings and bankruptcies

Beginning in early 2001, the industry has experienced depressed demand and shifts in passenger
demand, lower unit revenues, increased insurance costs, increased fuel costs, increased government
regulations and taxes, and tightened credit markets, evidenced by higher credit spreads and reduced
capacity to borrow. These factors are directly affecting the operations and financial condition of
participants in the industry including aircraft manufacturers. Several major airlines have used the
bankruptcy process or the threat of bankruptcy to reduce their expenses and streamline their
operations. Our contractual relationships with others may continue to be affected by other companies’
bankruptcies or by concerns regarding potential bankruptcies. The bankruptcy or prospect of
bankruptcy among other companies that operate in our industry may result in unexpected expenses and
create other risks or uncertainties that we are not able to anticipate or plan around.

The travel industry has been materially adversely affected by the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks and
on-going security concerns

The U.S. airline industry continues to recover from the events of September 11, 2001 and
increased concerns over additional acts of terrorism. The major carriers continue to experience losses
or operate near break-even levels of profitability even after reducing capacity, negotiating wage and
work rule concessions and, for certain carriers, filing for bankruptcy protection. Passenger traffic
continues to be negatively impacted by the general economic situation in the United States, threats of
terrorist activities, terrorist alerts, violence in the Middle East, and increased security measures at the
nation’s airports. Instability in the Middle East and other parts of the world has increased the risk that
the industry will continue to be adversely affected by reduced demand, increased security costs,
increased fuel costs, and other factors. While our code share agreements allowed us to recover certain
of these additional expenses from our partners, no such cost recovery arrangements are available for
our Independence Air operations, and the effects of any new terrorist attacks and/or security measures,
as well as increased security costs could impair our ability to operate profitably.
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Airlines are often affected by factors beyond their control, including weather conditions, traffic congestion at
airports and increased security measures, any of which could harm our operating results and financial
condition

As with other airlines, we are subject to delays caused by factors beyond our control, including
adverse weather conditions, air traffic and airport congestion and increased security measures. Delays
frustrate passengers, reduce aircraft utilization and increase costs, all of which negatively affect
profitability. During periods of fog, snow, rain, storms or other adverse weather conditions, flights may
be cancelled or significantly delayed. Cancellations or delays due to weather conditions, traffic control
problems and breaches in security could harm our operating results and financial condition.

Changes in government regulations imposing additional requirements and restrictions on our operations could
increase our operating costs and result in service delays and disruptions

Airlines are subject to extensive regulatory and legal requirements, both domestically and
internationally, that involve significant compliance costs. In the last several years, Congress has passed
laws, including extensive airline and airport security laws, and the DOT, FAA and TSA have issued
regulations relating to the operation of airlines that have required significant expenditures. We expect
to continue to incur expenses in connection with complying with government regulations. Additional
laws, regulations, taxes and airport rates and charges have been proposed from time to time that could
significantly increase the cost of airline operations or reduce the demand for air travel. If adopted,
these measures could have the effect of raising ticket prices, reducing revenue and increasing costs.
There can be no assurance that these and other laws or regulations enacted in the future will not harm
our business.

The airline industry is characterized by low profit margins and high fixed costs, and we may be unable to
establish our brand or to compete effectively against other airlines with greater financial resources or lower
operating costs

The airline industry is characterized generally by low profit margins and high fixed costs, primarily
for personnel, aircraft fuel, debt service and rent. The expenses of an aircraft flight do not vary
significantly with the number of passengers carried. As a result, a relatively small change in the number
of passengers or in pricing could have a disproportionate effect on an airline’s operating and financial
results. Accordingly, a minor shortfall in expected revenue levels could harm our business. In addition,
the airline industry is highly competitive and is particularly susceptible to price discounting because
airlines incur only nominal costs to provide service to passengers occupying otherwise unsold seats. We
compete with other airlines on substantially all of our routes. Many of these airlines are larger and
have greater financial resources and name recognition or lower operating costs or both than we do.
Some of these competitors may chose to add service, reduce their fares and/or increase frequent flyer
or other benefits, in some of our markets following or in anticipation of our entry. Therefore, we may
be unable to compete effectively against other airlines that introduce service or discounted fares in the
markets that we serve which could harm our business.

Our reputation and financial results could be harmed in the event of an accident or incident involving
our aircraft

An accident or incident involving one of our aircraft could involve repair or replacement of a
damaged aircraft and its consequential temporary or permanent loss from service, and significant
potential claims of injured passengers and others. We are required by the DOT to carry liability
insurance. Although we believe we currently maintain liability insurance in amounts and of the type
generally consistent with industry practice, the amount of such coverage may not be adequate and we
may be forced to bear substantial losses from an accident. Substantial claims resulting from an accident
in excess of our related insurance coverage would harm our business and financial results. Moreover,
any aircraft accident or incident, even if fully insured, could cause a public perception that we are less
safe or reliable than other airlines, which would harm our business.
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Internet Website

The Company’s Internet website can be found at www.flyi.com. The Company makes available free
of charge on or through its Internet website under the heading “Company, Investor Information”,
access to its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is filed with, or furnished to,
the Securities and Exchange Commission. The contents of these websites are not a part of this Annual
Report to Stockholders.

Item 2. Properties

Flight Equipment—Operating: The following table describes Independence Air’s operating fleet of
aircraft, scheduled firm deliveries and options as of March 28, 2005:

Total Number of Number of Average Aircraft
Number of  Aircraft Aircraft Passenger Age in on
Aircraft Leased Owned Capacity Years Order Options

Aitbus A319 ... .. .. 8 8 — 132 <1 20 49
Bombardier CRJ200 .. .............. 82 74 8 50 43 34 80
8

90 82 39 54 129

The Company and Independence Air have entered into a series of agreements with GE
Commercial Aviation Services, Inc. and certain of its affiliates (“GECAS”) as owner participant under
leveraged leases relating to 24 CRJs, and with the various parties as loan participant under those
leveraged leases, providing for the early termination of the leases. These 24 CRIJs, which are included
in the table above, are being returned to GECAS through July 2005.

Independence Air’s commitment to purchase 34 CRIJ aircraft on order is subject to certain
conditions which, unless waived by Independence Air by April 2005, can not be satisfied as a result of
United’s rejection in bankruptcy of the Company’s United Express agreement. Independence Air does
not expect to waive the conditions and, therefore, does not expect to take delivery of these ordered
aircraft. If Independence Air does not waive the conditions, the remaining $3.4 million on deposit with
Bombardier will be returned to Independence Air in April 2005.

As of March 14, 2005, Independence Air has taken delivery of eight leased Airbus 319 aircraft and
expects to take delivery of four additional leased A319s during April and May 2005. Independence Air
also has executed a purchase agreement with Airbus’ wholly-owned affiliate AVSA S.A.R.L. (“AVSA”)
to purchase 16 Airbus A319 aircraft with six scheduled for delivery in 2006 and ten scheduled for
delivery in 2007.

Flight Equipment—Non-Operating: The following table describes Independence Air’s
non-operating fleet of aircraft as of March 28, 2005:

Total Number Number of Number of
of Aircraft Aircraft Leased  Aircraft Owned
Fairchild 328Jet . . ... ... .. 3 2 1
BAE J-41 Turboprops . . . . . . oo oo 30 25 5
6

E 2
Independence Air has 3 Fairchild 328Jet aircraft remaining that were previously operated in the

Delta Connection operation. The Company has taken an early retirement charge, as part of
discontinued operations, for the future rents due on the two leased 328Jets and recorded an
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impairment charge for the one owned 328Jet to reflect estimated current value. Independence Air is
actively trying to dispose of the three remaining 328Jets either through sale or sublease transactions.

Upon the termination of the United Express agreement, Independence Air early retired its
remaining J-41 turboprop aircraft and recorded a charge for the future rents to be due. Independence
Air has negotiated the early lease termination for 21 of the 30 J-41s it previously operated. Once the
J-41s are returned and accepted by the lessors, the Company and Independence Air will be relieved of
any further obligations on these aircraft. Of the remaining nine J-41s, seven are pledged as security
under an Enhanced Equipment Trust Certificate transaction which the Company and Independence Air
continue to abide by, one is owned with a related mortgage that Independence Air is actively looking
to sell, and one is leased from a lessor that Independence Air will continue to negotiate with.

Leased Facilities
Airports

Independence Air enters into agreements for the use of passenger terminals at most of the airports
it serves and leases ticket counter and office space at those locations where ticketing and its aircraft are
handled by Independence Air personnel. Payments to airport authorities for ground facilities are
generally based on a number of factors, including space occupied as well as flight and passenger
volume. Independence Air occupies a 69,000 square foot passenger concourse at Washington Dulles.
The concourse, designed to support Independence Air’s regional jet operation, is owned by the
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority and leased to Independence Air under a lease with a
termination date of September 30, 2014. Independence Air also occupies additional gates on Concourse
B at Washington Dulles for its Airbus operation; these gates are owned by the Metropolitan
Washington Airports Authority and are operated under a 60 day Use Permit. Finally, Independence Air
leases gates and terminal space at locations serviced by it. To date, Independence Air has not had any
difficulty in obtaining airport facilities in the cities it serves or intends to serve.

Corporate Offices

The Company’s executive, administrative, reservations and system control departments are located
in a three-story office building encompassing 77,000 square feet of space under an operating lease
ending December 2010. Independence Air’s employee training and services center is located in a
nearby 79,000 square foot building under a lease ending December 31, 2007. Together, these properties
are adequate to provide the necessary administrative facilities for the Company’s and Independence
Air’s operations.

Maintenance Facilities

The FAA’s safety regulations mandate periodic inspection and maintenance of commercial aircraft.
Independence Air performs most line maintenance, service and inspection of its aircraft and engines at
its own maintenance facilities using its own personnel. Independence Air performs maintenance
functions at an 112,000 square foot aircraft maintenance facility at Washington Dulles, a 34,000 square
foot hangar facility in Columbia, South Carolina, and a 17,000 square foot hangar bay at the Orlando
International Airport. The Washington Dulles aircraft maintenance facility is comprised of 60,000
square feet of hangar space and 52,000 square feet of support and administrative space. The lease term
for the Washington Dulles aircraft maintenance facility expires December 24, 2024. The lease term for
the Columbia facility expires on June 1, 2005 and Independence Air has notified the Airport Authority
that it intends to renew the lease for one year. The Orlando facility is a single bay, of a 4 bay hangar
operated by another commercial airline, is leased under a monthly use agreement and can be
terminated with 30 days notice.
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Independence Air performs the majority of its maintenance function for CRJs at the facility at
Washington-Dulles. Line station maintenance for the Independence Air operation is provided by
contract maintenance. Some high frequency stations are minimally staffed by FLYi maintenance
personnel. Routine overnight maintenance for the Airbus aircraft is performed by contract maintenance
at line stations and by Company mechanics at Washington Dulles and Orlando. The heavier overnight
checks are performed at the Orlando hangar facility.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Independence Air is involved in legal proceedings related to the insolvency of Fairchild Dornier
GmbH (“Fairchild”), which was initiated in 2002. Independence Air holds a bond in the amount of
$1.2 million from an independent insurance company, which secures deposits placed with Fairchild for
undelivered aircraft, and has made a demand for payment under this bond. Fairchild’s insolvency
trustee has made a claim for the collateral posted with the insurance company, and the insurance
company has withheld payment of the bond. The matter is presently with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court
for the Western District of Texas. The Company has fully reserved for the potential exposure related to
this matter.

Independence Air was named in several lawsuits arising from the terrorist activities of
September 11, 2001. These actions were commenced by or on behalf of individuals who were injured or
killed as a result of the hijackings of the four flights. These actions seek compensatory and punitive
damages. However, pursuant to the Air Transportation Safety and System Stabilization Act,
Independence Air’s liability for these claims is limited to Independence Air’s liability insurance. In each
case, the plaintiffs have named the airlines operating at the airports from which the flights originated,
including Independence Air, under the theory that all of the airlines are jointly responsible for the
alleged security breaches by the airport security contractor. The court recently denied the motion of
American Airlines and other defendants, including Independence Air, seeking dismissal of all ground
victim claims on the basis that the airline defendants do not owe a duty as a matter of law to
individuals injured or killed on the ground. The litigation is proceeding; however, no discovery has been
presented to the non-carrier airlines. The Company anticipates that it will raise other defenses
including its assertion that it is not responsible for the incidents as it had no control over the security
checkpoints through which the hijackers allegedly gained access to the hijacked aircraft. As of the end
of the year, only 26 pending claims remain, down from the peak of 101 claims. While the ultimate
number of claims is likely to decrease, there is a remote possibility that they could rise as a result of
potential environmental claims, which are not subject to the standard statute of limitation.

From time to time, claims are made against Independence Air with respect to activities arising
from its airline operations. Typically these involve injuries or damages incurred by passengers and are
considered routine to the industry. On April 1, 2002, one of Independence Air’s insurers on its
comprehensive aviation liability policy, Legion Insurance Company, a subsidiary of Mutual Risk
Management Ltd. (“Legion”), was placed into rehabilitation by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, its
state of incorporation. The rehabilitation proceeding is styled Koken v. Legion Insurance Company,
No. 183 M.D. 2002 (Pa. Commw. Ct.), and is before Judge Leavitt. Currently, Legion can pay no
claims, expenses or other items of debt without approval from Pennsylvania, resulting in Independence
Air directly carrying the corresponding exposure related to Legion’s contribution percentage for
payouts of claims and expenses that Legion represented on Independence Air’s all-risk hull and liability
insurance for the 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002 policy years. Those contribution percentages are 15% for
claims arising from incidents occurring in 1999, 19% for 2000, 15% for 2001, and 8.5% for the first
quarter of 2002. Legion ceased to be an insurer for Independence Air as of April 1, 2002, and there is,
therefore, no exposure with respect to Legion for claims arising after that date.

The insurance held by Legion on Independence Air’s policy was fully covered by reinsurance,
which means that other carriers are contractually obligated to cover all claims that are direct
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obligations of Legion. The Company believes that a “cut-through” provision exists that causes funds to
pass directly from the reinsurers to Independence Air in situations such as the rehabilitation or
insolvency of a primary insurer. Other companies, including American Airlines, Inc. (“American”), have
similar policy provisions. American intervened in the Legion rehabilitation and moved to have its
cut-through provisions enforced. On June 26, 2003, the Pennsylvania Commonwealth Court entered an
order enforcing American’s cut-through provisions. The Court ruled that the reinsurance contract
proceeds at issue were not general assets of the Legion estate. On July 25, 2003, the Court entered an
Order of Liquidation that incorporated the June 26, 2003 ruling. The Order provides a means whereby
a company can intervene to assert rights to its own reinsurance. The Insurance Commissioner and
others appealed. The appeal remains outstanding. Independence Air intervened in the matter and, after
consideration, the Court held on April 5, 2004, that Independence Air’s reinsurance policies contain an
unambiguous cut-through provision that provides Independence Air with direct access to reinsurance
proceeds in the event of Legion’s insolvency or rehabilitation. That ruling is now on appeal. If the
appeals related to Independence Air’s and American’s reinsurance are upheld, the Legion shortfall
should be fully covered by reinsurance. However, if the rulings are overturned on appeal, Independence
Air will likely be underinsured for these claims at the percentages set forth above. This underinsurance
would include September 11 related lawsuits and any other similar lawsuits that are brought against
Independence Air. Independence Air has accrued what it believes are adequate reserves for its likely
exposure on claims known to date. No reserves have been accrued for the September 11 related claims.

During the month of October 2004, Independence Air voluntarily reported to the FAA that certain
maintenance inspection tasks had not been performed in a timely manner with respect to certain CRJ
aircraft. In all but one case, these inspection tasks were accomplished immediately upon Independence
Air’s finding of each issue. The reports of these Company actions prompted the FAA to begin a review
of certain aspects of Independence Air’s maintenance tracking procedures, which review is continuing.
The outcome of this review cannot be predicted at this time, but could result in additional fines or
actions by the FAA.

Independence Air also is the subject of ongoing FAA and TSA civil penalty cases relating to
alleged violations of FAA and TSA enforced rules and regulations. Independence Air believes that the
number of such cases and the amount of the civil penalties sought by the FAA and TSA is consistent
with the experience of other airlines with operations of the size and scope of those provided by
Independence Air, and that the disposition of these cases is not likely to have a material effect on the
Company’s financial position or the results of its operations.

FLYi, Inc. is a party to a legal proceeding in the Department of Labor involving a former
employee of Atlantic Coast Airlines, Stacey M. Platone, who alleges that she was terminated from
employment in violation of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for reporting what she believed to be an improper
arrangement between Atlantic Coast Airlines and one of its unions. The complainant’s allegations were
investigated by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), the Labor Department
agency with responsibility for investigating allegations of Sarbanes-Oxley employment violations; in
July 2003 OSHA found the complaint to be without merit. The complainant filed objections to the
decision, and on April 30, 2004, a Labor Department administrative law judge ruled that the
complainant had been improperly terminated from employment, although the judge also found that
legitimate grounds had existed to terminate the complainant’s employment. In the decision, the judge
has ordered that the complainant be paid back pay and benefits, and the costs and expenses of
litigation, including attorney’s fees. FLYi, Inc. believes that this case was wrongly decided and is
vigorously pursuing the appeal. The Labor Department’s Administrative Review Board granted the
Company’s petition for review of the judge’s decision on July 30, 2004. The parties have submitted
briefs to the Board and are awaiting its decision. The Company intends to vigorously pursue the
appeal.
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The Company and the Air Line Pilots Association (“ALPA”) have not been able to agree over the
interpretation of the collective bargaining agreement with respect to the cancellation in March 2003 of
certain pilot vacancies. Under the Railway Labor Act, the parties have submitted the issue of the
interpretation of the labor agreement to arbitration. If ALPA’s position is upheld, the arbitrator will
determine whether any amounts are owed by the Company.

One party participating as a lender in the leveraged lease of a single CRJ aircraft declined to
participate in negotiations to restructure the transaction, and chose to exercise its available remedies
following the Company’s failure to pay the aircraft’s lease rents when due. On January 27, 2005, the
Company was served with a lawsuit in the Superior Court of the State of New York seeking, among
other things, termination of the lease, repossession of the aircraft and damages resulting from the early
termination. Because of the obligation to mitigate damages with respect to the aircraft, the Company
cannot assess the amount, if any, that will ultimately be recovered in damages. The Company has
turned over possession of this aircraft to the lender.

In addition to those matters discussed above, the Company is a party to routine litigation all of
which is viewed to be incidental to its business, and none of which the Company believes are likely to
have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or the results of its operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2004, to a vote of the
security holders of the Company through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise.
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PART 1I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

The Company’s common stock, par value $.02 per share (the “Common Stock™), is traded on the
NASDAQ National Market (“NASDAQ/NM”). Trading of the Common Stock commenced on July 21,
1993. Prior to August 4, 2004 the Company’s stock symbol was “ACAI” and on and after that date it
has been “FLYI”.

The following table sets forth the reported high and low closing sale prices of the Common Stock
on the NASDAQ/NM for the periods indicated:

High Low
2003
First qUarter . . . ... ... $14.54  $5.50
Second quarter .. ... ... $13.31 $6.38
Third quarter ... ... ... ... $11.16  $7.02
Fourth quarter . ............ ..o $12.68 $8.54
2004
First qUarter . . . ... ... $10.17 $6.77
Second quarter .. ... ... $ 7.82 $5.33
Third quarter . ... ... ... ... $ 5.61 $3.56
Fourth quarter . ............ ..ot $ 404 $1.23
2005
First quarter (through March 1) .. ... ... ... ... .. .. ...... $ 2.06 $1.40

As of March 1, 2005, the closing sales price of the Common Stock on NASDAQ/NM was $1.45 per
share and there were approximately 205 holders of record of Common Stock.

The Company has not paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock and does not anticipate
paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The Company intends to retain earnings, if any, to
finance the growth of its operations. The payment of cash dividends in the future will depend upon
such factors as earnings levels, capital requirements, the Company’s financial condition, the applicability
of any restrictions imposed upon the Company subsidiaries by certain of its financing agreements, the
prohibition of dividends imposed by the Company’s line of credit, and other factors deemed relevant by
the Board of Directors. In addition, FLYi, INC. is a holding company and its only significant asset is its
investment in its subsidiary, Independence Air.

The Company’s Board of Directors has approved the repurchase of up to $40.0 million of the
Company’s outstanding common stock in open market or private transactions. As of December 31,
2003, the Company has repurchased 2,182,745 shares of its common stock and has approximately
$21.0 million remaining of the $40.0 million authorized for repurchase. The Company did not
repurchase any stock during 2004 and has no plans to repurchase stock in 2005.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data under the captions “Consolidated Financial Data” and
“Consolidated Balance Sheet Data” as of and for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003
and 2004 have been derived from the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The following
selected operating data under the caption “Selected Operating Data” have been derived from Company
records. The data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Results of Operations and Financial Condition” and the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes
thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report to Stockholders.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts and operating data)

Consolidated Financial Data:
Operating revenues:

Passenger......... ... ... .. .. . ...

Other

Total operating revenues . . .. ............

Operating expenses:
Salaries and related costs

Aircraft fuel . . . ....... ... ... ... ... ...
Aircraft maintenance and materials . . . ... ..

Aircraft rentals

Sales and marketing . . .................
Facility rents and landing fees . ... ........

Depreciation and amortization
Other

Loss on sale of aircraft . .. ..............

Aircraft early retirement and impairment
charges(®

Total operating expenses . . .. ............

Operating income (loss) . . ................

Other (expense) income:

Interest expense . . . ... ... .. ...

Interest income
Government compensation®

Other income (expense), net.............

Total other (expense) income, net. ..........

Income (loss)from continuing operations before
income tax expense
Income tax provision (benefit)

Income (loss) from continuing operations

Discontinued operations, net® ... ..., ... ...

Net income (loss)

Years ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
$425279 $477,011 $612,974 $713,724 $ 491,685
4280 1446 11421 16,752 8,404
429,559 478,457 624395 730,476 500,089
97,062 135646 169,630 180,759 185,152
60,777 68,506 93,038 114,117 139,858
35375 44543 61249 66937 60,746
55814 65248 88305 105529 100,318
57275 16,009 20293 24751 46,540
19,137 26854 37,035 45005 50,314
10958 13,533 17,966 24,604 32,937
36,857 48918 72,549 81,149 83,944
— — — — 17,062
28996 23026 24331 (27.654) 48,512
402,251 442,283 584396 615,197 765,383
27308 36,174 39999 115279 (265294)
(6,030) (4.832) (4332) (6502) (14,715)
5033 7500 4,628 2,549 5,264
— 9710 944 1,520 —
(278) 263 552 (220) (419)
(1275) 12641 1,792 (2,653)  (9,870)
26,033 48815 41,791 112,626 (275,164)
7,657 19336 16307 43,678  (74,025)
18376 29479 25484 68948 (201,139)
(3221) 4843 13802 13,850 8,966
$ 15155 $ 34,322 $ 39,286 $ 82,798 $(192,173)
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA (continued)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts and operating data)

Income (loss) per share:
Basic:
Income (loss) from continuing
operations . ..................
Discontinued operations. . .........

Net income (loss) per sharep® .. ... ..

Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing
operations . ..................
Discontinued operations. ... .......

Net income (loss) per share® ... ... ..

Weighted average number of shares used
in computation (in thousands)®
Basic ......... ... o il
Diluted. .. ................ ... ...
Selected Operating Data (from
continuing operations):
Revenue departures (completed) . .. ...
Revenue passengers carried . ... ......
Revenue passenger miles (000s)© .. . ..
Available seat miles (000s)? ... ......
Passenger load factor® . ............
Revenue per available seat mile . . . . ...
Cost per available seat mile® .. ... ...
Average yield per revenue passenger
mile@ .o
Average passenger trip length (miles) . . .
Revenue per departure™ .. ... ... ...
Aircraft utilization (block hours) . ... ..
Average cost per gallon of fuel (cents) . .
Aircraft in service (end of period) .. ...
Destinations served (end of period) . . . .

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital . . . ........ ... . ...
Total assets . .. ...................
Long-term debt and capital leases, less
current portion . ................
Total stockholders’ equity ...........

Years ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
$ 46 S 68 $ 56 8 152 % (4.44)
(.08) 11 31 31 20
$ 38 8 79 $ 87 8 183 $ (424
$ 43§ 65 $ 558 152 % (444
(.07) 11 30 30 20
$ 36 $ 76 $ 85§ 182 % (429
40,150 43434 45047 45285 45,337
43,638 45210 46,019 45398 45,337
192,782 208,637 211,093 209,076 196,197
3,685,361 4,486,640 5,750,993 6,642,578 5,619,482
1,234,918 1,699,403 2,374,760 2,871,266 2,274,048
2,128,735 2,918,466 3,597,463 3,947,836 3,745,902
58.0% 58.2% 66.0% 72.7% 60.7%
$ 0200 $ 0163 $ 0170 $ 0181 $  0.131
$ 0189 $ 0152 $ 0162 $ 0156 $  0.204
$ 0344 $ 0281 $ 0258 $ 0249 $  0.216
335 379 413 432 405
$ 2206 $ 2286 $ 2904 $ 3414 $ 2,506
7.9 8.2 8.8 8.0 8.2
110.5 100.0 102.5 112.7 142.6
89 85 104 112 87
53 58 69 66 40
$ 72018 $ 138,659 $ 197,631 $ 270,849 $ 187,780
382,700 452,425 575,138 783,244 677,658
67,080 60,643 54291 134,327 231,270
168,173 221,300 275368 359414 167,134

(1) In 2004, the Company recorded a $48.5 million aircraft early retirement charge for the remaining
J-41 turboprop aircraft in connection with the termination of the United Express programs. In
2003, the Company recorded an operating credit totaling $27.7 million ($16.9 million net of income
tax) for the early retirement of J-41 turboprop aircraft. The $27.7 million credit included a reversal
of $34.6 million in pretax early aircraft retirement charges that had been recorded in prior periods,
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and $6.9 million of early retirement charges represents the present value of future lease and other
costs associated with the retirement of 2 leased J-41 turboprop aircraft during the fourth quarter
2003. In 2002, the Company recorded an operating charge of $24.5 million ($14.8 million net of
income tax benefits) for the non-discounted value of future lease and other costs associated with
the early retirement of 18 J-41 turboprop aircraft. In the second quarter of 2002 the Company
revised the retirement schedule for its leased J-41s. Included in the operating charge for 2002 was
a credit of $4.8 million ($2.9 million net of income tax benefits) to reverse a portion of the
operating charge booked in 2001. In addition, in 2002, the Company reversed the remaining
portion of the original 2000 operating charge of $0.2 million. In 2001, the Company recorded an
operating charge of $23.5 million ($14.0 million net of income tax benefits) for the non-discounted
value of future lease and other costs associated with the early retirement of nine J-41 turboprop
aircraft. In 2000, the Company recorded an operating charge of $29.0 million ($17.4 million net of
income tax benefits) for the present value of future lease and other costs associated with the early
retirement of 28 J-32 turboprop aircraft. Upon completion of the J-32 retirement plan in 2001, the
Company reversed $0.5 million of the original 2000 operating charge in 2001.

In 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized $1.5 million, $0.9 million and $9.7 million
respectively as non-operating income for funds received under the Air Transportation Safety and
System Stabilization Act, signed into law by President Bush on September 22, 2001.

In November 2004, the Company ceased operating the 328Jet fleet as a Delta Connection carrier
and placed the 328Jets into temporary storage pending the lease assignment of 30 328Jets to Delta
Air Lines. The Company does not plan to operate the 328Jet or provide service on any of the
routes which it flew as a Delta Connection carrier as part of Independence Air and expects the
revenue and expenses that had been associated with the Delta Connection operation to be
non-recurring in future operations. As a result, the Company is now accounting for the direct
operating revenues and expenses of the Delta Connection code share agreement as discontinued
operations. Since Independence Air continues to operate the CRIJs that were utilized in the United
Express operation and also is operating many of the same routes previously flown as United
Express, the termination of the United Express code share agreement is not considered a
discontinued operation.

The results from the Delta Connection operation have been excluded from the statement of
operations and selected operating data and are shown net of related income tax as discontinued
operations.

All per share calculations have been restated to reflect a 2-for-1 Common Stock split effected as
dividends distributed on February 23, 2001.

“Revenue passenger miles” or “RPMs” represent the number of miles flown by revenue
passengers.

“Available seat miles” or “ASMs” represent the number of seats available for passengers multiplied
by the number of scheduled miles the seats are flown.

“Passenger load factor” represents the percentage of seats filled by revenue passengers and is
calculated by dividing revenue passenger miles by available seat miles.

“Operating cost per available seat mile” or “CASM” represents total operating expenses divided
by available seat miles.

(10) “Average yield per revenue passenger mile” represents the average passenger revenue received for

each mile a revenue passenger is carried.

(11) “Revenue per departure” represents the revenue received for each departure and is calculated by

dividing gross passenger revenue by revenue departures.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition
Overview

During 2004, TA effected its transformation into an independent low-fare airline operating as
Independence Air. Beginning in June 2004 and ending in August 2004, Independence Air transitioned
the CRIJ fleet which had been flying under the United Express code share agreement into the
Independence Air operation, and early retired its remaining J-41 turboprop aircraft that had been used
in United Express operations. In October and November 2004, Independence Air ceased operating the
328Jet fleet as a Delta Connection carrier and placed the 328Jets into temporary storage pending the
lease assignment of 30 328Jets to Delta Air Lines. As a result of discontinuing use of the 328Jets, the
Company is now accounting for the direct operating revenues and expenses of the Delta Connection
code share agreement as a discontinued operation for all periods presented. (see footnote 14 to the
consolidated financial statements) At the Company’s 2004 annual stockholder meeting, stockholders
approved the proposal to change the name of the Company to FLYi, Inc. from its prior name, Atlantic
Coast Airlines Holdings, Inc. Prior to the opening of trading on August 4, 2004, the corporate name
change and its stock ticker symbol on the NASDAQ National Market was changed from ACAI to
FLYI, mirroring the Independence Air web address www.FLYi.com. With the completion of the Delta
code share agreement, FLYi, Inc. officially changed the name of its primary operating subsidiary,
Atlantic Coast Airlines, to Independence Air, Inc. on November 5, 2004.

In 2004, the Company recorded a loss from continuing operations of $201.1 million compared to
income of $68.9 million for 2003, and $25.5 million for 2002. For 2004, Independence Air’s available
seat miles (“ASMs”) from continuing operations decreased 5.1% with the termination of the United
Express program during the year. For 2004, the number of total passengers from continuing operations
decreased 15.4%, and revenue passenger miles (“RPMs”) decreased 20.8%, attributable primarily to
lost aircraft availability during the time the CRJs left United Express service until the time they began
Independence Air service. For 2003 results from continuing operations as compared to 2002 results
from continuing operations, Independence Air’s ASMs increased 9.7% with the addition of 13 CRJ
aircraft, net of the reduction of five J-41 aircraft during the year. The number of total passengers
increased 15.5%, and RPMs increased 20.9% in 2003.

The Company’s past financial performance and operating results under United Express and Delta
Connection operations will have no effect and no bearing on the financial performance or operating
results of Independence Air. The Company expects to incur operating losses for 2005 and at least the
first quarter of 2006. The extent and duration of such losses depends upon factors such as the price of
fuel and the ability of the Company to market the Independence Air product as it expands with the
Airbus A319 aircraft and to increase load factor and fares in an extremely competitive industry
environment.

As discussed in this Annual Report to Stockholders, the Company has incurred significant losses
and negative cash flows from operations since it began operating as Independence Air and as a result is
faced with significant liquidity challenges. In late February 2005, the Company entered into agreements
to restructure its aircraft obligations that relieve it of certain obligations and will allow it to defer a
significant amount of cash payments into future periods. However, even with the restructuring, the
Company expects to continue to incur losses. The Company’s ability to pay its debt and meet its other
obligations as they become due is dependent upon its Independence Air operations meeting operating
projections that include revenues at levels that have not been achieved to date and reductions in costs.
Such matters raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of
this uncertainty.
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Results of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2004 Compared to Year ended December 31, 2003

For 2004, the Company’s net loss was $192.2 million or $4.24 per diluted share, compared to net
income of $82.8 million or $1.82 per diluted share for 2003. Excluding the results of the discontinuation
of the Delta Connection operation, the net loss for 2004 was $201.1 million as compared to net income
of $68.9 million for 2003, while generating an operating loss of $265.3 million for 2004 compared to
operating income of $115.3 million for 2003. These results reflect the Company’s completion of its
agreements with United and transformation into Independence Air. The following factors contributed
to the net loss from continuing operations incurred during 2004:

e charges for the carly retirement of J-41s from the United Express program;
* start-up costs associated with the launch of Independence Air operations;
* interest expense related to the issuance of $125.0 million convertible notes;
* an increase in fuel prices;
* an increase in professional and legal fees related to the restructuring of aircraft financing; and
* lower than anticipated revenues for Independence Air as a result of lower load factors and
yields.
Operating Revenues

The Company’s operating revenues from continuing operations decreased 31.5% to $500.1 million
in 2004 compared to $730.5 million in 2003. Passenger revenues decreased in 2004 due to the
termination of the United Express operations on August 3, and the transition of the Company’s
revenue base from a fee-per-departure code share model to one dependent on Independence Air ticket
sales. United code share revenue decreased $364.5 million to $350.4 million for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2004, primarily reflecting the transition out of the United Express program that
commenced on June 16, 2004 and was completed on August 3, 2004. Independence Air revenue was
$141.3 million for the period from the commencement of its operation on June 16 through
December 31, 2004, with an average load factor during that time of 49.8%.
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Operating Expenses

A summary of operating expenses from continuing operations as a percentage of operating revenue
and operating cost per ASM for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2004

Percent of Cost Percent of Cost

Operating Per ASM  Operating Per ASM
Revenues (cents) Revenues (cents)
Salaries and related costs . .. .......... ... ... . ... ..., 24.7% 4.6 37.0% 5.0
Aircraft fuel . ....... ... .. . ... 15.6% 2.9 28.0% 3.7
Aircraft maintenance and materials . . .. ................ 9.2% 1.7 12.1% 1.6
Aircraft rentals .. ...... ... ... .. .. .. .. 14.4% 2.7 20.1% 2.7
Sales and marketing . . . ....... ... . ... 3.4% 0.6 9.3% 1.2
Facility rents and landing fees. ... ................. ... 6.2% 1.1 10.1% 1.3
Depreciation and amortization . ...................... 3.4% 0.6 6.6% 0.9
Other . ... . e 11.1% 2.1 16.7% 2.2
Loss on sale of aircraft. . ........................... — — 3.4% 0.5
Aircraft early retirement charge . ..................... (3.8%) (0.7) 9.7% 1.3
Total ... 84.2% 15.6 153.0% 20.4

The Company’s operating expenses from continuing operations increased 24.4% to $765.4 million
or cost per available seat mile (“CASM”) of 20.4 cents in 2004 compared to $615.2 million or CASM
of 15.6 cents in 2003. Operating expenses for 2004 include early aircraft retirement charges on J-41
aircraft of $48.5 million and the loss on sale of aircraft of $17.1 million. In addition, the Company
incurred an additional $21.8 million of sales and marketing costs related to the Independence Air
brand launch, $25.7 million increase in fuel costs, and a $8.3 million increase in depreciation and
amortization expense attributable to the $1.6 million impairment of goodwill and the full year
depreciation cost of the CRJ aircraft purchased during 2003. These increases in expenses were offset by
decreases in aircraft rental expense due to the retirement of the J-41 fleet and a decrease of
$6.2 million in aircraft maintenance costs. Operating expenses for 2003 include a credit of $27.7 million
for the reversal of the J-41 retirement charges recognized in prior years of $34.6 million offset by 2003
retirement charges of $6.9 million. Operating expenses for 2003 also include $9.6 million pre-tax in
costs related to the defense by the Company against a hostile takeover bid and a credit of $1.2 million
pre-tax for adjustment to the reserve recorded in 2001 related to the actual payment made by the
Company related to its 401(k) plan being lower than the original estimate.

The lost utilization of CRJs while they were being converted to Independence Air livery and
refurbished following transition out of the United Express program and the removal of J-41s during the
year ended 2004 resulted in a 5.1% decrease in ASMs for the twelve months ended December 31,
2004. Changes in relative costs per ASM that are not primarily attributable to the changes in capacity
are as follows:

Salaries and related costs per ASM increased 8.7% to 5.0 cents in 2004 as compared to 4.6 cents
in 2003. This increase in salaries and related costs per ASM is due to an increase in the number of
customer service and reservation agents necessary to support Independence Air operations, merit
increases for salaried workers and wage scale increases for hourly workers.

The cost per ASM for aircraft fuel increased 27.6% to 3.7 cents for 2004 compared to 2.9 cents for
2003. The increase is primarily the result of the 26.5% increase in the average cost per gallon of fuel to
$1.43 for 2004 from $1.13 for 2003.
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Aircraft rental cost per ASM remained consistent at 2.7 cents for 2004 and 2003. In absolute
dollars, aircraft rental expense decreased by $5.2 million from 2003 to 2004 due to the retirement of
the J-41 fleet during the year.

Aircraft maintenance and materials decreased by $6.2 million or 9.2% to $60.7 million in 2004
from $66.9 million in 2003. The decrease is primarily due to $10.5 million of credits to aircraft
maintenance and materials as a result of a favorable settlement resulting from terminating the original
CRJ engine power-by-the-hour maintenance agreement, offset in part by $3.1 million in painting costs
related to the transition from United livery to Independence Air livery for the CRIJs as well as by
increases in maintenance expense as the CRJ and 328JET fleets continue to age and as manufacturer
warranties for the CRIJs expire. The cost per ASM for aircraft maintenance and materials decreased
from 1.7 cents in 2003 to 1.6 cents in 2004. Excluding the $3.1 million costs to repaint the CRJ fleet
and the $10.5 million credit for terminating the PBH agreement, maintenance cost per ASM would
have been 1.8 cents for 2004.

The cost per ASM of sales and marketing increased 100.0% to 1.2 cents in 2004 from 0.6 cents in
2003 due primarily to the initiation of a marketing program designed to advertise the launch of services
for Independence Air. The costs include direct advertising via print, television, radio media and
strategic partnerships. This increase in costs related to the marketing of the Independence Air brand is
partially offset by decreases in computer reservation fees that were incurred under United Express
operations, and which were expensed as incurred. These computer reservation fees significantly
decreased due to the termination of the United Express operation on August 3, 2004.

Cost per ASM of facility rents and landing fees increased 0.2 cents or 18.2% to 1.3 cents in 2004
from 1.1 cents for 2003. The increase is primarily the result of increases in landing fees and facility
rents charged by airports in the current year and the addition of the heavier A319 aircraft partially
offset by the early retirement of the lighter J-41 turboprop fleet.

The cost per ASM of depreciation and amortization increased 50.0% to 0.9 cents for 2004 from 0.6
cents for 2003. In absolute dollars, depreciation and amortization increased 33.9% or $8.3 million, to
$32.9 million for 2004 from $24.6 million for 2003. The increase is due to the full year effect of
purchasing six CRJ aircraft in 2003. Additionally, the Company recorded an impairment charge of
$1.6 million to write-off goodwill related to the original formation of the Company.

The cost per ASM for other operating expenses increased to 2.2 cents for 2004 compared to 2.1
cents for 2003, or 4.8%. In absolute dollars, other operating expenses were $83.9 million in 2004
compared to $81.1 million for 2003. The increased other costs were primarily the result of legal and
professional fees resulting from costs related to the termination of the United and Delta code share
agreements and costs related to the restructuring of the Company’s aircraft financing, increased
accounting and professional fees to comply with the Sarbanes Oxley Act, and costs to complete
certification of the Airbus A319 aircraft. Other operating costs for 2003 included $9.6 million in legal
and professional fees incurred in the defense of the hostile takeover bid.

The Company sold four CRJ aircraft for $48 million to increase the Company’s liquidity during the
fourth quarter of 2004. As a result, the Company recognized a loss on sale of the four aircraft of
approximately $17.1 million.

The cost per ASM of aircraft early retirement charges increased from (0.7) cents in 2003 to 1.3
cents in 2004 due to the retirement of 21 leased J-41 aircraft from the United Express program in
2004. This compared to a credit to the aircraft early retirement charge of $27.7 million in 2003 related
to the reversal in 2003 of $34.6 million in aircraft early retirement charges previously recognized in
2001 and 2002 due to the delay in the retirement plan of the J-41 aircraft from the United Express
program.
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Other Income (Expense)

Interest expense increased from $6.5 million in 2003 to $14.7 million in 2004 primarily as a result
of issuance of $125.0 million of convertible debt during 2004. In addition, the Company recorded
interest expense of $1.4 million in 2004 related to the accretion of interest related to the early
retirement charges of J-41s retired during 2003 and 2004.

Interest income increased 106.5% to $5.3 million in 2004 from $2.5 million in 2003. This increase
is primarily the result of the capitalization of interest of $1.6 million related to the progress payments
to Airbus for the purchase of 16 single-aisle aircraft.

The Company recorded a tax benefit of $74.0 million for 2004 compared to a provision for income
taxes of $43.7 million in 2003. The Company’s effective tax rate was 26.9% in 2004 and 38.8% in 2003.
These rates reflect various state income tax credits and continuing changes in apportionment of taxable
income to states in which the Company and Independence Air does business. The effective tax rates
also reflect non-deductible permanent differences between taxable and book income. The tax benefit
for 2004 was less than expected due to recording of the valuation allowance against the remaining net
deferred tax assets as the Company determined that it is more likely than not that the Company would
not be able to utilize the available net deferred tax assets at this time.

Year ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year ended December 31, 2002

For 2003, the Company’s net income was $82.8 million or $1.82 per diluted share, compared to
$39.3 million or $.85 per diluted share for 2002. Excluding discontinued operations, the Company’s net
income for 2003 was $68.9 million compared to $25.5 million for 2002. The Company generated
operating income from continuing operations of $115.3 million for 2003 compared to $40.0 million for
2002. These results reflect Independence Air’s increased capacity as it expanded the number of aircraft
operated under its agreements with United and Delta as well as the additional items and factors
discussed below.

In 2003, Independence Air had long-term lease commitments for 25 J-41 aircraft and owned five
J-41 aircraft. During 2002, the Company recorded aircraft early retirement operating charges totaling
$24.3 million ($14.6 million net of income tax) for the non-discounted value of future lease payments
and other costs associated with the planned retirement of its J-41 aircraft. During the second quarter of
2003, the Company reversed a portion of the J-41 retirement charges taken in previous years by
recording a $34.6 million credit ($20.4 million after tax) to income due to delays in Independence Air’s
retirement schedule for its J-41 turboprop fleet as a result of uncertainty over the Company’s
contractual relationship with United. Independence Air retired 2 leased J-41 aircraft in April 2003. The
charge for these aircraft was recorded in prior years. In the fourth quarter of 2003, Independence Air
retired 2 leased and 1 owned J-41 aircraft. The Company reported an early aircraft retirement charge
of $6.9 million for the leased aircraft and an impairment charge of $0.7 million for the owned aircraft.
Independence Air anticipated that it would retire all of its J-41 aircraft during 2004 and would record
charges upon retirement of each leased J-41 aircraft. The total pre-tax charge for the remaining aircraft
would be based on the present value of the future lease obligations and, assuming no remarketing
income, was estimated to be approximately $50 million.

The Company’s net income for 2003 and 2002 includes $1.5 million (pre-tax) and $0.9 million
(pre-tax), respectively in government compensation received pursuant to the Air Transportation Safety
and System Stabilization Act (“Stabilization Act”™).

Operating Revenues

The Company’s operating revenues from continuing operations increased 17.0% to $730.5 million
in 2003 compared to $624.4 million in 2002. The increase was due in part to a 17.6% increase in
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revenue per departure to $3,414 for 2003 compared to $2,904 for 2002, partially offset by a 1%
decrease in revenue departures. The increase in passenger revenue per departure resulted from
increased fuel costs for which Independence Air received reimbursement under its agreement with
United, increases in the 2003 rates with United, and increased incentive earnings under its agreement
due to improvements in operational performance.

Operating Expenses

A summary of operating expenses from continuing operations as a percentage of operating
revenues from continuing operations and operating cost per ASM for the years ended December 31,
2002 and 2003 is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2003
Percent of Cost Percent of Cost
Operating Per ASM  Operating Per ASM
Revenues (cents) Revenues (cents)
Salaries and related costs . . ........... ... .. ... .. ..., 27.2% 4.7 24.7% 4.6
Aircraft fuel . ....... ... .. ... . 14.9% 2.5 15.6% 29
Aircraft maintenance and materials . ... ................ 9.8% 1.7 9.2% 1.7
Aircraft rentals .. ...... ... ... .. .. .. .. 14.1% 2.5 14.4% 2.7
Sales and marketing . . . ....... ... ... 3.3% 0.6 3.4% 0.6
Facility rents and landing fees. ... ........ ... ... . ... 5.9% 1.0 6.2% 1.1
Depreciation and amortization . ...................... 2.9% 0.5 3.4% 0.6
Other . ... . e 11.6% 2.0 11.1% 2.1
Aircraft early retirement charge ................... ... 3.9% 0.7 (3.8%) 0.7)
Total ... 93.6% 16.2 84.2% 15.6

The Company’s operating expenses from continuing operations increased 5.3% to $615.2 million or
cost per available seat mile (“CASM”) of 15.6 cents in 2003 compared to $584.4 million or CASM of
16.2 cents in 2002. The Company’s operating expenses increased primarily as a result of increased
capacity, as available seat miles (ASMs) increased 9.7% to 3.9 billion in 2003 as compared to 3.6 billion
in 2002. Operating expenses for 2003 include a credit of $27.7 million for the reversal of the J-41
retirement charges recognized in prior years of $34.6 million offset by current year retirement charges
of $6.9 million and impairment charges of $0.7 million. Operating expenses for 2002 included a charge
of $24.3 million for aircraft early retirement charges. Operating expenses for 2003 also included
$9.6 million pre-tax in costs related to the defense by the Company against a hostile takeover bid and a
credit of $1.2 million pre-tax for adjustment to the reserve recorded in 2001 related to the estimated
payment to be made by the Company related to its 401K plan. The net effect of these charges and
credits was to increase CASM for 2003 by 0.5 cents and to decrease CASM for 2002 by 0.7 cents.
CASM changes that are not primarily attributable to the changes in capacity and the items described
above are as follows:

Salaries and related costs per ASM decreased 2.1% to 4.6 cents in 2003 as compared to 4.7 cents
in 2002. The decrease is the result of the elimination of employee incentive programs and other
reductions in payroll costs. In addition, the Company recognized a $1.2 million reduction in costs
related to an adjustment of the reserve for correction of operational defects found in the Company’s
401K plan during 2001 based on finalization of its voluntary compliance program application.

The cost per ASM for aircraft fuel increased 16.0% to 2.9 cents for 2003 compared to 2.5 cents for
2002. The increase is primarily the result of the 16.5% increase in the average cost per gallon of fuel to
$1.13 for 2003 from $0.97 for 2002.
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The cost per ASM for maintenance remained constant at 1.7 cents. In absolute dollars,
maintenance expense increased 9.3% to $66.9 million in 2003.

The cost per ASM of depreciation and amortization increased 20.0% to 0.6 cents for 2003 from 0.5
cents for 2002. In absolute dollars, depreciation and amortization increased 37.0% to $24.6 million for
2003 from $18.0 million for 2002. The increase is primarily a result of the purchase of eight regional
jets during the year, an impairment charge related to the retirement of one owned J-41 aircraft of
$0.7 million during the fourth quarter, accelerated depreciation associated with the anticipated early
retirement of J-41 aircraft owned by Independence Air, depreciation expense related to increased levels
of rotable equipment required for regional jets, and a full year of depreciation related to the
replacement of Independence Air’s computer software systems in the fourth quarter of 2002.

The cost per ASM for other operating expenses increased 5.0% to 2.1 cents for 2003. In absolute
dollars, other operating expenses in 2003, excluding the $9.6 million costs incurred in the defense of the
hostile takeover bid, were $71.5 million or 1.8 cents per ASM. In absolute dollars, other operating
expenses in 2002, excluding the $2.6 million bad debt expense for United and the $1.8 million in credits
from accrual reversals, were $71.7 million or 2.0 cents per ASM. The decrease in cost per ASM
resulted from a reduction in crew traveling and training costs as fewer planes were delivered in the
current year and a reduction in insurance premiums due to participation in the FAA insurance
program, offset in part by increases in costs related to the inclement weather experienced by the
Eastern and Midwestern United States during the first quarter of 2003, increases in property taxes,
costs incurred in preparation of the transition to a low-fare carrier business plan, and the $1.0 million
payment to Delta to remove contractual restrictions on the use of the Company’s ACJet subsidiary and
its operating certificate.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest expense increased from $4.3 million in 2002 to $6.5 million in 2003. The increase is the
result of additional debt incurred related to the delivery of six owned aircraft.

Interest income decreased 44.9% to $2.5 million in 2003 from $4.6 million in 2002. This decrease
is primarily the result of market rates earned on investments made in accordance with the Company’s
investment policies, the decision to invest in lower interest rate tax free securities, and the decision to
stop recording capitalized interest on aircraft deposits held by the aircraft manufacturers due to
uncertainty over actual delivery, partially offset by higher cash balances during 2003 as compared to
2002.

On September 22, 2001, President Bush signed into law the Stabilization Act. The Stabilization Act
provides cash grants to commercial air carriers as compensation for (1) direct losses incurred beginning
with the terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001 as a result of any FAA mandated ground stop order
issued by the Secretary of Transportation (and for any subsequent order which continues or renews
such a stoppage), and (2) incremental losses incurred during the period beginning September 11, 2001
and ending December 31, 2001 as a direct result of such attacks. Independence Air was entitled to
receive cash grants under these provisions. Independence Air received and recorded $1.5 million and
$0.9 million in government compensation in 2003 and 2002, respectively, under the provisions of the
Stabilization Act. The Company has recognized the cash grants under these provisions as non-operating
income under “government compensation” in 2003 and 2002. All amounts received as government
compensation are subject to audit and adjustment by the federal government for a period of up to five
years.

The Company recorded a provision for income taxes of $43.7 million for 2003 compared to a
provision for income taxes of $16.3 million in 2002. The Company’s effective tax rate was 38.8% in
2003 and 39.0% in 2002. These rates reflect various state income tax credits and continuing changes in
apportionment of taxable income to states in which the Company and Independence Air do business.
The effective tax rates also reflect non-deductible permanent differences between taxable and book
income.

43



Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments of
$169.2 million and working capital of $187.8 million compared to $297.9 million and $270.8 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2003. During the year ended December 31, 2004, cash and cash
equivalents decreased $90.7 million, reflecting net cash used by operating activities of $192.2 million,
net cash used in investing activities of $12.0 million mainly for property and equipment, and net cash
provided by financing activities of $113.5 million. Net cash provided by financing activitics was mainly
related to proceeds from issuance of convertible debt issued during 2004.

Capital Commitments and Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Independence Air’s business is very capital intensive, requiring significant amounts of capital to
fund the acquisition of assets, particularly aircraft. Independence Air funded the acquisition of its CRJ
aircraft primarily by entering into off-balance sheet financing arrangements known as leveraged leases,
in which third parties provide equity and debt financing to purchase the aircraft and simultaneously
enter into long-term agreements to lease the aircraft to Independence Air. Independence Air has
entered into agreements for the purchase of 16 Airbus A319 aircraft and the lease of 12 Airbus A319
aircraft. The 12 leased aircraft, of which eight have been delivered, will be traditional aircraft operating
leases with terms ranging from five to twelve years. Independence Air also has entered into long-term
lease commitments to ensure access to terminal, cargo, maintenance and other similar facilities. As can
be seen in the table below setting forth information as of December 31, 2004, these operating lease
commitments, including amounts to be due for the Airbus aircraft, are significant.

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter  Total

(in millions)

Long termdebt....................... $ 86 $17.7 $ 84 $105$ 81 $ 1855 $ 238.8
Capital lease obligations . ............... .6 .6 5 1 — — 1.8
Guaranteed simulator usage commitments . . . 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 7.3
Operating lease commitments® . ... ....... 188.2 1904 183.6 1726 1632 1,115.7 2,013.7
Aircraft purchase commitments'¢? . ... ... — 210.0 350.0 — — —  560.0
Other purchase commitments ............ 2.2 1.3 9 1.2 9 — 6.5
Total contractual capital commitments . .. ... $200.8 $421.2 $544.6 $185.6 $173.4 $1,302.5 $2,828.1

(1) Includes estimated amounts to be due for the remaining 20 Airbus narrowbody aircraft which are
to be delivered in 2005, 2006 and 2007.

(2) Excludes commitments for 34 CRIJ aircraft which are subject to certain conditions which, unless
waived by Independence Air by April 2005, can not be met as a result of United’s rejection of the
United Express agreements in bankruptcy court.
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As previously discussed, on February 18, 2005, the Company was successful in restructuring its
aircraft lease, loan and purchase commitments. The following table shows proforma information on the
Company’s restructured capital commitments including operating leases.

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total
(in millions)

Longtermdebt. . ..................... $ 23 $164$ 97 $ 119 $ 10.1 $1884 §$ 23838
Capital lease obligations . ............... .6 .6 5 1 — — 1.8
Guaranteed simulator usage commitments . . . 1.0 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 7.1
Operating lease commitments® . ... ....... 96.3 1155 1274 1253 1225 7064 1,293.4
Aircraft purchase commitments'¢? . ... ... — 210.0 350.0 — — — 560.0
Other purchase commitments ............ 2.2 1.3 9 1.2 9 — 6.5
Total contractual capital commitments . .. ... $102.4 $345.0 $489.7 $139.7 $134.7 $896.1 $2,107.6

(1) Includes estimated amounts to be due for the remaining 20 Airbus narrowbody aircraft which are
to be delivered in 2005, 2006 and 2007. Excludes; the 24 CRIJs to be returned to lessors in 2005,
the 30 328Jets to be assigned to Delta in 2005, and the 21 J-41 to be returned to lessors in 2005

(2) Excludes commitments for 34 CRIJ aircraft which are subject to certain conditions which, unless
waived by Independence Air by April 2005, can not be met as a result of United’s rejection of the
United Express agreements in bankruptcy court.

Also see Note 5 “Debt”, Note 6 “Obligations Under Capital Leases”, Note 7 “Operating Leases”,
Note 11 “Commitments and Contingencies”’, and Note 16 “Subsequent Events” in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of these items and off balance sheet
arrangements.

Independence Air also has a variety of other long-term contractual commitments that are of a
nature that, under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, are not required to be
reflected on the Company’s balance sheet, and that are not generally viewed as “off-balance sheet
financing arrangements,” such as commitments for major overhaul maintenance on aircraft and for
pilot training. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources—Other Commitments” below and “Business—Pilot
Training” above, and Note 1 “Summary of Accounting Policies—(k) Maintenance” and Note 10
“Commitments and Contingencies—Training” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional discussion of these items.

Aircraft

Since start-up, the Independence Air operation has incurred higher than anticipated losses as a
result of high jet fuel prices, lower than anticipated passenger levels and fierce competitive responses
from both legacy and other low fare airlines. The additional losses have caused Independence Air to
expend more cash than expected. As discussed in greater detail below, in early 2005 Independence Air
was able to restructure its aircraft lease and loan obligations on 52 CRI aircraft to revise the rental and
loan payment structure from semi-annual payments due mainly in January and July to monthly
payments and to defer approximately $70 million of the rent or loan payments that would have been
due between January 2005 and February 2007 over the remainder of the lease or loan term. In
addition, Independence Air has agreed to early terminate 24 CRJ leases by July 2005. Independence
Air has also negotiated early lease terminations on 21 of the J-41 turboprop aircraft that were early-
retired and are no longer in operation.

Independence Air has significant lease obligations for aircraft that are classified as operating leases
and, therefore, are not reflected as liabilities on the Company’s balance sheet. The remaining terms of
such leases range from one to fifteen years. The total rent expense in 2004 under all non-cancelable
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aircraft operating leases was approximately $100.3 million. As of December 31, 2004, the minimum
annual rental payments for 2005 under all non-cancelable aircraft operating leases with remaining terms
of more than one year were approximately $158.0 million. In order to minimize the total aircraft rental
expense over the entire life of the related aircraft leveraged lease transactions, Independence Air
originally had uneven semiannual lease payment dates of January 1 and July 1 for its CRJ aircraft. As
part of the restructuring of its aircraft financing completed on February 18, 2005, a portion of the lease
payments due between January 2005 and February 2007 have been deferred over the remaining term of
the leases and payment terms have now been changed to monthly for all of the remaining CRJs with
the exception of the six CRJs financed through the EETC transaction. In addition, Independence Air
has agreed to early terminate 24 CRJ and 21 J-41 leases during 2005 and has assigned the leases on 30
328Jets to Delta. As a result of these changes, the revised minimum annual rental payment for 2005 for
remaining non-cancelable aircraft operating leases with remaining terms of more than one year is now
approximately $75.4 million.

As of March 10, 2005, Independence Air had firm orders for 34 Bombardier CRJ200s (“CRJs”) in
addition to the 87 previously delivered, and options for 80 additional CRJs. These firm order
commitments are subject to certain conditions which, unless waived by Independence Air, can not be
satisfied now that United has rejected the United Express agreements in its bankruptcy proceedings. In
the event these conditions are not waived by Independence Air by April 2005, remaining deposits and
progress payments totaling $3.4 million will be returned to Independence Air.

Independence Air has taken delivery of eight leased Airbus 319 aircraft and expects to take
delivery of four additional leased A319s during April and May 2005. Independence Air also has
executed a purchase agreement with Airbus’ wholly-owned affiliate AVSA S.A.R.L. (“AVSA”) to
purchase 16 Airbus A319 aircraft with six scheduled for delivery in 2006 and ten scheduled for delivery
in 2007. The 16 aircraft being purchased directly from AVSA will require progress payment deposits to
be made to AVSA at set intervals prior to delivery that will peak at $78.8 million in late 2006, for
which Independence Air has arranged financing for $23.8 million. Independence Air has made deposits
totaling $55.8 million to date. 15 of the 16 aircraft also have backstop financing being provided by the
manufacturer if Independence Air is unable to secure commercial financing or sale-leaseback financing
under certain conditions. As part of the Airbus order, Independence Air is also committed to purchase
three spare V2500-A5 engines for the A319 from International Aero Engines beginning in 2006.

Independence Air has committed to return at least 24 CRJs and 21 J41s to their lessors during
2005, and has assigned the leases on 30 328s to Delta. The return of these aircraft includes various
delivery obligations involving the physical condition of the aircraft and the timing of the return.
Independence Air anticipates that the return of aircraft will be a significant undertaking for at least the
first two quarters of 2005, and there is the risk that the Company will incur significant unanticipated
expenses as a result of this project.

Cash Deferrals Related to Restructuring

As part of its restructuring efforts, Independence Air was able to negotiate for significant deferrals
of its cash obligations to later periods. Primarily, as stated above, approximately $70 million in CRJ
rent or loan payments that would have been due between January 2005 and February 2007 have been
deferred to later periods. Independence Air also deferred various other obligations to later periods. As
a result of these deferrals, the cash obligations for 2005 will be substantially less than for future
periods, when payments will not be deferred and when repayment of the deferred obligations will be
required. However, for accounting purposes, the Company will continue to expense leased assets
including aircraft based on the average cost over the remaining life of the lease. As a result, the lease
expense for 2005 will be substantially greater than the cash cost.
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Other Financing

In February 2004, the Company sold $125 million of Convertible Senior Notes (“Notes”). The
Notes have an interest rate of 6% and are convertible into Atlantic Coast Airlines Holdings, Inc.
common stock at a conversion rate of 90.2690 shares per $1,000 principal amount of the Notes (a
conversion price of approximately $11.08) once the Company’s common stock share price reaches 120%
of the conversion price or $13.30. The Notes mature in 2034 and interest is payable semi-annually
beginning August 15, 2004. The Company may redeem the Notes either in whole or in part beginning
2007 at the redemption price, plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any. The
holders may require the Company to repurchase the Notes on February 15 of 2009, 2014, 2019, 2024
and 2029 at a repurchase price equal to 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid
interest and liquidated damages, if any.

On July 31, 2003, Independence Air entered into a new agreement with Wachovia which replaced
a previous line of credit. This new agreement, which has no expiration date, provides for the issuance
of letters of credit, and is collateralized by certificates of deposit. Under this agreement, Independence
Air has $17.9 million on deposit with Wachovia as collateral for letters of credit issued on behalf of
Independence Air as of December 31, 2004. The amounts on deposit with Wachovia are shown as
restricted cash on the Company’s balance sheet under non-current assets as of December 31, 2003 and
2004 respectively.

In September 1997, approximately $112 million of pass through certificates were issued in a private
placement by separate pass through trusts, which purchased with the proceeds, equipment notes (the
“Equipment Notes”) issued in connection with (i) leveraged lease transactions relating to four J-41s
and six CRIJs, all of which were leased to Independence Air (the “Leased Aircraft”), and (ii) the
financing of four J-41s owned by Independence Air (the “Owned Aircraft”). The Equipment Notes
issued with respect to the Owned Aircraft are direct obligations of Independence Air, guaranteed by
FLYi and are included as debt obligations in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and in
the table above. The Equipment Notes issued with respect to the Leased Aircraft are not obligations of
Independence Air or guaranteed by FLYi.

Capital Equipment and Debt Service

In 2005, Independence Air anticipates capital spending of approximately $20.0 million consisting of
approximately $10.5 million for rotable spare parts and flight equipment, $4.5 million for ground and
maintenance equipment, $2.5 million for computer equipment, $1.8 million for facilities, and
$0.7 million for other capital assets, and expects to fund these capital expenditures out of working
capital. These amounts exclude A319 aircraft which will be accounted for as operating leases.

Principal payments on long term debt for 2005, after adjusting for the restructuring completed on
February 18, 2005, are estimated to be approximately $8.6 million reflecting borrowings related to the
purchase of five J-41s acquired in 1997 and 1998, four CRJs acquired in 1998 and 1999, and four CRJs
acquired in 2003.

Other Commitments

Independence Air’s jet fleet is comprised of new aircraft with an average age of four years. Since
maintenance expense on new aircraft is lower in the early years of operation due to manufacturers’
warranties and the generally lower failure rates of major components, the maintenance expense for jet
aircraft is expected to increase in future periods.

In 2004, Independence Air and GE Engine Services, Inc. (“GE”) reached agreement on the
termination of the power by the hour agreement covering the scheduled and unscheduled repair of
ACAs CRI jet engines, operated on the first 66 CRJs delivered. Independence Air then reached
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agreement with Chromalloy Gas Turbine Corporation (“Chromalloy”) on a new CF34 Engine Fleet
Program Overhaul and Maintenance Agreement covering all of its CRJ engines. The terms of the new
agreement operates similarly to the previous GE agreement, where Independence Air pays a set dollar
amount per engine hour flown on a monthly basis to Chromalloy and Chromalloy assumes the
responsibility to repair the engines when required at no additional expense to Independence Air,
subject to certain exclusions. Independence Air’s future maintenance expense on CRJ engines covered
under the agreement will escalate based on contractual rate increases, intended to match the timing of
actual maintenance events that are due pursuant to the terms. The Company expenses aircraft
maintenance based upon the amount paid to GE or Chromalloy under the agreements, as engine hours
are flown.

Effective September 2001, Independence Air entered a maintenance agreement with Air Canada
covering maintenance, repair and overhaul services for airframe components on its CRJ aircraft. Under
the terms of this agreement, Independence Air pays a varying amount per flight hour each month,
based on the age of the aircraft. Independence Air expenses the amount paid to Air Canada based on
the rates stipulated in the agreement and the hours flown each month. Independence Air also has
entered into a short-term agreement with another party covering the scheduled airframe C-check
overhaul of its CRJ aircraft. Independence Air is in negotiations for additional maintenance
agreements covering its CRJ and Airbus aircraft.

Independence Air has entered into agreements with Pan Am International Flight Academy
(“PAIFA”), which allow it to train CRJ pilots at PAIFA’s facility near Washington-Dulles. This facility
currently houses three CRJ simulators. Independence Air has agreements to purchase an annual
minimum number of CRJ simulator training hours at agreed rates through 2010. In early 2005,
Independence Air amended its agreements with PAIFA to reduce its simulator costs for 2005. Payment
obligations for CRJ simulator usage over the remaining years of the agreements now total
approximately $7.1 million.

The Company has committed to provide its senior executive officers a deferred compensation plan
which utilizes split dollar life insurance policies, and for a certain officer, a make-whole provision for
taxes, post retirement salary based on ending salary, and post retirement benefits based on benefits
similar to those currently provided to the executive while actively employed. The Company has
estimated the cost of the deferred compensation and tax gross up feature, future salary and future
benefits and is accruing this cost over the remaining required service time of the executive officers. The
Company expensed $1.8 million, $2.5 million and $2.6 million for these benefits for the year ending
December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively. The Company expects to recognize these costs
annually over the remaining service life of the senior executives.

The Company’s Board of Directors has approved the repurchase of up to $40.0 million of the
Company’s outstanding common stock in open market or private transactions. During 2003 the
Company purchased 10,901 shares from employees to satisfy income taxes due resulting from the
vesting of restricted shares. The Company did not repurchase any stock during 2004 and has no plans
to repurchase stock in 2005.

As discussed in this Annual Report to Stockholders, the Company has incurred significant losses
and negative cash flows from operations since it began operating as Independence Air and as a result is
faced with significant liquidity challenges. In late February 2005, the Company entered into agreements
to restructure its aircraft obligations that relieve it of certain obligations and will allow it to defer a
significant amount of cash payments into future periods. However, even with the restructuring, the
Company expects to continue to incur losses. The Company’s ability to pay its debt and meet its other
obligations as they become due is dependent upon its Independence Air operations meeting operating
projections that include revenues at levels that have not been achieved to date and reductions in costs.
Such matters raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
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consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of
this uncertainty.

Even if the Company is able to achieve its 2005 operating and cost reduction objectives,
Independence Air’s industry environment is highly uncertain and volatile at this time. Future events
could affect the industry or the Company in ways that are not presently anticipated that could further
adversely affect the Company’s liquidity. Cash balances and cash flow from operations together with
operating lease financing and other available equipment financing may not be sufficient to enable the
Company to meet its working capital needs, expected operating lease financing commitments, other
capital expenditures, and debt service requirements as they come due for the remainder of 2005 and
into 2006. The Company continues to evaluate opportunities to finance the acquisition of aircraft,
engage in other financing transactions, sell additional equity or debt securities, enter into credit
facilities with lenders, or sell underutilized assets, as well as opportunities to enter into arrangements
with other carriers that would supplement or substitute for its Independence Air operations with
respect to some or all of its operations or aircraft, all for either strategic reasons or to further
strengthen our financial position. The sale of additional equity or convertible debt securities would
likely be dilutive to our stockholders. If the assumptions underlying the Independence Air business
model prove to be incorrect in any material adverse respect and the Company is unable to sell assets or
access the capital markets, resulting in available cash, cash equivalents, and short term investments
declining to an unacceptable level, the Company would need to seek protection under Chapter 11 of
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.

Inflation

Inflation has not had a material effect on the Company’s operations in the past because the
agreements with United and Delta provided for fee-for-service rates to be adjusted annually and for it
to be reimbursed for the cost of fuel. Inflation, and in particular changes in the costs of fuel, could
affect the Company’s operations. (See discussion on Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about
Market Risk, item 7A.)

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires the Company’s management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. The
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission has defined a company’s most critical accounting policies as
the ones that are most important to the portrayal of the company’s financial condition and results, and
which require the company to make its most difficult and subjective judgments, often as a result of the
need to make estimates of matters that are inherently uncertain. Based on this definition, the Company
has identified its critical accounting policies as including those addressed below. The Company also has
other key accounting policies, which involve the use of estimates, judgments and assumptions: See
Note 1 “Summary of Accounting Policies” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional discussion of these items. Management believes that its estimates and assumptions are
reasonable, based upon information presently available; however, actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Revenue Recognition: Passenger revenues are recorded as operating revenues at the time
transportation is provided. Under the Independence Air operations, the Company recognizes passenger
revenue when the transportation has been provided. Under the Company’s fee-per-departure and
fee-per-block hour agreements, transportation was considered provided when the flight had been
completed. For Independence Air flying, passenger revenue is the amount paid by the passenger for the
segment flown. All fares sold by Independence Air are non-refundable but travel itineraries may be
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changed subject to a change fee charge. Revenue from change fee charges are recorded as other
revenue as incurred. Under the fee-per-departure and fee-per-block hour contracts with United and
Delta, respectively, revenue was the product of the agreed upon rate and the number of departures or
the number of block hours flown. Rates were generally agreed to on an annual basis and were subject
to adjustments upon certain specified events, such as changes in cities served or in aircraft utilization
levels. Until rates were agreed to each year with United and Delta or were adjusted in response to
specified events, the Company was required to estimate these rates and record revenue based upon
such estimates until final rates were agreed to by either United or Delta. In addition, certain incentive
payments were recorded based upon the Company’s assessment of its satisfaction of specific and
measurable operational performance criteria and were subject to review by United or Delta.

Major maintenance costs: Independence Air has executed long-term agreements with the
manufacturers and other service providers covering the repair and overhaul of its engines, airframe and
avionics components, and landing gear. These agreements generally include escalating rates per flight
hour over the term of the agreement. The escalating rates are intended to reflect the approximate
actual maintenance cost increases as the aircraft age. The Company expenses costs based upon the
current rate per hour and the number of aircraft and engines hours for the period. As a result,
maintenance costs for the existing aircraft fleet are expected to increase in future years. The operating
leases covering the A319 aircraft require Independence Air to pay maintenance reserves to the lessor
monthly based on aircraft usage. The rates are fixed per the lease and are intended to reflect the
approximate actual cost of the maintenance being incurred as the aircraft is flown. The amounts paid
to the lessor as maintenance reserves are available to Independence Air when the repair/overhaul is
completed, however if the lease ends prior to any actual repairs/overhauls being completed, the
reserves belong to the lessor. The Company expenses maintenance reserve payments on a monthly basis
as part of maintenance expense.

Aircraft leases: The majority of Independence Air’s aircraft are leased from third parties. In order
to determine the proper classification of a lease as either an operating lease or a capital lease, the
Company must make certain estimates at the inception of the lease relating to the economic useful life
and the fair value of an asset as well as select an appropriate discount rate to be used in discounting
future lease payments. These estimates are utilized by management in making computations as required
by existing accounting standards that determine whether the lease is classified as an operating lease or
a capital lease. All of Independence Air’s current aircraft leases have been classified as operating
leases, which results in rental payments being charged to expense on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the related leases. Additionally, operating leases are not reflected in the balance sheet and
accordingly, neither a lease asset nor an obligation for future lease payments are reflected in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

Aircraft Early Retirement Costs: In determining the cost of the early retirement of leased aircraft
(and thus in determining the amount of the aircraft early retirement charge), the Company must
estimate, among other things, market lease rates, future sub-lease income, the cost of maintenance
return provisions, future interest and inflation rates, and the duration and cost of aircraft storage. As
the associated leases may extend over several years, these costs estimates are subject to change. Prior
to the Company’s adoption of FASB Statement 146, the Company recorded estimated early retirement
charges for aircraft expected to be retired in the coming twelve months under an approved retirement
plan. With the adoption of FASB 146, effective January 1, 2003, the Company now records early
retirement costs at the present value of costs and future sub-lease income noted above for its J-41 and
328Jet aircraft as they are removed from service.

Fair Value of Assets Held for Sale: With the termination of the United and Delta fee per
departure/block hour agreements, the Company determined that certain assets utilized in these
operations were now surplus in the Independence Air operation and has reclassified the assets as held
for sale at their estimated current market value as it intends to dispose of these assets within one year.
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The estimated current market value was determined using independent appraisers and other available
information weighted by the Company’s best estimation of the probable outcome of the available sales
opportunities.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Company’s principal exposure to market risk arises from changes in interest rates, inflation
and fuel costs. The Company’s exposure to market risk associated with changes in interest rates and
inflation relates to the commitment to acquire Airbus A319 aircraft. The 16 A319 aircraft being
purchased from the manufacturer as well as the 4 remaining undelivered A319 aircraft to be leased
from an operating lessor are subject to price escalation clauses that determine the final sale price or
lease rate at time of delivery. The escalation is tied to certain producer price indices and each point
change in the indices adds approximately $450,000 to the final sales price from the manufacturer, and
approximately $4,000 per month to the monthly rent due on an operating lease. In addition, the four
leased A319 aircraft received through December 31, 2004 have monthly lease rates that reset quarterly
based on Libor. A 25 basis point increase in Libor results in an approximate $6,000 increase per
aircraft in monthly lease rates. From time to time the Company has entered into put and call contracts
designed to limit the Company’s exposure to interest rate changes until permanent financing is secured
upon delivery of jet aircraft. The Company had no interest rate hedge transactions in 2003 or 2004. As
a result of the recently completed aircraft lease and loan restructuring (see Footnote 16) certain of the
CRJ lease and loan restructuring agreements, as well as the Company’s spare parts loan from GECAS
are subject to interest rates that are tied to Libor.

With the startup of Independence Air service during 2004, the Company’s results of operations are
subject to availability and changes in the price of jet fuel. Market risk is estimated as a hypothetical
10% increase in the December 31, 2004 cost of $1.43 per gallon of fuel. Based on the projections of
fuel usage for 2005, such an increase would result in an increase to aircraft fuel expense of
approximately $14.3 million for 2005.

The Company issued 6% Convertible Senior Notes due February 15, 2034, at the principal value of
$125.0 million and recorded deferred financing costs for commission fees and other expenses incurred
in relation to the issuance of the Notes that will be amortized over five years. At December 31, 2004,
the estimated fair value of the Notes based on quoted market prices was approximately $54.6 million.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
FLYi, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of FLYi, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of FLYi, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company
will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company has suffered significant losses and negative cash flows from operations since it began
operating as Independence Air and as a result is faced with significant liquidity challenges. In late
February 2005, the Company entered into agreements to restructure its aircraft obligations that will
allow it to defer a significant amount of cash payments into future periods. However, even with the
restructuring, the Company’s ability to pay its debt and other obligations as they become due is
dependent upon lowering costs and achieving revenue targets which are higher than what has been
achieved to date. Such matters raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of
this uncertainty.

KPMG LLP

McLean, VA
March 25, 2005
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FLYi, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets

Current:
Cash and cash equivalents . . .. ... .. ... ... ... .. ...
Short term Investments . . . ... .. ..ttt
Restricted cash . . ... ...
Accounts receivable, net . ... ... .. ..
Expendable parts and fuel inventory, net .......................
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . .....................
Deferred tax asset . .. ... ...ttt

Total current assets . . . . .. ........ ...

Restricted cash ... ... ... .. . . . . e
Property and equipment at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization ... ... ... ... e
Assets held for sale .. ... ...... ... ... .. . .. . .. ... ...
Intangible assets . . ... ... ... . ... ...
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization . . . . ... .........
Aircraft deposits . .. ... ... ...
Other assets . . ... ... ... ...t

Total assets. . . . ... ... . e

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current:
Current portion of long-term debt .. ........ .. ... ... . ... ...
Current portion of capital lease obligations. .. ...................
Accounts payable . ... ... ..
Air traffic liability . . . . ... ...
Accrued liabilities . . . . ... ..
Accrued aircraft early retirement charge . . . ......... ... ... ... ...

Total current liabilities . ... ........ ... ... ... ... . . ... .. ...

Long-term debt, less current portion,efn .........................
Capital lease obligations, less current portion .....................
Deferred tax liability . .. ........... ... .. .. .. .. . .. .. . ...
Deferred credits, met .. ........ ... ... . . ... . ... ...
Accrued aircraft early retirement charge, less current portion..........
Other long-term liabilities . ........... ... .. ... .. ... ... .. .....

Total liabilities . . ... . ... ... ... .. . . . . .

Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock: $.02 par value per share; shares authorized 130,000,000
shares issued 50,404,287 in 2003 and 50,410,787 in 2004; shares
outstanding 45,333,310 in 2003 and 45,339,810 in 2004 . .. .........

Additional paid-in capital . ....... ... ... .. .

Less: Common stock in treasury, at cost, 5,070,977 in 2003 and 2004 . ..
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. . . ....... ... .. .. ...
Retained earnings . . . .. .. ..o

Total stockholders’ equity . .............. ... .. ... ... ......
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . ....................

December 31,

2003

2004

(In thousands, except
for share data and par values)

$ 95,879 $ 5219
202,055 163,984
— 21,762
9,071 54,395
18,440 15,608
58,341 72,570
14,592 —
398,378 333,538
14,829 17,880
314,800 236,338
— 11,200
1,730 171
2,804 5,145
46,990 69,034
3,713 4,352
$783,244 $677,658
$ 8,927 $ 8,600
159 553
24,842 23,273
2,582 23,132
88,353 75,440
2,666 14,760
127,529 145,758
133,971 230,230
356 1,040
42,267 —
102,115 81,518
15,313 48,942
2,279 3,036
423,830 510,524
1,008 1,008
152,485 152,513
(35,718) (35,718)
& (140)
241,644 49,471
359,414 167,134
$783,244 $677,658

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FLYi, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004
(In thousands, except
for per share data)
Operating revenues:
Passenger . . . ..o $612,974 $713,724 $ 491,685
Other . ... . e 11,421 16,752 8,404
Total operating revenues . ............................ 624,395 730,476 500,089
Operating expenses:
Salaries and related costs . . ... ... . .. 169,630 180,759 185,152
Aircraft fuel . . .. ... . e 93,038 114,117 139,858
Aircraft maintenance and materials .. ..................... 61,249 66,937 60,746
Aircraft rentals . . . ... ... ... 88,305 105,529 100,318
Sales and marketing .. ......... ... ... . ... . . 20,293 24,751 46,540
Facility rents and landing fees . .. ....... ... .. ... .. ... .... 37,035 45,005 50,314
Depreciation and amortization . ............. ... .. ....... 17,966 24,604 32,937
Other ... e 72,549 81,149 83,944
Loss on sale of aircraft .. .......... ... .. ... .. .. .. .. .. ... — — 17,062
Aircraft early retirement and impairment charges . . ... ........ 24331  (27,654) 48,512
Total operating expenses . .................couuuiuneon.. 584,396 615,197 765,383
Operating income (loss) . .. ........... ... .. ... ... ..., 39,999 115,279 (265,294)
Other income (expense):
INErest EXPENSE . . v v v v vttt e e e e e (4,332) (6,502)  (14,715)
Interest iNCOME . . . ..o vttt e e e e et e e e 4,628 2,549 5,264
Government compensation . . .............. ... 944 1,520 —
Other income (eXpense), Net . . . ... vv v v et eeeenn.. 552 (220) (419)
Total other income (expense), net. ...................... 1,792 (2,653) (9,870)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax
provision (benefit) .. ......... .. .. .. .. ... .. . L. 41,791 112,626 (275,164)
Income tax provision (benefit) . .. ............ ... ... . ..... 16,307 43,678 (74,025)
Income (loss) from continuing operations . ................... 25,484 68,948 (201,139)
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . ... .. 13,802 13,850 8,966
Net income (I0SS) . . . . ... ... ... ... .. $ 39,286 $ 82,798 $(192,173)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic:
Net income (10SS) . . ...ttt $ 87 $ 183 $ (424
Diluted:
Net income (10SS) . .. v oo ittt $ 85 $ 182 $ (@429
Weighted average shares used in computation:
BasiC . ... 45,047 45,285 45,337
Diluted . . . ... . . e 46,019 45,398 45,337

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balance December 31, 2001
Netincome . ................
Exercise of common stock options . . .
Tax benefit of stock option exercise . .
Purchase of treasury stock
Amortization of deferred
compensation

Balance December 31, 2002

Netincome .................

Net change in unrealized loss on
available-for-sale securities

Comprehensive income
Exercise of common stock options . . .
Tax benefit of stock option exercise . .
Purchase of treasury stock
Amortization of deferred
compensation

Balance December 31, 2003

Netloss. ...................

Net change in unrealized loss on
available-for-sale securities

Comprehensive income
Exercise of common stock options . . .

Balance December 31, 2004

See accompanying notes to

FLYi, INC.
Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Additional other Total
Common stock paid-in Treasury stock comprel ive Retained stockholders’
Shares Amount  capital Shares Amount loss earnings equity
(In thousands, except for share data)

49,229,202 $ 985 $136,058 5,046,332 $(35,303) $ — $ 119,560 $ 221,300
— — — — — — 39,286 39,286
1,025,982 20 7,027 — — — — 7,047
— — 6,634 — — — — 6,634

— — — 13,737 (283) — — (283)

— — 1,384 - - — - 1,384
50,255,184 $1,005 $151,103 5,060,069 $(35,586) $ — $ 158,846 $ 275,368
— — — — — — 82,798 82,798

- - = - - ) — )
— — — — — — — 82,793
149,103 3 1,108 — — — — 1,111
— — 251 — — — — 251

— — — 10,908 (132) — — (132)
— — 23 — — — — 23
50,404,287 $1,008 $152,485 5,070,977 $(35,718) $ (5 $ 241,644 § 359,414
— — — — — — (192,173)  (192,173)

— — — — — (135) — (135)

— — — — — — —  (192,308)
6,500 — 28 — — — — 28
50,410,787 $1,008 $152,513 5,070,977 $(35,718) $(140) $ 49471 $ 167,134

consolidated financial statements.
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FLYi, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (10SS) .« o oottt e e $ 39,286 $ 82,798 $(192,173)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Discontinued operations:

Depreciation and amortization . . .. .................. 3,190 3,819 7,712

Asset impairment . ........ .. — — 6,772
Depreciation and amortization. . .. .................... 18,841 25,194 32,298
Amortization of intangibles . . ... ..... ... ... . L. 17 10 1,559
Provision for uncollectible accounts receivable ............ 2,619 1,049 416
Provision for inventory obsolescence . .................. 596 900 2,717
Amortization and write-off of deferred credits . ........... (4,966) (7,942)  (22,964)
Amortization and write-off of deferred financing costs . .. ... 506 531 1,253
Capitalized interest (net) . .. .........ovneen... (1,032) 1,329 (428)
Deferred tax (benefit) provision. . ..................... (4,372) 21,406 (27,675)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets . ...................... 567 3,579 20,959
Amortization of deferred compensation . ................ 1,384 23 —

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Restricted cash .. ..... ... ... ... . .. . .. .. — — (21,762)
Accounts receivable . . .. .. ... . 2,455 (1,526) (50,842)
Expendable parts and fuel inventory . . ................ (4,348) (5,022) 115
Prepaid expenses and other current assets. . ............ (19,403)  (19,692)  (13,432)
Accounts payable . ....... ... ... 12,016 13,938 9,089
Air traffic liability . ....... ... . ... o 597 (1,247) 20,550
Accrued liabilities . ........... . .. 58,880 (19,678) 33,641
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . ... .. 106,833 99,469  (192,195)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment . ................... (35,655) (78,500) (47,125)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets . ..................... 28 — 48,755
Purchases of short term investments . .................... (651,365)  (505,480)  (787,041)
Maturities of short term investments . . . .................. 445,305 516,780 824,977
Increase in restricted cash . ......... ... ... ... ... ...... — (14,829) (3,051)
Refund of deposits . . ... ... . 5,800 2,400 11,400
Payments for aircraft and other deposits . ................. (16,170) (5,826)  (59,901)
Net cash used in investing activities . . .. .............. (252,057)  (85,461)  (11,986)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of long term debt .. ............... 60,078 125,000

Payments of long-term debt .. ........ ... ... ... ... .. (4,640) (6,302) (8,817)
Payments of capital lease obligations . . . .................. (1,361) (2,238) (496)
Deferred financing costs . . . . ... ... .. 53 93 (3,594)
Proceeds from receipt of deferred credits and other .. ........ — — 1,400
Proceeds from exercise of stock options. . . ................ 7,047 1,111 28
Purchase of treasury stock . .............. ... ... . . ... (283) (132) —
Net cash provided by financing activities .............. 816 52,610 113,521

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .......... (144,408) 66,618 (90,660)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year . . .. ............ 173,669 29,261 95,879
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year . ................... $ 29261 $ 95879 $ 5,219

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FLYi, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FLYi, INC. (“FLYI”)
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Independence Air (“IA”), Atlantic Coast Jet, LLC, Atlantic Coast
Airlines, Inc., Atlantic Coast Academy, Inc., and WaKeeney, Inc., (collectively, the “Company”),
pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Unless the context
indicates otherwise, the terms “we”, “us”, or “our” refer herein to FLY1i, INC. and subsidiaries. On
August 4, 2004, the Company changed the name of its corporate parent and stock ticker symbol to
reflect its newly-premiered Independence Air brand name. Atlantic Coast Airlines Holdings, Inc. was
renamed FLYi, Inc. and its symbol on the NASDAQ National Market was changed from ACAI to
FLYI, mirroring the Independence Air web address www.FLYi.com. In November 2004, Atlantic Coast
Airlines was renamed Independence Air, Inc. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

From inception until August 2004, IA’s flights operated under code sharing agreements with United
Airlines, Inc. (“United”) and from 2000 to November 2004, also under a code sharing agreement with
Delta Airlines (“Delta”) and were identified as United Express and Delta Connection flights in
computer reservation systems. In June 2004, IA launched its Independence Air operation utilizing the
50 seat Canadair Regional Jet (“CRJ”) aircraft as they were being removed from the United code
share flying. Independence Air flying was also supplemented with the addition of 132 seat Airbus A319
narrowbody aircraft beginning in November 2004. The 32 seat Fairchild 328Jets (“328Jet”) that were
operated in the Delta code share flying were placed in temporary storage as flying ceased, pending the
assignment of the leases for 30 328Jets to Delta. The Company is treating the termination of the Delta
code share agreement as a discontinued operation and, accordingly, has removed the revenues,
expenses, and operating statistics attributable to the Delta Connection operation from all reported
operating results presented in these consolidated financial statements and results of operations and is
including these amounts, net of income tax, as results from discontinued operations (See footnote 14).

(b) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

The Company considers investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. Investments with an original maturity greater than three months and
less than one year are considered short-term investments. In addition, the Company has held
investments in tax-free, variable-rate Industrial Revenue Bonds and General Obligation Bonds having
initial maturities up to 30 years. Pursuant to the Company’s investment policy, these bonds must have a
long-term rating of at least AA by Standard & Poor’s or Aa by Moody’s to be eligible investments. The
Company’s investment policy also has issuer and geographical concentration limitations on these
investments. These bonds are backed by letters of credit or insurance and can be sold back to the
remarketer at par on a weekly or monthly basis.

As such, the Company considers securities of this type to be short-term investments. All short-term
investments are considered to be available-for-sale as the Company has no intention to hold the
securities for trading purposes or until maturity. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value,
with the unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. At December 31, 2004, the Company did not have
significant unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities.

58



FLYi, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(c) Airline Revenues

Passenger revenues are recorded as operating revenues at the time transportation is provided.
Under the Independence Air operations, the Company recognizes passenger revenue when the
transportation has been provided. Under the Company’s fee-per-departure and fee-per-block hour
agreements, transportation was considered provided when the flight had been completed.

For IA flying, passenger revenue is the amount paid by the passenger for the segment flown. All
fares sold by IA are non-refundable but travel itineraries may be changed subject to a change fee
charge. Revenue from change fee charges are recorded as other revenue as incurred. Under the
fee-per-departure and fee-per-block hour contracts with United and Delta, respectively, revenue was
the product of the agreed upon rate and the number of departures or the number of block hours
flown. Rates were generally agreed to on an annual basis and were subject to adjustments upon certain
specified events, such as changes in cities served or in aircraft utilization levels. Until rates were agreed
to each year with United and Delta or were adjusted in response to specified events, the Company was
required to estimate these rates and record revenue based upon such estimates until final rates were
agreed to by either United or Delta. In addition, certain incentive payments were recorded based upon
the Company’s assessment of its satisfaction of specific and measurable operational performance
criteria and were subject to review by United or Delta. Delta revenues have been reclassified as part of
discontinued operations for the periods presented. IA revenue accounted for 29% of passenger revenue
from continuing operations in 2004, with United contributing 71%. United accounted for 100% of
passenger revenues from continuing operations for 2003 and 2002. Including the Delta revenues, IA
revenue accounted for 23% of passenger revenue in 2004, with United and Delta contributing 57% and
20%, respectively. United accounted for 83% and 82% of passenger revenue and Delta accounted for
17% and 18% of passenger revenue for 2003 and 2002, respectively.

(d) Restricted Cash

The Company’s merchant agreements with select charge/credit card companies have provisions to
allow the charge card company or merchant bank to hold back a percentage of payments due the
Company for ticket sales. Such holdback amounts, which are classified as restricted cash under current
assets, are segregated from the normal credit card receivables, earn interest for the Company, and are
based on the dollar amount of sales for future travel. The calculation of holdback amounts is designed
to allow the Company to receive the holdback cash when the passenger travels. The amount of
restricted cash classified as current assets was $21.8 million at December 31, 2004.

On July 31, 2003, the Company entered into a new agreement with Wachovia which has no
expiration date, provides for the issuance of letters of credit, and is collateralized by certificates of
deposit. Under this agreement, the Company has cash on deposit with Wachovia as collateral for letters
of credit issued on behalf of the Company. The amounts on deposit with Wachovia are shown as
non-current restricted cash on the Company’s balance sheet as of December 31, 2003 and 2004 of
$14.8 million and $17.9 million.

(e) Accounts and Notes Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated net of allowances for uncollectible accounts of approximately
$3.9 million and $4.2 million at December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. Amounts charged to
expenses for uncollectible accounts in 2002, 2003, and 2004 were $2.6 million, $0, and $446,000
respectively. Write-off of accounts receivable were $150,000, $210,000, and $168,000 in 2002, 2003, and
2004 respectively. Accounts receivable as of December 31, 2004 include $3.5 million of ticket
receivables and $4.2 million related to manufacturers credits to be applied towards future spare parts
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purchases and training expenses, and net operating loss carryback income tax refunds due of
$45.0 million. Accounts receivable at December 31, 2003 include approximately $4.8 million related to
manufacturers credits.

(f) Concentrations of Credit Risk

At December 31, 2003 and 2004, accounts receivable from the credit card companies totaled $0
and $3.5 million, respectively and the cash holdback accounts totaled $0 and $21.8 million, respectively.
Under the fee-per-departure agreements, the Company received payments in advance from both United
and Delta. Historically, accounts receivable losses have not been significant. The majority of ticket sales
are through credit card transactions. The Company’s charge card and merchant bank agreements
provide for the holdback of a portion of the amount due the Company until a passenger has started to
fly the purchased flight segment. While protecting the passenger and the charge/credit card companies
from a potential chargeback situation if Independence Air does not perform the flight, it negatively
impacts the Company by not allowing the Company to have use of the funds from advance ticket sales.

(g) Risks and Uncertainties

Beginning in early 2001, the airline industry has experienced depressed demand and shifts in
passenger demand, lower unit revenues, increased insurance costs, increased fuel costs, increased
government regulations and taxes, tightened credit markets, and reduced capacity to borrow. These
factors are directly affecting the operations and financial condition of participants in the industry
including aircraft manufacturers. Several major airlines have used the bankruptcy process or the threat
of bankruptcy to reduce their expenses and streamline their operations. Our contractual relationships
with others may continue to be affected by other companies’ bankruptcies or by concerns regarding
potential bankruptcies. The bankruptcy or prospect of bankruptcy among other companies that operate
in our industry may result in unexpected expenses and create other risks or uncertainties that we are
not able to anticipate or plan around.

In April 2002, Fairchild Dornier GmbH (“Fairchild”), the manufacturer of the 32-seat 328Jet, was
placed under the supervision of a court-appointed interim trustee and in July 2002 Fairchild opened
formal insolvency proceedings in Germany. The lack of manufacturer product support, along with a
high level of unscheduled maintenance events for the engines that power the aircraft, resulted in an
increase in the cost to operate the 328Jet aircraft type and a decrease in the aircraft’s value. Following
Delta’s notice that it would terminate the Delta Agreement without cause upon 180 days notice, we
notified Delta that we were exercising our right under the terms of the Delta Agreement to require
Delta to assume the leases on 30 of the 33 328Jets used in the Delta program. We have entered into
agreements with the loan participants of those leveraged leases to relieve us of further obligations to
them under the leases provided we can complete the assignment to Delta within a specified period of
time. We do not have such an agreement with the equity participant in such aircraft although we
believe that other circumstances relating to the structure of the leases and to certain defaults to us by
that party effectively insulates us from further liability. We also are responsible for the remarketing of
the two leased and one owned 328Jet aircraft that we do not have a right to require Delta to assume,
as well as the spare parts inventory, tooling and ground equipment unique to the 328Jet. There can be
no assurance that we will be able to redeploy in a profitable manner these three 328Jets. We recorded
impairment charges of $13.8 million in connection with our one owned 328Jet and 328Jet spare parts,
early retirement charges of $7.2 million in connection with the two leased 328Jets that we do not have
the right to require Delta to assume and may incur additional one-time costs in connection with the
termination of the Delta relationship.
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With the recently completed financial restructuring (see Footnote 16), the Company entered into
agreements that require it to satisfy certain obligations. We may have to incur unexpected costs to
satisfy certain of these obligations, and our failure to satisfy these or other obligations arising under our
financial restructuring could limit the flexibility of our operations. The Company has reached
agreements with the lessors for 24 of Independence Air’s CRJs and, as stated above, with the lessors
for 21 of the J-41 turboprops that were formerly used in our United Express operations for the return
of the aircraft to the lessors and the elimination of our future rent obligations. The terms of those
agreements include certain obligations with respect to the return of the aircraft, including physical
condition and timing of the return. We may incur unexpected charges arising from those obligations
and/or may fail to satisfy all of those obligations as to some or all of the aircraft. The Company has
also agreed to permit the lessor to require us to return up to eight additional CRJ aircraft if we do not
meet certain financial milestones. The removal of these aircraft could result in additional costs, and
could be harmful to the business plan if we are forced to remove aircraft that are providing a positive
contribution to our performance.

As the Company’s fleet of regional jet aircraft ages, the maintenance costs for such aircraft will
likely increase. In addition, the CRIJs being returned to lessors under our recently completed financial
restructuring are generally among our newer aircraft, and thus have operated at lower costs than our
average fleet. Although we cannot accurately predict how much our maintenance costs will increase in
the future, they may increase significantly. Any such increase could have an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. The Company is vulnerable to any problems
associated with the aircraft in our fleet, including design defects, mechanical problems or adverse
perception by the public that would result in customer avoidance or an inability to operate our aircraft.

Although the Company has operated as an airline since 1992, our past results offer little
meaningful guidance with respect to our future performance because, prior to June 16, 2004, we had
not operated as an independent carrier. In addition, we have not had responsibility for route planning,
scheduling, pricing, marketing, advertising, sales, revenue management or revenue accounting functions
since December 2000, and for the first time we are operating our own distribution, reservations and
ticketing functions. Also, while previous operations have been under the United and Delta brands,
Independence Air is a new brand for us, and has limited market recognition. As a result, because we
have only recently begun to operate as an independent, low-fare carrier, it is difficult to evaluate our
future prospects. Our future performance will depend on a number of factors, including our ability to:

 Further develop our Independence Air brand and product to make it attractive to our target
customers;

* implement our business strategy by placing into service additional A319 aircraft into new and
longer-haul markets than we have previously served.;

* successfully choose new A319 markets and service levels, and successfully choose the markets
and service levels to be operated by our reduced CRI fleet;

* reduce our expenses to adjust to the current revenue and fuel cost environment, and to reflect a
reduced number of aircraft in operation;

* secure favorable terms with airports, suppliers and other contractors;
* monitor and manage major operational and financial risks;

e return a significant number of aircraft to their lessors during 2005, without incurring unexpected
costs or disruption of ongoing operations;
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* obtain and maintain necessary regulatory approvals, including airport “slots” where necessary;
e attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel;

* finance the necessary capital investments including future aircraft deliveries;

* maintain the safety and security of our operations; and

* react to responses from our competitors, including both legacy and low-fare airlines.

There can be no assurances that the Company will successfully address any of these factors, and
our failure to do so could harm our business.

The fierce competition and weak revenue environment that Independence Air operations have
encountered, combined with lower than expected passenger traffic and unprecedented high jet fuel
prices have resulted in Independence Air’s revenue falling significantly below anticipated levels and the
Company expending cash at an unsustainable rate. Although the Company has implemented cost
savings measures, we cannot reduce our operating costs enough to offset the revenue shortfall.

The Company expects to have substantial cash needs as it continues to establish itself under the
new brand “Independence Air” as a low-fare carrier, including cash required to fund increases in
accounts payable, prepaid expenses, aircraft security deposits on new aircraft to be leased, pre-delivery
payments on new aircraft to be purchased, as well as anticipated operating losses. As of December 31,
2004, our debt of $238.8 million exceeded our total capitalization. In addition to long-term debt, we
have a significant amount of other fixed obligations under operating leases related to our aircraft,
airport terminal space, other airport facilities and office space. As of December 31, 2004, future
minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms in
excess of one year were approximately $1.7 billion for 2005 through 2024, not including commitments
for the remaining Airbus A319 aircraft we intend to acquire.

Future operating lease commitments for the eight leased Airbus aircraft undelivered at
December 31, 2004 are expected to be approximately $325 million, and our purchase commitment for
16 additional Airbus aircraft is expected to be approximately $560 million over the next three years,
including estimated amounts for contractual price escalations. The Company will continue to incur
additional debt and other fixed obligations as we take delivery of new aircraft and other parts and
equipment and continue to expand into new markets. The leases for the Airbus aircraft require security
deposits to be held by the lessors in addition to payments of monthly rent and maintenance reserves.
The purchase agreement for the Airbus aircraft requires progress payments to be made for each
aircraft as the delivery date approaches. We have historically funded the majority of our aircraft
acquisitions by entering into off-balance sheet financing arrangements known as leveraged leases, in
which third parties provide equity and debt financing to purchase the aircraft and simultaneously enter
into long-term agreements to lease the aircraft to us. However, we do not anticipate that this source of
financing will be available to us for the foreseeable future, and that we will need to finance our aircraft
through secured debt or operating leases. The Company is exposed to interest rate risks that can affect
our costs under any of these financing techniques. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
secure lease and/or debt financing on terms acceptable to us or at all.

Our outstanding indebtedness and significant fixed obligations, and our lack of a history of
profitability for Independence Air operations, could have important consequences. For example, they
could:

* adversely affect our ability to obtain additional financing to support our planned growth and for
working capital and other general corporate purposes;
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e divert substantial cash flow from our operations and expansion plans in order to service our
fixed obligations or to place deposits or downpayments to secure financing;

* require us to incur significantly more interest or rent expense than we currently do; and

* place us at a possible competitive disadvantage compared to less leveraged competitors and
competitors that have better access to capital resources.

As discussed in footnote 16, the Company has recently completed the restructuring of our aircraft
obligations. We have no lines of credit, other than letters of credit collateralized by cash, and we will
continue to rely on our existing cash balances, cash flow from operations and other sources of capital
to satisfy our obligations. In connection with our recently completed financial restructuring, we pledged
substantially all of our remaining unencumbered collateral. Even with the recent completion of our
financial restructuring, if passenger traffic or yields do not achieve anticipated levels, fuel costs continue
at current high levels or other events affect its operations, the Company may again face liquidity
concerns. If the Company is not able to achieve its current business plan, cash balances and cash flow
from operations together with operating lease financing and other available equipment financing may
not be sufficient to enable the Company to meet its working capital needs, expected operating lease
financing commitments, other capital expenditures, and debt service requirements as they come due for
the remainder of 2005 and into 2006. If we are unable to make payments on our debt and other fixed
obligations as they come due, we could be forced to consider commencing a bankruptcy case under
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or may be the subject of an involuntary Chapter 11 case
commenced against us by creditors. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company has incurred significant losses and negative cash flows
from operations since it began operating as Independence Air and as a result is faced with significant
liquidity challenges. In late February 2005, the Company entered into agreements to restructure its
aircraft obligations that relieve it of certain obligations and will allow it to defer a significant amount of
cash payments into future periods. However, even with the restructuring, the Company expects to
continue to incur losses. The Company’s ability to pay its debt and other obligations as they become
due is dependent upon its Independence Air operations meeting operating projections that include
revenues at levels that have not been achieved to date and reductions in costs. Such matters raise
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in
regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Fuel:

Like all airlines, the Company’s finances have been dramatically affected by record high fuel
prices. Recently, we have purchased fuel at a price of $1.65 per gallon. We have not hedged our fuel
needs. We cannot predict the future cost and availability of fuel. Both fuel costs and availability are
subject to many economic and political factors and events occurring throughout the world over which
we have no control. Fuel availability is also subject to periods of market surplus and shortage and is
affected by demand for both home heating oil and gasoline. Because of the intense pricing competition,
the ability of carriers to adjust pricing to reflect higher fuel costs has been limited. We do not believe
that this present situation is sustainable either for us or for the industry as a whole, and that without
either a reduction in fuel prices or an increase in ticket prices, we, like many other airlines, may not be
successful.
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The Company relies on third parties and supply infrastructure to provide sufficient fuel for our
operations. The inability of these third parties to perform, the interruption of fuel supplies at an
airport, or the ability to deliver sufficient fuel to us due to infrastructure constraints could result in
cancelled flights and/or higher fuel prices.

Collective Bargaining Agreements:

Independence Air’s pilots are represented by the Airline Pilots Association (“ALPA”), flight
attendants are represented by the Association of Flight Attendants-Communications Workers of
America (“AFA-CWA”), and aviation maintenance technicians and ground service equipment mechanics
are represented by the Aircraft Mechanics Fraternal Association ("AMFA”).

In January 2001, the Company and Independence Air agreed to a new four-and-a-half year
collective bargaining agreement with ALPA that was subsequently ratified and became effective in
February 2001. In November 2003, the Company and Independence Air finalized a separate agreement
with ALPA on pay reductions and work rule changes that were contingent on signing a purchase
agreement with an aircraft manufacture for delivery of twenty-five narrow body aircraft. This agreement
has been fully ratified and is in effect today. The agreement extended the term of the collective
bargaining agreement such that it will next be amendable as of December 31, 2007, and established pay
rates and work-rules for pilots operating narrow-body jets that the Company believes are competitive
with other low-fare carriers. The new agreement also included terms designed to decrease costs and
increase productivity for operating its regional jets including a reduction in CRIJ rates that took effect
in June 2004.

Independence Air’s collective bargaining agreement with the AFA-CWA, which was ratified in
October 1998, became amendable in October 2002. Independence Air and AFA-CWA reached a
Tentative Agreement on February 10, 2005 and the agreement was ratified on March 21%, 2005. The
new agreement will be amendable July 31, 2007. The agreement is designed to address quality of life
issues that were of concern to the work group and to update work rules of interest to the parties, and
provides for the first pay rate increase to be effective in August 2006.

Independence Air’s collective bargaining agreement with AMFA, which was ratified in June 1998,
became amendable in June 2002. Independence Air has been in mediated negotiations with AMFA
during 2004. The Mediator recessed negotiations in October 2004 and Independence Air and AMFA
have not met in formal negotiations since. No further meeting dates have been scheduled.
Independence Air expects meetings will resume in the second quarter of 2005, and does not anticipate
that any issues relating to these negotiations will have a material effect on Independence Air’s
operations for the foreseeable future.

In the airline industry, labor relations are regulated by the Railway Labor Act (“RLA”). Under the
RLA, collective bargaining agreements do not expire but, rather, become amendable. The wage rates,
benefits and work rules contained in a contract that has become amendable remain in place and
represent the status quo until a successor agreement is in place. The parties may not resort to self-help,
such as strikes or lockouts, until the RLA processes for collective bargaining have been exhausted. It is
impossible to predict how long the RLA processes will take.
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Independence Air’s other work groups are not unionized. Independence Air believes that certain
of its unrepresented labor groups are from time to time approached by unions seeking to represent
them. On March 24, 2005, Independence Air received a notice from the Communications Workers of
America that it was working with the Company’s fleet service and passenger service employees in
organizing efforts. Independence Air has not received any other official notice of organizing activity
and there have been no representation applications filed with the National Mediation Board by any of
these groups. Independence Air believes that the wage rates and benefits for non-union employee
groups are comparable to similar groups at other similarly situated airlines.

Aviation Insurance

Following the September 11 terrorist attacks, the aviation insurance industry imposed a worldwide
surcharge on aviation insurance rates as well as a reduction in coverage for certain war risks. In
response to the reduction in coverage, the Air Transportation Safety and System Stabilization Act
provides U.S. air carriers with the option to purchase certain war risk liability insurance from the
United States government on an interim basis at rates that are more favorable than those available
from the private market. Prior to December 2002, we purchased hull war risk coverage through the
private insurance market, and purchased liability war risk coverage through a combination of U.S.
government provided insurance and private insurance. In December 2002, the U.S. government offered
to provide additional war risk coverage that included certain risks previously covered by private
insurance. We have purchased, at rates that are significantly lower than those charged by private
insurance carriers, hull and liability war risk coverage from the U.S. government (through the FAA)
through August 31, 2005. Due to the cost and difficulty in obtaining insurance in the commercial
markets, we anticipate renewing the insurance through the FAA for so long as it is available. The FAA
has indicated that the extension of its war risk insurance program past August 31, 2005 is under
consideration but has not yet been approved. The inability to obtain insurance at any cost or the
availability of insurance only at excessive rates, could affect our ability to operate.

(h) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions regarding valuation of
assets, recognition of liabilities for costs such as aircraft maintenance, operating revenues and expenses
during the period and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimated.

(i) Expendable Parts

Expendable parts and supplies are stated at the weighted average cost, less an allowance for
obsolescence of $2.0 million and $4.7 million as of December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively.
Expendable parts and supplies are charged to expense as they are used. Amounts charged to costs and
expenses for obsolescence in 2002, 2003 and 2004 were $596,000, $900,000, and $933,000, respectively.
In addition, $3.5 million was recorded as part of the cost of discontinued Delta connection operations
to write down the value of the 328Jet expendable inventory to estimated current value.

(j) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, including rotable spare parts, are stated at cost. Assets held under capital
leases are initially recorded at the present value of the minimum future lease payments. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets that range
from five to sixteen and one half years. Capital leases and leasehold improvements are amortized over
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the shorter of the estimated life or the remaining term of the lease, and is included in depreciation and
amortization expense.

The Company periodically evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred which may
impact the remaining estimated useful life or the recoverability of the remaining carrying value of its
long-lived assets, including rotable spare parts. If such events or circumstances were to indicate that the
carrying amount of these assets would not be recoverable, the Company would estimate the future cash
flows expected to result from the use of the assets and their eventual disposition. If the sum of the
expected future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than the carrying amount
of the asset, an impairment loss equal to the difference between the fair value and carrying value would
be recognized by the Company. The Company recognized $13.8 million in impairment losses in 2004
related to the owned 328Jet and 328Jet spare parts, which were removed from service in 2004 and are
classified as Assets Held for Sale as of December 31, 2004. This amount is included in the amount
shown for discontinued operations.

(k) Assets Held For Sale

With the termination of the United Express and Delta Connection operations, the Company
determined that the J41 spare parts, the owned 328Jet, and 328Jet spare parts were not needed in
continuing operations and is committed to a plan to sell or otherwise dispose of these assets within the
coming year and therefore has classified them as assets held for sale recorded at the estimated current
market value net of expected cost of sale/disposal.

() Intangible Assets

Goodwill of approximately $3.2 million, representing the excess of cost over the fair value of net
assets acquired in the acquisition of FLYi, was previously amortized by the straight-line method over
twenty years. Costs incurred to acquire slots of $0.3 million were being amortized by the straight-line
method over twenty years. Accumulated amortization of intangible assets at December 31, 2003 and
2004 was $1.8 million and $0.2 million respectively.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, which the Company
adopted as of January 1, 2002, the Company no longer recognizes amortization of its goodwill and slots
for 2002 and future years and, instead evaluates these assets at least annually for impairment based
upon fair value. Based upon analyses performed by the Company, an impairment of $1.6 million was
recognized on goodwill during 2004 and is included in depreciation and amortization expense.

(m) Maintenance

IA has executed long term agreements with the engine manufacturers and other service providers
covering repair and overhaul of certain of its engines, airframe and avionics components, and landing
gear. These agreements call for an escalating rate per hour flown over the life of the agreement. The
Company’s maintenance accounting policy for items covered by such agreements is to expense amounts
based on the current rate as the aircraft are flown, as it believes that the rates match the timing of
actual maintenance events that are due pursuant to the terms.

In 2000, IA executed a seven-year engine services agreement with GE Engine Services, Inc.
(“GE”) covering the scheduled and unscheduled repair of FLYi’s CRJ jet engines, operated on the 66
aircraft. Under the terms of the agreement, IA paid a set dollar amount per engine hour flown on a
monthly basis to GE and GE assumed the responsibility to repair the engines when required at no
additional expense to 1A, subject to certain exclusions. On October 14, 2003, IA commenced arbitration
proceedings against GE. In the proceeding, IA sought a ruling by an arbitrator that it had the right to
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remove any or all engines from the scope of an engine services agreement with GE governing the
scheduled and unscheduled repair of Independence Air’s CRJ jet engines. GE requested that the
arbitration also address the issue of whether GE is owed certain amounts it claimed it was owed
pursuant to the agreement. During the third quarter of 2004, IA agreed to a settlement with GE that
resulted in a termination of the agreement, the resolution of claims of amounts owed, and the
termination of the arbitration hearing. As a result of the settlement, the Company recorded a credit to
maintenance expense of $10.5 million. During the fourth quarter of 2004, IA entered into a new ten
year CF34 Engine Fleet Program Overhaul and Maintenance Agreement with Chromalloy Gas Turbine
Corporation (“Chromalloy”) covering all of its CRJ jet engines. The Chromalloy agreement operates
similarly to the previous GE agreement in that IA pays a set dollar amount per engine hour flown on a
monthly basis to Chromalloy and Chromalloy assumes the responsibility to repair the engines when
required at no additional expense to 1A, subject to certain exclusions. The Company’s future
maintenance expense on CRJ engines covered under the agreement will fluctuate based on the
contractual rate increases and decreases, intended to match the timing of actual maintenance events
that are due pursuant to the terms. The Company expenses aircraft maintenance based upon the
amount charged by Chromalloy under the agreement, as engine hours are flown.

Effective September 2001, IA entered a sixteen year maintenance agreement with Air Canada
covering maintenance, repair and overhaul services for airframe components on its CRJ aircraft. Under
the terms of this agreement, IA pays a varying amount per flight hour each month, based on the age of
the aircraft. The Company expenses the amount paid to Air Canada based on the rates stipulated in
the agreement and the hours flown each month. In February 2002, IA entered into a five-year
agreement with Air Canada covering the scheduled airframe C-check overhaul of its CRJ aircraft. IA
expenses this cost as the overhaul is completed.

The Airbus A319 aircraft operated by IA as of December 31, 2004 are leased for a period of six
years. The leases provide that IA pay the lessor maintenance reserves to cover major overhaul costs of
the engines, airframe, and other life limited parts. These reserves are available for reimbursement
should IA pay for the maintenance costs, but otherwise are non-refundable and do not earn interest.
Since the expected interval between required maintenance events covered by the maintenance reserve
payments on the A319 is six years or longer, and IA expects the lease to terminate prior to any
maintenance events being completed, it is expensing the maintenance reserve requirements as incurred.

(n) Deferred Credits

The Company accounts for incentives provided by the aircraft manufacturers as deferred credits
for leased aircraft. These credits are amortized on a straight-line basis as a reduction to lease expense
over the respective lease term. The incentives are in the form of cash or credits that may be used to
purchase spare parts, pay for training expenses, or be applied against future rental payments.

(o) Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included in Sales and Marketing. Advertising
expense was $0.2 million, $0.4 million, and $28.8 million for 2002, 2003, and 2004, respectively.

(p) Frequent Flyer Program

Independence Air offers a frequent flyer program known as iCLUB. Members earn iPOINTs based
on the amount of money spent on Independence Air travel. iPOINTS are credited when travel is flown
and are good for 12 months. Awards are posted to an iCLUB account when thresholds are met within
a specified period, and may be redeemed for roundtrip fares on Independence Air. The Company
records the liability for the estimated incremental cost of outstanding awards that are expected to be
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redeemed to Air Traffic Liability. The Company adjusts the liability based on changes in expectations
and estimated costs.

IA had participated in United’s Mileage Plus frequent flyer program and in the Delta SkyMiles
frequent flyer program under its code share flying. The Company did not accrue for incremental costs
for mileage accumulation or redemption relating to these programs because IA operated under
agreements with United and Delta, and the Company’s revenues under these agreements were not
affected by the number of miles earned by its passengers or number of passengers on its flights
redeeming miles.

(q) Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and
liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts for existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in future years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. Due to the large amount of losses sustained in 2004 and the
expected losses for 2005, the Company has recorded a valuation allowance against the net deferred tax
asset available to the Company.

(r) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company applies the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, to account for its stock options. Currently, SFAS
No. 123 allows companies to continue to apply the provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB)
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related interpretations and provide
pro forma net income and pro forma earnings per share disclosures for employee stock options granted
as if the fair-value-based method defined in SFAS No. 123 had been applied. The Company has elected
to apply the provisions of APB Opinion No. 25 and provide the pro forma disclosures of SFAS
No. 123. Beginning after June 30, 2005, the Company will be required to adopt the fair-value-based
method and expense the unvested portion of outstanding employee stock options over the remaining
vesting periods and to expense over the vesting period any employee stock options granted after
June 30, 2005. The Company accounts for non-employee stock option awards in accordance with SFAS
No. 123. No compensation expense was recorded in the Company’s consolidated financial statements in
2002, 2003 or 2004 related to the granting of options to non-employees.

As a result of applying APB Opinion No. 25, and related interpretations to the current period, no
stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income (loss), as all options granted to
employees had an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and
earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to
stock-based employee compensation.

The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation plans using the intrinsic value method
prescribed under Accounting Principles Board (APB) No. 25. As such, the Company records
compensation expense for stock options and awards only if the exercise price is less than the fair
market value of the stock on the measurement date.

For purposes of the pro forma disclosures of compensation expense under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, the Company uses the
Black-Scholes option model to estimate the fair value of options. A risk-free interest rate of 3.1%,
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3.6%, and 3.7% for 2002, 2003 and 2004 respectively, a volatility rate of 70.6%, 77.5%, and 79.0% for
2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively, and an expected life of 6.3 years for 2002, 7.4 years for 2003, and
6.0 years for 2004 were assumed in estimating the fair value. No dividend rate was assumed for any of
the years.

The following summarizes the pro forma effects assuming compensation for such awards had been
recorded based upon the estimated fair value. The pro forma information disclosed below does not
include the impact of awards made prior to January 1, 1995 (in thousands, except per share data):

2002 2003 2004

Net income (loss), as reported . . . ... ... $39,286  $82,798  $(192,173)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in

reported net income, net of related tax effects . . ............... 847 14 —
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax

effeCtS . . (7,367)  (5,990) (5,255)
Pro forma net income (I0SS). . .. .o oot $32,766  $76,822  $(197,428)
Earnings per share:
Basic—as reported .. ... ... $ .87 $ 183 § (4.24)
Basic—pro forma . .......... ... .. $ 73 $ 170 $§ (4.35)
Diluted—as reported . . . .. ... . $ 85 § 182 § (424)
Diluted—pro forma. .. ......... ... ... . $ 71 $ 169 $§ (435

(s) Income Per Share

Basic income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding. Diluted income per share is computed by dividing net income by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding and common stock equivalents, which consist
of shares subject to stock options computed using the treasury stock method.

In September 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force reached consensus on Issue No. 04-08, or
EITF 04-08, “The Effect of Contingently Convertible Debt on Diluted Earnings per Share,” which
requires the dilutive effect of contingently convertible debt instruments to be included in earnings per
share. Accordingly, the shares issuable upon conversion of contingently convertible debt instruments are
to be considered in the diluted earnings per share calculation, regardless of whether the contingent
conditions for their conversion are satisfied, so long as they are dilutive. EITF 04-08 will be effective
for reporting periods ending after December 15, 2004. Currently, the shares issuable upon conversion
would be antidulitive and, therefore, have no impact on the Company’s earnings per share.
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A reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in computing income per share is as
follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2003 2004
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Share calculation:
Average number of common shares

outstanding ........................ 45,047 45,047 45285 45,285 45,337 45,337
Incremental shares due to assumed exercise of

OPLIONS . . v vt e — 972 — 113 — —
Weighted average common shares outstanding . 45,047 46,019 45,285 45,398 45,337 45,337
Income (loss) from continuing operations . ... 25484 25484 68,948 68,948 (201,139) (201,139)
Income from discontinued operations, net of

income taxes ....................... 13,802 13,802 13,850 13,850 8,966 8,966
Net income (10SS) ... .....ovvvvnnen... $39,286 $39,286 $82,798 $82,798 $(192,173) $(192,173)
Income (loss) per share from continuing

Operations . .. ..........eiiiiiii.. $ 568 558 1528 1528 (444)8 (4.44)
Income per share from discontinued

operations, net of income taxes . ......... $ 318% 308$% 318% 308 20 8 20
Net income (loss) per share . ............. $ 87 % 8§ 183§ 182§ (424)5 (4.24)

(t) Reclassifications

Certain prior years’ amounts as previously reported have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation. As discussed in Note 14, the Company has reclassified the results of its prior
operations under the Delta Connection code share agreement as discontinued.

(u) Interest Rate Hedges

The Company has periodically used swaps to hedge the effects of fluctuations in interest rates
associated with aircraft financings. These transactions meet the requirements for current hedge
accounting. The effective portions of hedging gains and losses resulting from the interest rate swap
contracts are deferred until the contracts are settled and then amortized over the aircraft lease term or
capitalized as part of acquisition cost, if purchased, and depreciated over the life of the aircraft. The
ineffective portions of hedging gains and losses are recorded as incurred. The Company did not utilize
any interest rate hedges in 2002 through 2004.

(v) Segment Information

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information.” The statement requires disclosures related to components of a company for
which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by a company’s chief
operating decision maker in deciding the allocation of resources and assessing performance. The
Company is engaged in one line of business, the scheduled and chartered transportation of passengers,
which constitutes nearly all of its operating revenues.
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(w) Aircraft Deposits

As part of the Company’s purchase agreements for certain aircraft, the manufacturers require
deposits to be placed and/or progress payments to be made in advance of the aircraft’s delivery to the
Company. These aircraft deposits are considered long term in nature due to the fact that they are
scheduled to be returned in years extending beyond 2005.

2. Business Environment

Operations under the Independence Air brand as a low-fare airline with a hub at Washington
Dulles International Airport (“Washington Dulles™) on June 16, 2004. Independence Air’s strategy is to
capitalize on and stimulate demand for air travel to, from and through its Washington Dulles hub,
utilizing 132-seat Airbus A319 (“A319”) narrowbody aircraft to primarily serve larger, long haul
markets and 50-seat Canadair regional jets (“CRJs”) to offer frequent service primarily to smaller,
short haul markets from Washington Dulles. The Independence Air business model is based on low
fares while also providing reliable and easy to use air transportation with excellent customer service.

While Independence Air believes it has been successful in stimulating demand to, from and over
its Washington Dulles hub, through February 2005 it has not achieved the load factor and yields
projected in its original business model and thus has not met revenue projections. Factors contributing
to lower revenues than originally projected include the addition of new competitive service in markets
served by Independence Air, and a lower level of business traffic relative to leisure traffic than had
been anticipated. This revenue shortfall combined with the unprecedented high fuel prices has caused
Independence Air to sustain higher losses and to expend more cash than it anticipated when it
embarked on its strategy of becoming an independent airline. Independence Air has undertaken a
number of steps discussed below, including a financial restructuring, capital spending reduction,
schedule changes, and changes in its marketing and ticket sales programs to help it achieve its 2005
business plan.

As discussed in Note 16, in late 2004, the Company began discussions with its CRJ lessors and
lenders to restructure the payments coming due in 2005 and 2006. As part of its restructuring efforts
the Company was able to negotiate significant deferrals of its 2005 and 2006 cash obligations to later
periods. Approximately $70 million in CRJ rent or loan payments that would have been due between
January 2005 and February 2007 have been deferred to later periods. The Company also deferred
various other obligations to later periods. As a result of these deferrals, the Company’s cash obligations
for 2005 and 2006 will be substantially less than for future periods, when payments will not be deferred
and when repayment of the deferred obligations will be required.

The Company has committed to return at least 24 CRIJs, 30 328s and 21 J41s to their lessors
during 2005 and to early terminate the related leases. The return of these aircraft includes various
delivery obligations involving the physical condition of the aircraft and the timing of the return. The
Company anticipates that the return of aircraft will be a significant undertaking for at least the first two
quarters of 2005, and there is the risk that the Company could incur significant unanticipated expenses
as a result of this project. Upon completion, the Company will have removed approximately $30 million
in annual lease obligations.

Beginning in December 2004, the Company reduced its flight schedule for the four CRIJs that were
sold and announced the closure of two cities effective in January 2005. In February 2005, the Company
revamped its continuous flow operation to a six bank schedule where aircraft arrive from the spoke
cities at its Washington Dulles Hub at approximately the same time in anticipation of the removal of 24
additional CRIJs noted above. As compared to a continuous flow operation, the six bank schedule will
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reduce daily aircraft utilization on the CRJ fleet and to a lesser extent the A319 fleet but will greatly
increase the connecting opportunities for our passengers.

Independence Air initially adopted the distribution model used by other low-cost carriers like
Southwest and JetBlue that limited ticket sales to its own web site and call centers. However, during
the fourth quarter of 2004, Independence Air began to enter into agreements that would allow it to
offer its inventory through the Global Distribution Systems (“GDSs”). Additional GDSs were
implemented during the first quarter of 2005, and Independence Air now participates in most of the
major GDSs and a number of online travel sites including Travelocity and Orbitz. Participation in the
GDSs is supported by Independence Air’s team of sales professionals who solicit individual
corporations and travel agencies, creating additional interest and incentives for booking Independence
Air flights.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments of
$169.2 million and working capital of $187.8 million. In January 2005, the Company filed its 2004
federal income tax return and a net operating loss carryback refund claim for $41.4 million. The
Company received the refund at the end of January 2005. On February 18, 2005, the Company entered
into a term loan agreement with General Electric Commercial Aviation Services (“GECAS”), for
$16.2 million and borrowed the full amount available under the term loan. The loan is secured by
Independence Air’s 11 CRJ spare engines and all of its CRJ spare parts. The Company’s ability to raise
additional capital is very limited. The Company is actively trying to sell a 328Jet aircraft, the 328 spare
parts inventory, and one J-41 aircraft.

As discussed in the Company’s Form 10-K/A under “Business—Risk Factors” and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition”, the Company has incurred
significant losses and negative cash flows from operations since it began operating as Independence Air
and as a result is faced with significant liquidity challenges. Even with the actions discussed above in
this Note 2, the Company expects to continue to incur losses. The Company’s ability to pay its debt and
meet its other obligations as they become due is dependent upon its Independence Air operations
meeting operating projections that include revenues at levels that have not been achieved to date and
reductions in costs.

In addition, even if the Company is able to achieve its 2005 operating and cost reduction
objectives, Independence Air’s industry environment is highly uncertain and volatile at this time. Future
events could affect the industry or the Company in ways that are not presently anticipated that could
further adversely affect the Company’s liquidity. Cash balances and cash flow from operations together
with operating lease financing and other available equipment financing may not be sufficient to enable
the Company to meet its working capital needs, expected operating lease financing commitments, other
capital expenditures, and debt service requirements as they come due for the remainder of 2005 and
into 2006. The Company continues to evaluate opportunities to finance the acquisition of aircraft,
engage in other financing transactions, sell additional equity or debt securities, enter into credit
facilities with lenders, or sell underutilized assets, as well as opportunities to enter into arrangements
with other carriers that would supplement or substitute for its Independence Air operations with
respect to some or all of its operations or aircraft, all for either strategic reasons or to further
strengthen our financial position.

The matters discussed in this Note raise substantial doubt as to our ability to continue as a going
concern. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP on a
going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the
normal course of business. Accordingly, the Consolidated Financial Statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the recoverability of assets and classification of liabilities that might be
necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.
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3. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:
December 31,

2003 2004
(in thousands)

Owned aircraft and improvements . .................... $241,979  $163,000
Improvements to leased aircraft . . .......... ... ... ... 6,545 13,155
Flight equipment, primarily rotable spare parts . ... ........ 107,017 72,889
Maintenance and ground equipment . .................. 15,825 20,867
Computer hardware and software. . .................... 21,951 29,363
Furniture and fixtures . .. ........................... 4,251 4,905
Leasehold improvements . . . .......... ... ... ....... 9,709 21,912

407,277 326,091
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization . . . ....... 92,477 89,753

$314,800 $236,338

On May 29, 2003, IA purchased and took delivery of six CRJ aircraft from Bombardier. IA
financed a portion of the purchase price of four of the aircraft with debt financing. The promissory
notes on each of the four aircraft are 16.5 years in length beginning May 29, 2003; carry a fixed interest
rate of 5.11% per annum; and require thirty-three equal semi-annual payments of principal and interest
beginning November 29, 2003.

In October 2003, IA purchased and took delivery of two CRJ aircraft from Bombardier. IA
financed a portion of the purchase price of the aircraft with debt financing. The promissory notes on
each of the aircraft require monthly payments from November 1, 2003 through October 2005, with the
remaining principal balance to be paid in October 2005. The variable interest rate for the promissory
notes is reset monthly based on the 1-month Libor rate plus 2.25%.

In December 2004, IA sold four of the CRJs purchased in 2003 to improve liquidity and
recognized a $17.1 million loss on the sale. In addition, as of December 31, 2004, the Company has
reclassified 1A's 328Jet aircraft and spare parts and J41 spare parts from operating property to assets
held for sale/disposition in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 144.

4. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

December 31,
2003 2004

(in thousands)
Payroll and employee benefits . . . .......... ... ... ... .. $27,634  $26,364
Landing fees . ... ... 3,295 2,899
Property taxes . ... ... ... 4,594 5,816
Corporate income taxes . ... ... ....uvuueennnennnenn.. 4,594 1,523
Aircraft rents . . . .. .. . 2,526 1,405
Passenger related expenses . .. ...... ... 5,314 416
Maintenance COStS . . .. .o v vt vttt e 11,378 1,502
Fuel . ... 12,137 2,829
Interest . ... ... 1,117 4,072
Other ... 15,764 28,614

$88,353  $75,440

73



FLYi, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004,

respectively:

December 31,
2003 2004

(in thousands)

Equipment Notes associated with Pass Through Trust Certificates, due January 1,

2008 and January 1, 2010, principal payable annually through January 1, 2006

and semi-annually thereafter through maturity, interest payable semi-annually

at 7.49% throughout term of notes, collateralized by four J41 aircraft.. ... ... $ 10,008 $ 8,869
Notes payable to institutional lenders, due between October 23, 2010 and

May 15, 2015, principal payable semiannually with interest ranging from 5.65%

to 7.63% through maturity, collateralized by four CRJ aircraft. . ........... 41,794 38,322
Note payable to institutional lender, due October 2, 2006, principal payable

semiannually with interest at 6.56%, collateralized by one J41 aircraft.. ... ... 1,738 1,196
Notes payable to institutional lender, due November 2019, principal payable

semiannually with interest at 5.11%, collateralized by four CRJ aircraft. .. ... 58,897 56,443

Notes payable, due October 2005, principal payable monthly with variable rate
based on 1-month Libor rate plus 2.25% through maturity, collateralized by

two CRIJ aircraft. . . ... .. .. . . e 30,461 —
Notes payable to Airbus for deferrable predelivery payments, due upon delivery

of aircraft with interest at 6.5% . . .. ... ... .. . ... — 9,000
6% Convertible Senior notes—due 2034 . . ... .. ... .. .. ... — 125,000
Total . .o e 142,898 238,830
Less: Current Portion. . .. ... ... . e 8,927 8,600

$133,971  $230,230

In February 2004, the Company sold $125 million of Convertible Senior Notes (“Notes™). The
Notes have an interest rate of 6% and are convertible into FLYi, Inc. common stock at a conversion
rate of 90.2690 shares per $1,000 principal amount of the Notes (a conversion price of approximately
$11.08) once the Company’s common stock share price reaches 120% of the conversion price or $13.30.
The Notes mature in 2034 and interest is payable semi-annually beginning August 15, 2004. The
Company may redeem the Notes either in whole or in part beginning 2007 at the redemption price,
plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any. The holders may require the Company
to repurchase the Notes on February 15 of 2009, 2014, 2019, 2024 and 2029 at a repurchase price equal
to 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any.
The Company filed a registration statement with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 24, 2004 to register the resale of the Notes and the sale of the shares of the Company’s Common
Stock issuable upon conversion of the Notes. This registration statement, as amended, was declared
effective on July 2, 2004.

IA's purchase agreement with Airbus allows it to defer a portion of the predelivery payments for
each aircraft as part of a financing arrangement with the manufacturer. The portion of the deferred
predelivery payment is payable upon delivery of the aircraft plus accrued interest at an interest rate of
6.5%. Delivery of the purchased aircraft is scheduled to begin in January 2006.
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In October 2003, IA purchased and took delivery of two CRIJ aircraft from Bombardier. IA
financed a portion of the purchase price of the aircraft with debt financing. The promissory notes on
each of the aircraft require monthly payments from November 1, 2003 through October 2005, with the
remaining principal balance to be paid in October 2005. The variable interest rate for the promissory
notes is reset monthly based on the 1-month Libor rate plus 2.25%. In December 2004, IA and
Bombardier agreed to apply $35.4 million of the $38.8 million on deposit with Bombardier, for aircraft
deposits and progress payments, to the promissory notes on these two aircraft and against other
outstanding amounts owed to Bombardier or its affiliates.

As of December 31, 2004, maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

(in thousands)

Year Ending December 31,

2005 e 8,600
2000 .. 17,650
2007 e 8,398
2008 . e 10,542
2000 . 8,094
Thereafter . .. ... ... . . . e 185,546

$238,830

6. Obligations Under Capital Leases

The Company leases certain equipment for non-cancelable terms of more than one year. These
lease agreements expire on various dates through 2008. The net book value of the equipment under
capital leases at December 31, 2003 and 2004 was $0.5 million and $1.6 million, respectively. The leases
were capitalized at the present value of the lease payments. The weighted average interest rate for
these leases is approximately 5.9%.

At December 31, 2004, the future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregate, together with
the present value of the net minimum lease payments, are as follows:

(in thousands)

Year Ending December 31,

2005 . . $ 648
2000 . .t 562
2007 .« e 440
2008 . . 114
2000 . . —
Thereafter. . .. ... ... —
Total future minimum lease payments . . .. ................... 1,764
Amount representing interest . . ... ... 171
Present value of minimum lease payments. .. ................. 1,593
Less: Current maturities. . . . . ... ov it 553

$1,040
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7. Operating Leases

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2004 are
as follows:

Aircraft Other Total

(in thousands)

Year Ending December 31,

2005 .. $ 158,011 $ 9,297 $ 167,308
2000 ... e 155,759 8,564 164,323
2007 .o e 149,042 8,250 157,292
2008 .. e 138,923 6,915 145,838
2000 .. e 129,966 6,082 136,048
Thereafter . .. .......... ... ... ... ..... 886,775 30,831 917,606
Total minimum lease payments . ........... $1,618,476  $69,939 $1,688,415

Certain aircraft leases of the Company require aircraft to be in a specified maintenance condition
at lease termination or upon return of the aircraft. IA’s lease agreements generally provide that 1A pays
taxes, maintenance, insurance and other operating expenses applicable to leased assets. Operating lease
expense was $112.4 million, $130.2 million, and $128.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2003, and 2004, respectively.

IA took delivery of its first four leased Airbus A319 aircraft in the fourth quarter of 2004. The
leases are for a term of five years that may be extended to six years upon the extension of certain
maintenance overhaul intervals, with monthly lease payments reset quarterly based on Libor.

The leases for seven J41s include a provision that requires IA to pay maintenance reserves should
it terminate its engine power by the hour arrangement. That arrangement was terminated when the
J41s were early retired in August 2004. The lessor provided a notice of default in December 2004
claiming reserves in excess of $500,000. IA has subsequently not made monthly lease payments. The
lessor waived defaults through January 31, 2005 and this issue was resolved by the agreement on
February 18, 2005 to early terminate the leases. Another lessor of four J41s provided a notice in
December that it viewed IA’s statement during the course of negotiations that it would not be making
further lease payments as an anticipatory breach. The lessor declared the leases to be in default and
provided a notice of termination on December 1, 2004. The Company has subsequently entered into an
MOU with this party for the orderly termination of the leases and return of the aircraft, and is in the
process of having the aircraft inspected for return and completing final agreements (See Footnote 16,
Subsequent Events).

8. Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Option Plans

The Company’s 1992 Stock Option Plan had 3.0 million shares of which all have been granted. The
Company’s 1995 Stock Incentive Plan has 5.0 million shares of which the majority had been granted by
year-end 1999. In 2000, the Company’s shareholders approved a new 2000 Stock Incentive Plan for
4.0 million shares. The shareholder approved plans provide for the issuance of incentive stock and non
qualified stock options to purchase common stock of the Company and restricted stock awards to
certain employees and directors of the Company. During 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors
approved stock option programs for an additional 2.4 million shares. The Board approved programs
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provide for the issuance of non-qualified stock options to purchase common stock of the Company and
restricted stock awards to certain employees. Executive officers and directors of the Company are not
eligible to participate in the Board authorized stock option programs. Under the plans and programs,
options are granted by the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with approval from the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors and vest over a period ranging from three to five
years.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plan awards, including restricted stock
awards as of December 31, 2002, 2003, and 2004 and changes during the periods ending on those dates
is presented below:

2002 2003 2004
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
average average average
exercise exercise exercise
Shares price Shares price Shares price
Options outstanding at beginning of year . . . 5,194,638 $12.07 4,710,831 $13.12 5,987,970 $11.99
Granted. .. ....... ... ... ... ..., 645,500 $12.19 2,016,000 $ 9.30 985,000 $ 4.59
Exercised . ........ ... ... ... ..... 1,025,982 $ 6.87 149,103 $ 6.81 6,500 $ 4.39
Canceled . ........ ... ... ... ..... 103,325 $16.34 589,758 $13.07 321,725 $11.93
Options outstanding at end of year . ... ... 4,710,831 $13.12 5,987,970 $11.99 6,644,745 $10.90
Options exercisable at yearend . .. ....... 1,694,566 $12.49 2,762,241 $13.10 3,952,754 $12.68
Options available for grant at year end . ... 2,520,320 1,104,979 441,704
Weighted-average fair value of options
granted during the year . . .. .......... $ 8.05 $ 693 $ 322

The Company awarded a total of 55,900 shares of restricted stock to certain employees during
2001. These shares vest over four years and have a provision for accelerated vesting tied to a 25%
increase in any 2002 quarter’s operating results over the prior year’s quarter. In the first quarter of
2002, the Company’s operating results met the threshold for accelerated vesting and as a result, these
restricted shares vested 100% in April 2002. The Company recognized $1.1 million in compensation
expense in 2002, due to these restricted stock awards and as a result of the accelerated vesting
schedule. In 1998, the Company awarded a total of 200,000 shares of restricted stock to certain
employees. These shares vest over three to five years. The Company recognized $289,000, $23,000 and
$0 in compensation expense for the year ended 2002, 2003 and 2004 respectively, associated with the
1998 restricted stock awards and with certain stock option awards.

In December 2003, the Company modified all outstanding stock options to allow the option
holders a longer period of time to exercise an option after a change in control event has occurred. As a
result of this modification, these options will be subject to variable plan accounting treatment if a
triggering event were to occur.
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31,
2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted-

average
Number remaining Weighted- Number Weighted-
outstanding at  contractual life average exercisable average

Range of exercise price 12/31/04 (years) exercise price 12/31/04 exercise price

$0.00 -$2.79. ... ... ... 12,800 7.9 $ 1.88 2,800 $ 1.97
$2.80 -$559. ... ... ... 878,660 8.9 $ 3.71 83,660 $ 3.55
$5.60 —$839. ... ... ... .. 328,368 8.0 $ 6.98 96,993 $ 6.77
$8.40 - $11.19 .. .............. 2,339,316 7.5 $ 9.50 1,082,941 $ 9.59
$11.20-8$1399 . .. ... ... .. 2,564,265 6.0 $13.42 2,199,999 $13.36
$14.00 - $16.79 . . . ... ... .. 245,186 5.1 $15.89 245,186 $15.89
$16.80 - $1959 . . ... .. ... 13,000 2.4 $17.70 11,750 $17.60
$19.60 —$2239 ... ... ... .. 113,250 6.4 $20.76 102,750 $20.73
$22.40-$2519 . ... ... 80,250 6.4 $23.35 76,250 $23.33
$2520-8$2799 .. ..., 69,650 6.2 $26.86 50,425 $26.87
6,644,745 7.0 $10.90 3,952,754 $12.68

Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors of the Company is authorized to provide for the issuance by the Company
of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the rights, privileges, qualifications, limitations and
restrictions thereof, including, without limitation, dividend rights, dividend rates, conversion rights,
voting rights, terms of redemption or repurchase, redemption or repurchase prices, limitations or
restrictions thereon, liquidation preferences and the number of shares constituting any series or the
designation of such series, without any further vote or action by the shareholders.

Common stock

The Company’s Board of Directors has approved the repurchase of up to $40.0 million of the
Company’s outstanding common stock in open market or private transactions. During 2003 the
Company purchased 10,901 shares from employees to satisfy income taxes due resulting from the
vesting of restricted shares. The Company did not repurchase any stock during 2004 and has no plans
to repurchase stock in 2005.

9. Employee Benefit Plans
401K Plan

Effective January 1, 1992, the Company adopted a 401(k) Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan covers all
employees who meet the Plan’s eligibility requirements. Employees may elect a salary reduction
contribution of up to 15% of their annual compensation not to exceed the maximum amount allowed
by the Internal Revenue Service.

The Plan allows the Company to make discretionary matching contributions for non-union
employees, mechanics, and certain flight attendants, equal to 25% of salary contributions up to 4% of
total compensation. Effective with the ratification of the pilot’s new union agreement on February 9,
2001, the Company’s match for pilots is variable depending upon the pilot’s length of service and the
Company’s operational performance. The Company’s matching percentage for a pilot can range from
two to six percent of eligible compensation. The Company’s matching contribution for all qualified
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employees, if any, vests ratably over five years. Contribution expense was approximately $1.6 million,
$1.1 million and $2.3 million for 2002, 2003, and 2004, respectively. The Company’s contribution
expense in 2001 includes estimated costs of $2.9 million for additional contributions to correct
operational defects found in the Company’s 401(k) plan in addition to $1 million in discretionary
matching contributions. The Company’s contribution expense for 2003 included a reversal of

$1.2 million of the $2.9 million in estimated costs recorded in 2001 for operational defects in the
Company’s 401(k) plan based upon the resolution of these matters with government regulatory
agencies.

Profit Sharing Programs

The Company has profit sharing programs that result in periodic payments to all eligible
employees. Profit sharing compensation, which is based on attainment of certain performance and
financial goals, was approximately $10.3 million, $1.1 million, and $3.1 million in 2002, 2003, and 2004
respectively.  In 2003, the Company suspended or reduced the payouts due under the profit sharing
programs. The amounts expensed in 2004 are an estimate of the liability for services through
December 31, 2004 of amounts that will be due and payable upon attainment of financial goals in 2005.

10. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes based on income from continuing operations includes the

following components:
Year Ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004

(in thousands)

Federal:
CUITENE . o v et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $16,298 $21,778  $(43,317)
Deferred . . . ... . (1,849) 15,351 (24,524)
Total federal provision. . ... ...t 14,449 37,129 (67,841)
State:
CUITeNt . . . e 2,846 4,076 (3,033)
Deferred . .. ... e (988) 2,473 (3,151)
Total state provision (benefit) ........... ... ... ... ... ... . .... 1,858 6,549 (6,184)
Total provision (benefit) .. ........ ... ... $16,307 $43,678  $(74,025)

Income tax expense or benefit attributable to income from continuing operations differed from the
amounts computed by applying the U. S. Federal income tax rate of 35% to pretax income from

continuing operations as a result of the following:
Year ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004
(in thousands)

Income tax expense (benefit) at statutory rate . .................. $14,627 $39,419  $(96,308)
Increase (decrease) in tax expense (benefit) due to:

Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance .................... — — 32,860

Permanent differences and other . .......................... 461 1 461

State income taxes, net of federal benefit ... .................. 1,219 4,258 (11,038)
Income tax expense (benefit) . .. ........ .. ... . . . .. $16,307 $43,678  $(74,025)

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences which are the result of provisions of the
tax laws that either require or permit certain items of income or expense to be reported for tax
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purposes in different periods than for financial reporting purposes. In assessing the realizability of
deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all
of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which these temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities,
projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the
level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which
the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that the
Company will not realize the benefits of these deductible differences at December 31, 2004 and has
established a valuation allowance for the full amount of the net deferred tax assets.

The following is a summary of the Company’s deferred income taxes as of December 31, 2003 and
2004:

December 31,
2003 2004

(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Engine maintenance accrual ........................ $ 3576 $ —
Intangible assets . . .. ... ... . 97 —
Air traffic liability . . .. ... ... 445 315
Allowance forbad debts . ... ....................... 4,180 2,175
Deferred aircraftrent . . ........... ... ... ... . L. 797 —
Deferred credits . .. .. ... . 17,165 15,930
Accrued compensation ... .......... .. 2,328 4,019
Accrued aircraft early retirement charge ............... 7,192 25,481
Start up and organizational costs . . .. ........ ... ... ... 752 277
Net operating loss and credit carryforwards . ............ — 32,206
Other . ... ... 7,626 10,275
Total deferred tax assets .. ..............c.uuuu... 44,158 90,678
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization . ..................... (71,118)  (58,446)
Accrued expenses and other ........... .. ... ... . ... (715)  (2,959)
Total deferred tax liabilities . ...................... (71,833)  (61,405)
Net deferred income tax (liabilities) assets before valuation
allowance . . ... (27,675) 29,273
Valuation allowance . . ... ......... . . .. ..., — (29,273)
Net deferred income tax liabilities. . . . ............... ... $(27,675) $ —

No valuation allowance was established in 2003, as the Company believed it was more likely than
not that the deferred tax liabilities would be realized in future years. At December 31, 2004, the
Company has net operating loss carryforwards for Federal income tax purposes of $72.2 million which
are available to offset future Federal taxable income, if any, through 2024. In addition, the Company
has alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of approximately $2.6 million, which are available to
reduce future Federal regular income taxes, if any, over an indefinite period.

11. Commitments and Contingencies
Aircraft

IA’'s commitment to purchase 34 CRIJ aircraft on order is subject to certain conditions which,
unless waived by IA by April 2005, can not be satisfied as a result of United’s rejection in bankruptcy
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of the Company’s United Express agreement. IA does not expect to waive the conditions and therefore
does not expect to take delivery of these ordered aircraft. If IA does not waive the conditions, the
remaining $3.4 million on deposit with Bombardier will be returned to IA in April 2005.

As of March 28, 2005, IA has taken delivery of eight leased Airbus 319 aircraft and expects to take
delivery of four additional leased A319s during April and May 2005. IA also has executed a purchase
agreement with Airbus’ wholly-owned affiliate AVSA S.A.R.L. (“AVSA”) to purchase 16 Airbus A319
aircraft with six scheduled for delivery in 2006 and ten scheduled for delivery in 2007.

As discussed in Note 16, the Company has entered into a series of agreements with GECAS as
owner participant under leveraged leases relating to 24 CRJs, and with the various parties as loan
participant under those leveraged leases, providing for the early termination of the leases. These 24
CRIJs will be returned to GECAS from now through July 2005.

As discussed in Note 16, IA has 33 Fairchild 328Jet aircraft that were previously operated in the
Delta Connection operation. IA has completed the process of assigning the leases on 30 of these
328Jets to Delta per the terms of the Delta Connection agreement and delivered the aircraft to Delta
on March 21, 2005. As part of its restructuring effort, as of the date of delivery of the aircraft to Delta,
the Company has entered into agreements with the lenders in the leveraged leases of these aircraft that
the lenders effectively release the Company and Independence Air from future obligations to them
under the 328Jet leases. While the owner participant in the leveraged leases, a bankrupt entity that is
in default of its obligations to the lenders and the Company, has not committed to a release of the
Company, the lenders, which have an assignment of the owner participant’s interest in the leases and
have a priority of payment superior to that of the owner participant, have agreed that they will not
assert any claims against the Company with respect to events occurring after assumption by Delta. The
lenders have also agreed that, if Independence Air is required to make any payments under the leases
and the lenders receive any portion of such payments, they will return those payments to Independence
Air. In consideration for this arrangement, the Company has issued 1.5 million shares of the
Company’s stock. Independence Air obtained rent deferrals similar to those reached on its CRIJ fleet
for the remaining two leased 328Jets that are not being assigned to Delta in exchange for the issuance
of 130,000 shares of FLYi common stock and is actively marketing for sale one unencumbered 328Jet
owned by Independence Air. The fair value of the 1.6 million shares issued will be recorded as part of
the Company’s restructuring charge in the first quarter of 2005. The Company has taken an early
retirement charge for the future rents due on the two remaining leased 328Jets and recorded an
impairment charge for the one owned 328Jet to reflect estimated current value. The Company is
actively trying to dispose of these three remaining 328Jets either through sale or sublease transactions.

Upon the termination of the United Express agreement, the Company early retired IA's remaining
J-41 turboprop aircraft and recorded a charge for the future rents to be due. As discussed in Note 16,
the Company has negotiated the early lease termination for 21 of the 30 J-41s IA previously operated.
Once the J-41s are returned and accepted by the lessors, the Company will be relieved of any further
obligations on these aircraft. Of the remaining nine J-41s, seven are pledged as security under an
Enhanced Equipment Trust Certificate transaction which the Company continues to abide by, one is
owned with a related mortgage that the Company is actively looking to sell, and one is leased from a
lessor that the Company will continue to negotiate with.

Deferred Compensation Arrangements

The Company has committed to provide certain of its senior executive officers a deferred
compensation plan which utilizes split dollar life insurance policies, and for a certain officer, a
make-whole provision for taxes, post retirement salary based on ending salary, and post retirement
benefits based on benefits similar to those currently provided to the executive while actively employed.
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The Company has estimated the cost of the deferred compensation and tax gross up feature, future
salary and future benefits and is accruing this cost over the remaining required service time of the
executive officer. The Company expensed $1.8 million, $2.5 million and $2.6 million for these benefits
for the year ending December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively. To fund the Company’s obligation
to the deferred compensation plans, the Company has made premium insurance payments on officer
owned split dollar life insurance policies. In exchange, each officer has given the Company a collateral
assignment on the value of their split dollar policy.
Training

IA has entered into agreements with Pan Am International Flight Academy (“PAIFA”) for CRJ
simulator usage at PAIFA’s facility near Washington Dulles. This facility currently houses three CRJ
simulators, and IA believes that these facilities will be adequate to support its training requirements.
The agreements require IA to purchase an annual minimum number of CRJ simulator training hours
at agreed rates through 2010. The Company’s payment obligations for CRJ simulator usage over the
remaining years of the agreements total approximately $7.3 million as of December 31, 2004. TIA has
restructured its agreements with PAIFA during 2005 to reduce its simulator costs for 2005. The total
minimum payment obligations for CRJ simulator usage after the restructuring total $7.1 million.

At December 31, 2004, the Company’s minimum payment obligations under the PAIFA agreements
for the CRIJ simulator is as follows:

(in thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2005 e $1,178
2000 ... e 1,195
2007 e 1,214
2008 . e 1,230
2000 . e 1,249
Thereafter . . . ... .. . e 1,268
Total . . o $7.334

12. Aircraft Early Retirement Charge

The Company has long-term lease commitments for 25 British Aerospace Turboprop J41 (“J417)
aircraft and owns five J41 aircraft. During 2002 and 2003, the Company recorded aircraft early
retirement operating charges and reversals totaling $24.3 million ($14.6 million net of tax) and ($27.7)
million (pre-tax), respectively, for the non-discounted value of future lease payments and other costs
associated with the planned retirement of its J41 aircraft. After retiring three J41s, the Company
delayed the retirement schedule of IA’s remaining J41 turboprop aircraft as a result of uncertainty over
the Company’s contractual relationship with United. As such, in the second quarter 2003, the Company
reversed $34.6 million in pretax early aircraft retirement charges that had been recorded in prior
periods. Under FASB Statement No. 146, which the Company adopted effective January 1, 2003, the
Company now recognizes an early aircraft retirement charge as each of the remaining leased J41
aircraft is retired from its fleet. The Company retired two leased J41s in the fourth quarter of 2003 and
recorded a charge of $6.9 million pretax. The Company recorded aircraft early retirement charges of
$48.5 million (pre-tax) during 2004. The estimated charges relates to the retirement of a total of 21
leased J41s during 2004. The estimated early retirement charge is net of estimated remarketing income
over the remaining terms of the leases based on current market conditions for subleasing transactions
of J41s.
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During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company also retired one owned J41 aircraft. The
Company recognized an impairment loss of approximately $738,000 ($452,000 net of income tax) for
the retired owned aircraft, which is included in depreciation expense for the year ended December 31,
2003. As of December 31, 2004, the book value of its five owned J41s is equal to current estimated fair
market value. The overall debt balance on these aircraft exceeds this estimated fair market value and
the Company is considering its alternatives regarding these aircraft and the associated indebtedness. As
a result, the Company recognized $3.2 million and $4.5 million in additional depreciation charges
related to owned aircraft for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Effective with the termination of the Delta Connection flying in November 2004, the Company
recorded, as part of costs of discontinued operations, an early retirement charge of $7.2 million for the
two 328Jets that can not be assigned to Delta. This amount was offset by the reversal of remaining
deferred manufacturer’s credits for the fleet of 328 aircraft of $11.6 million.

Changes in the aircraft early retirement charge liability for the years ending December 31, 2003
and 2004 are as follows:

2003 2004
(in thousands)

Beginning balance as of January 1, ... ....... . ... ... L i i $ 46,468 $17,979
Estimated charge for aircraft early retirement .. ............... .. ........ 6,932 49,215
Reversal of estimated charge for aircraft early retirement. . ................. (34,5806) —
Estimated charge for aircraft early retirement that relates to discontinued

1075155 21 1013 1 — 7,209
Prepaid lease payments applied to liability. . . ........ ... ... ... ... ... — (4,112
Accretion of INtErest . ... .. ... e — 1,414
Cash PaymMents . . .. ... (835)  (8,003)
Balance as of December 31, . . ... ..ot $ 17,979  $63,702

13. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In April 2004, the Company received formal notification from Delta Air Lines that it was ending
its fee-per-block hour agreement with the Company by invoking its right under the Delta Connection
Agreement to terminate without cause upon 180 days notice. The Company concluded its Delta
Connection operations on November 1, 2004, and its Fairchild Dornier 328 regional jet aircraft
(“328JET”) are no longer in service. The notification of cancellation of the contract triggered the
assessment of the owned assets utilized in the Delta program under the requirements of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“FAS 144”) as of April 2004. As a result, the Company has
recognized impairment charges of $13.8 million during 2004 recorded as discontinued operations for
the owned 328JET and related spare engines and parts to record them at estimated fair market value
based on market value quotes, offers from third parties, and management’s best estimate of the
ultimate disposition of the parts. The Company intends to continue its efforts to remarket these
328JET assets.

Due to the current losses in 2004 and anticipated losses for 2005, the Company performed an
impairment analysis of its remaining long lived assets on a total entity basis under the requirements of
FAS 144. Based on the results of the analysis, the Company does not believe it has an impairment of
its remaining long lived assets at this time.

14. Discontinued Operations

In October and November 2004, the Company ceased operating the 328Jet fleet as a Delta
Connection carrier and placed the 328Jets into temporary storage pending the lease assignment of 30
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328Jets to Delta Air Lines. The Company does not plan to operate the 328Jet or provide service on
any of the routes which it flew as a Delta Connection carrier as part of Independence Air and expects
the revenue and expenses that had been associated with the Delta Connection operation to be
non-recurring in future operations. As a result, the Company is now accounting for the direct operating
revenues and expenses of the Delta Connection code share agreement as discontinued operations.
Since Independence Air continues to operate the CRJs that were utilized in the United Express
operation and also is operating many of the same routes previously flown as United Express, the
termination of the United Express code share agreement is not considered a discontinued operation. A
summary of the revenues and expenses that are attributable to the discontinued Delta Connection
operation for 2002, 2003 and 2004, as well as the financial position as of December 31, 2003 and 2004
are as follows:

Results of Discontinued Operations (in thousands): 2002 2003 2004

Operating TeVENUES . . . v v v v v ettt et ettt $136,129 $145,935 $127,275
Operating EXPenSEeS - « . v v v v v et e e e e e e 113,495 123,311 118,309
Operating iNCOME . . . . ot vttt e e e e e et e et e e 22,634 22,624 8,966
Income tax proviSion . . .. ... ... vt 8,832 8,774 —
NEt INCOME . . . vt ot et e e e e e e e $ 13,802 §$ 13,850 $ 8,966
Financial Position of Discontinued Operations (in thousands): 2003 2004

Expendable parts inventory . . ... .. ... ... $ 6101 $§ —
Aircraft and aircraft parts . .. ... ... e 33,555 —
Assets held forsale . . ... ... . e — 11,200
Current liabilities . . . ... ... (516) (720)
Current aircraft retirement liabilities . ........... .. ... ... ... ... ..... —  (1,517)
Long-term aircraft retirement liabilities .. ............... .. ..... .. .. .... —  (5,092)
Net assets of discontinued Operations . . . . .. ... ..ttt e, $39,140 $ 3,271

15. Air Transportation Safety and System Stabilization Act/Aviation and Transportation Security Act

On September 22, 2001, President Bush signed into law the Air Transportation Safety and System
Stabilization Act (“the Stabilization Act”). The Stabilization Act provided cash grants to commercial air
carriers as compensation for: (1) direct losses incurred beginning with the terrorist attacks on
September 11, 2001 as a result of any FAA mandated ground stop order issued by the Secretary of
Transportation (and for any subsequent order which continues or renews such a stoppage), and
(2) incremental losses incurred during the period beginning September 11, 2001 and ending
December 31, 2001 as a direct result of such attacks. IA was entitled to receive cash grants under these
provisions. IA has complied with the requirements of the Stabilization Act and submitted its final
claim. TA and the Airline Stabilization Review Team have reached agreement on $10.7 million as the
total amount IA was eligible to receive as direct compensation under the Stabilization Act. IA had
previously recorded and received payment of $9.7 million. As such, $0.9 million of additional
government compensation was recorded in 2002. All amounts received as government compensation are
subject to additional audit by the federal government for five years.

On November 19, 2001 the President signed into law the Aviation and Transportation Security Act
(the “Security Act”). The Security Act requires heightened passenger, baggage and cargo security
measures to be adopted as well as enhanced airport security procedures. The Security Act created the
Transportation Security Administration (“TSA”) that has taken over the responsibility for conducting
the screening of passengers and their baggage at the nation’s airports as of February 17, 2002. The
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activities of the TSA are funded in part by the application of a $2.50 per passenger enplanement
security fee (subject to a maximum of $5.00 per one way trip) and payment by all passenger carriers of
a sum not exceeding each carrier’s passenger and baggage screening cost incurred in calendar year
2000.  In the Administration’s fiscal year 2006 budget it has proposed to authorize TSA to collect an
additional $3.00 per passenger segment security fee, or $5.50 per segment and a maximum of $8.00 per
one-way trip. If Congress accepts the Administration’s proposal, IA will have to collect these additional
fees from its passengers, thereby making the cost of air transportation more expensive which, in turn,
may dampen demand for the services of IA. In addition, competitive pressures in the industry may
preclude IA from being able to pass on the added fee such that the fee may further diminish IA’s air
transportation revenues.

The Security Act imposes new and increased requirements for air carrier employee background
checks and additional security training of flight and cabin crew personnel. These additional and new
requirements have increased the security related costs of the Company. The Security Act also mandates
and the FAA has adopted new rules requiring the strengthening of cockpit doors, some of the costs of
which have been reimbursed by the FAA. IA has completed all mandatory cockpit door modifications
and has been reimbursed $2.7 million under the Security Act, although the cost of such modifications
exceeded this amount. At times when the aviation security threat level is elevated by the Department of
Homeland Security, IA may experience security-related disruptions, including reduced passenger
demand, resulting from enhanced passenger screening at airports and possible flight cancellations. IA
believes that its exposure to such disruptions is no greater than that faced by other providers of
regional air carrier services.

Although the TSA has taken over the former responsibilities of the air carriers for the screening of
all passengers and baggage, the TSA, as with the FAA before it, requires air carriers to adopt and
enforce procedures designed to safeguard property, and to protect airport and aircraft against terrorist
acts. The TSA, from time to time, may impose additional security requirements on air carriers and
airport authorities based on specific threats or world conditions or as otherwise required. The TSA has
issued a number of security directives and altered procedures upon changes in the Office of Homeland
Security announcements of heightened threat levels, and 1A has adjusted its security procedures on
numerous occasions in response to these directives. IA incurred substantial expense in complying with
current security requirements and it cannot predict what additional security requirements may be
imposed in the future or the cost of complying with such requirements.

On April 16, 2003, Congress passed the Emergency Wartime Supplemental Appropriations Act
(“the Act”). The Act makes available approximately $2.3 billion to United States flag air carriers, a
portion of which is based on each carrier’s proportional share of the amounts remitted in passenger
and carrier security fees by eligible air carriers to the TSA under the Stabilization Act which was earlier
enacted by Congress. In the second quarter of 2003, the Company received and recorded $1.5 million
in compensation under the Act. In addition to refunding previously remitted security fees, the Act
waived the collection and payment by carriers of any passenger or carrier security fees imposed by the
Stabilization Act for the period June 1, 2003 through September 30. 2003. The Act also extended the
government’s war risk insurance program which otherwise would have expired on December 31, 2002.
The FAA provides war risk insurance to carriers pursuant to the Act through short-term policies, which
it extends from time to time. The Company anticipates renewing the insurance through the FAA as
long as it is available. No government compensation was recorded in 2004 and the Company does not
anticipate receiving any further government compensation in the future.
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16. Subsequent Events

The Company determined not to make the February 15, 2005 interest payment on its 6%
Convertible Notes due 2034 because it was continuing to engage in negotiations with its aircraft lenders
and lessors to restructure its obligations. Under the Note indenture, an “Event of Default” did not
occur provided that the defaulted interest is paid within 30 calendar days. The Company paid the
interest owing on February 18, 2005 to the trustee and the noteholders received their interest payment
before the expiration of the 30-day grace period.

On February 18, 2005, the Company and Independence Air entered into a series of agreements
with GECAS as owner participant under leveraged leases relating to 24 CRJs, and with the various
parties as loan participant under those leveraged leases, providing for the early termination of the
leases. These agreements provide for the amendment of the leases to shorten the term of the leases
such that they expire between February 2005 and July 2005. The agreements also reduce the rent
between January 1, 2005 and the date of the lease expiration to the amount of accrued interest on the
underlying leveraged lease loans. Under the agreements, Independence Air will be required to meet
certain amended return conditions and to deliver the aircraft to the lessors by agreed dates, but upon
satisfaction of these obligations will have no further rent obligations with respect to periods after the
amended lease expiration dates, for these aircraft. The termination of the 24 leases will result in a
non-cash accounting charge currently estimated at $7.5 million to be taken as the leases are terminated
to reflect the write-off of deferred credits that resulted from training, spare parts, and other services
previously provided by the manufacturer to the Company net of accruals for prepaid rents for these
aircraft. The return of the 24 CRIJs will save approximately $30 million in rent on an annual basis.

The Company and Independence Air also entered into an agreement with GECAS on February 18,
2005 that establishes certain financial milestones applicable to three-month periods ending in June,
September, October, November and December 2005 and January, February and March 2006 (Milestone
Months). The financial milestones consist of tests of (1) the Company’s unrestricted cash balance and
(2) its earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, and aircraft rents as a percentage of
passenger revenues. Should the Company fail to satisfy the tests for a Milestone Month, or fail to
provide the information necessary for the measurement of the milestones, GECAS will have the option,
exercisable within ninety days following the delivery of the financial statements for such Milestone
Month, to terminate the lease for one additional CRIJ aircraft for each Milestone Month, up to a
maximum of eight CRJ aircraft. The terms of the termination of the leases would be similar to those
for the 24 aircraft to be early terminated as described above.

On February 18, 2005, Independence Air entered into a term loan agreement with GECAS for
$16.2 million and borrowed the full amount available under the term loan. The loan bears interest at a
spread over three month Libor based on an agreed market rate, and is payable in 60 monthly
installments ranging from approximately 1.4% of principal to approximately 2.0% of principal, with a
final maturity on February 18, 2010. Independence Air is not permitted to voluntarily prepay the loan
for three years and may do so thereafter only if it provides a letter of credit or other acceptable
security in an amount equal to the payments that are being deferred under leases of 13 CRIJ aircraft.
The loan is secured by Independence Air’s 11 CRJ spare engines and all of its CRJ spare parts. The
loan agreement also provides that the sum of the outstanding amounts of the loan and lease deferral
amounts may not exceed specified percentages of the appraised values of the collateral. If these
percentages are exceeded, Independence Air is required to make a partial prepayment on the loans or
provide additional collateral to restore compliance. Subject to these requirements, Independence Air is
permitted to dispose of collateral to the extent they become surplus to normal operations.
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Independence Air has amended, as of February 18, 2005, the operative lease or loan agreements
for a total of 52 CRIJ aircraft that are financed through leveraged leases or through mortgage loan
financings, to revise the rental and loan payment structure from semi-annual payments to monthly
payments and to defer approximately $70 million of the rent or loan payments that would have been
due between January 2005 and February 2007. Depending on which operative lease or loan agreement,
interest at a rate of Libor plus 250 basis points or a fixed rate of 7.01% will be charged on the
outstanding deferral balance. The interest portion of the payments will be paid monthly retroactive to
January 1, 2005, and the principal portion of the deferred rent and loan payments will be repaid on a
monthly basis beginning in May 2006 through the end of the lease or loan term.

In exchange for concessions from CRJ aircraft financing parties, the Company agreed to issue a
total of 2,035,000 additional shares of FLYi common stock, $0.02 par on February 18, 2005. The shares
of common stock are to be issued to certain aircraft lessors and lenders as partial consideration for
their agreeing to participate in the restructuring of the terms of their respective aircraft loans or leases
through the transactions described above. The number of shares of common stock issued to each lessor
or lender was determined through arms-length negotiations, and no separate valuation was assigned to
the issuance of the shares. None of the shares of common stock were issued in exchange for cash. The
shares were issued in privately negotiated transactions in reliance upon the exemption from registration
provided under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.

During 2005, Independence Air has entered into a series of agreements for the consensual early
termination of leases for 21 of the 30 Jetstream 41 (“J41”) turboprop aircraft that were previously
retired from the Company’s operating fleet and are not currently used in Independence Air operations.
The agreements are with the lessors of those aircraft, with the lenders in the leveraged leases covering
three of the aircraft, and with the manufacturer that provided certain residual support in connection
with the leases.

BAE Systems (Operations), Limited and its affiliates (“BAE”), the manufacturer of the J41
aircraft, had provided certain residual value support to the lessors of 10 of the J41 aircraft that are
subject to early termination agreements. The Company and Independence Air entered into an
agreement with BAE on February 18, 2005 to resolve certain issues relating to BAE and to the lessors
as a result of the early termination of the leases, and to resolve any claims which BAE may have
against the Company or Independence Air resulting from the termination of those leases. BAE agreed
to accept the applicability of its residual value support agreements to the lessors upon the early
termination of the leases, and agreed that it would not pursue further claims against the Company or
Independence Air relating to those agreements. The Company and Independence Air agreed to provide
consideration to BAE in exchange, including a cash payment of $2.0 million and the issuance of a
promissory note of $3.5 million bearing interest at 6.75% payable monthly with principal repayments
beginning in June 2006 and ending in December 2007. The Company and Independence Air also
agreed to issue a non-interest bearing convertible note in the amount of $5.0 million, convertible into
1 million shares of the Company’s stock, and agreed to turn over all of its remaining J41 spare engines,
parts and tooling to BAE during 2005. The Company and Independence Air also agreed that should
BAE elect to settle any of its residual value agreements by purchasing the aircraft from the lessors, The
Company and Independence Air would relinquish their claim to any refund of the security deposits for
any purchased aircraft. The amount of the deposits is further described below.

The agreements with the lessors of the J41 aircraft provide for the early termination of the leases,
the return of the aircraft to the lessors, and the elimination of future rent obligations. These
agreements were entered into as of January 14, 2005 for four aircraft and as of February 18, 2005 for
an additional 17 aircraft. These lease terminations are expected to reduce Independence Air’s net
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payments during the period from January 2005 through February 2007 by approximately $13.5 million.
Independence Air will be responsible for certain return obligations with respect to these aircraft, but
upon satisfaction of these obligations will have no further rent obligations with respect to these aircraft.
Independence Air posted, at the time it initially entered into the original leases, a total of $3.7 million
in security deposits applicable to the J41 aircraft that are subject to these agreements. Independence
Air has permanently relinquished its claim to $2.2 million of these deposits and conditionally
relinquished its claim to the remainder of these deposits. Independence Air is not able to currently
estimate how much, if any, of the remaining $1.5 million of deposits may be returned to it. The
Company previously recorded an early retirement charge for the J41 aircraft as they were removed
from operation. The early retirement charges previously recorded for these aircraft will be reconciled as
the actual costs of the lease terminations are recorded in 2005.

The Company and Independence Air agreed to provide consideration to the counterparties for
entering into these agreements including cash payments totaling approximately $3.5 million and the
issuance of interest bearing promissory notes totaling approximately $2.6 million bearing interest at
6.75% payable monthly and with equal payments of principal and interest monthly from February 2007
through June 2010. The Company also agreed to issue non-interest bearing convertible notes in the
total amount of $20,952,113, convertible into 3,619,127 shares of the Company’s stock. Independence
Air also agreed to various terms with respect to the redelivery of the aircraft and in certain cases, to
the condition of the aircraft upon return.

Independence Air had previously disclosed that, as a result of the termination of its Delta
Connection agreement without cause, it had the right to assign to Delta Air Lines, Inc. (“Delta”) leases
for 30 Fairchild Dornier 328 regional jet (328Jet) aircraft formerly used in Delta Connection operations
and to require Delta to assume the leases. In its prior disclosure, the Company indicated that it would
continue to be liable for future obligations under the leases in the event that Delta at any time did not
fulfill those obligations. On March 21, 2005, Independence Air completed the delivery of these aircraft
to Delta in connection with the assignment and assumption of the lease obligations. As part of its
restructuring effort, as of the date of delivery of the aircraft to Delta, the Company has entered into
agreements with the lenders in the leveraged leases of these aircraft that the lenders effectively release
the Company and Independence Air from future obligations to them under the 328Jet leases. While
the owner participant in the leveraged leases, a bankrupt entity that is in default of its obligations to
the lenders and the Company, has not committed to a release of the Company, the lenders, which have
an assignment of the owner participant’s interest in the leases and have a priority of payment superior
to that of the owner participant, have agreed that they will not assert any claims against the Company
with respect to events occurring after assumption by Delta. The lenders have also agreed that, if
Independence Air is required to make any payments under the leases and the lenders receive any
portion of such payments, they will return those payments to Independence Air. In consideration for
this arrangement, the Company has issued 1.5 million shares of the Company’s stock. Independence Air
obtained rent deferrals similar to those reached on its CRIJ fleet for the remaining two leased 328Jets
that are not being assigned to Delta in exchange for the issuance of 130,000 shares of FLYi common
stock and is actively marketing for sale one unencumbered 328Jet owned by Independence Air. The
fair value of the 1.6 million shares issued will be recorded as part of the Company’s restructuring
charge in the first quarter of 2005.

Independence Air’s collective bargaining agreement with the AFA-CWA, which was ratified in
October 1998, became amendable in October 2002. Independence Air and AFA-CWA reached a
Tentative Agreement on February 10, 2005 and the agreement was ratified on March 21%, 2005. The
new agreement will be amendable July 31, 2007. The agreement is designed to address quality of life
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issues that were of concern to the work group and to update work rules of interest to the parties, and
provides for the first pay rate increase to be effective in August 2006.

17. Litigation

Independence Air is involved in legal proceedings related to the insolvency of Fairchild Dornier
GmbH (“Fairchild”), which was initiated in 2002. Independence Air holds a bond in the amount of
$1.2 million from an independent insurance company, which secures deposits placed with Fairchild for
undelivered aircraft, and has made a demand for payment under this bond. Fairchild’s insolvency
trustee has made a claim for the collateral posted with the insurance company, and the insurance
company has withheld payment of the bond. The matter is presently with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court
for the Western District of Texas. The Company has fully reserved for the potential exposure related to
this matter.

Independence Air was named in several lawsuits arising from the terrorist activities of
September 11, 2001. These actions were commenced by or on behalf of individuals who were injured or
killed as a result of the hijackings of the four flights. These actions seek compensatory and punitive
damages. However, pursuant to the Air Transportation Safety and System Stabilization Act,
Independence Air’s liability for these claims is limited to Independence Air’s liability insurance. In each
case, the plaintiffs have named the airlines operating at the airports from which the flights originated,
including Independence Air, under the theory that all of the airlines are jointly responsible for the
alleged security breaches by the airport security contractor. The court recently denied the motion of
American Airlines and other defendants, including Independence Air, seeking dismissal of all ground
victim claims on the basis that the airline defendants do not owe a duty as a matter of law to
individuals injured or killed on the ground. The litigation is proceeding; however, no discovery has been
presented to the non-carrier airlines. The Company anticipates that it will raise other defenses
including its assertion that it is not responsible for the incidents as it had no control over the security
checkpoints through which the hijackers allegedly gained access to the hijacked aircraft. As of the end
of the year, only 26 pending claims remain, down from the peak of 101 claims. While the ultimate
number of claims is likely to decrease, there is a remote possibility that they could rise as a result of
potential environmental claims, which are not subject to the standard statute of limitation.

From time to time, claims are made against Independence Air with respect to activities arising
from its airline operations. Typically these involve injuries or damages incurred by passengers and are
considered routine to the industry. On April 1, 2002, one of Independence Air’s insurers on its
comprehensive aviation liability policy, Legion Insurance Company, a subsidiary of Mutual Risk
Management Ltd. (“Legion”), was placed into rehabilitation by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, its
state of incorporation. The rehabilitation proceeding is styled Koken v. Legion Insurance Company,
No. 183 M.D. 2002 (Pa. Commw. Ct.), and is before Judge Leavitt. Currently, Legion can pay no
claims, expenses or other items of debt without approval from Pennsylvania, resulting in Independence
Air directly carrying the corresponding exposure related to Legion’s contribution percentage for
payouts of claims and expenses that Legion represented on Independence Air’s all-risk hull and liability
insurance for the 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002 policy years. Those contribution percentages are 15% for
claims arising from incidents occurring in 1999, 19% for 2000, 15% for 2001, and 8.5% for the first
quarter of 2002. Legion ceased to be an insurer for Independence Air as of April 1, 2002, and there is,
therefore, no exposure with respect to Legion for claims arising after that date.

The insurance held by Legion on Independence Air’s policy was fully covered by reinsurance,
which means that other carriers are contractually obligated to cover all claims that are direct
obligations of Legion. The Company believes that a “cut-through” provision exists that causes funds to
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pass directly from the reinsurers to Independence Air in situations such as the rehabilitation or
insolvency of a primary insurer. Other companies, including American Airlines, Inc. (“American”), have
similar policy provisions. American intervened in the Legion rehabilitation and moved to have its
cut-through provisions enforced. On June 26, 2003, the Pennsylvania Commonwealth Court entered an
order enforcing American’s cut-through provisions. The Court ruled that the reinsurance contract
proceeds at issue were not general assets of the Legion estate. On July 25, 2003, the Court entered an
Order of Liquidation that incorporated the June 26, 2003 ruling. The Order provides a means whereby
a company can intervene to assert rights to its own reinsurance. The Insurance Commissioner and
others appealed. The appeal remains outstanding. Independence Air intervened in the matter and, after
consideration, the Court held on April 5, 2004, that Independence Air’s reinsurance policies contain an
unambiguous cut-through provision that provides Independence Air with direct access to reinsurance
proceeds in the event of Legion’s insolvency or rehabilitation. That ruling is now on appeal. If the
appeals related to Independence Air’s and American’s reinsurance are upheld, the Legion shortfall
should be fully covered by reinsurance. However, if the rulings are overturned on appeal, Independence
Air will likely be underinsured for these claims at the percentages set forth above. This underinsurance
would include September 11 related lawsuits and any other similar lawsuits that are brought against
Independence Air. Independence Air has accrued what it believes are adequate reserves for its likely
exposure on claims known to date. No reserves have been accrued for the September 11 related claims.

During the month of October 2004, Independence Air voluntarily reported to the FAA that certain
maintenance inspection tasks had not been performed in a timely manner with respect to certain CRJ
aircraft. In all but one case, these inspection tasks were accomplished immediately upon Independence
Air’s finding of each issue. The reports of these Company actions prompted the FAA to begin a review
of certain aspects of Independence Air’s maintenance tracking procedures, which review is continuing.
The outcome of this review cannot be predicted at this time, but could result in additional fines or
actions by the FAA.

Independence Air also is the subject of ongoing FAA and TSA civil penalty cases relating to
alleged violations of FAA and TSA enforced rules and regulations. Independence Air believes that the
number of such cases and the amount of the civil penalties sought by the FAA and TSA is consistent
with the experience of other airlines with operations of the size and scope of those provided by
Independence Air, and that the disposition of these cases is not likely to have a material effect on the
Company’s financial position or the results of its operations.

FLYi, Inc. is a party to a legal proceeding in the Department of Labor involving a former
employee of Atlantic Coast Airlines, Stacey M. Platone, who alleges that she was terminated from
employment in violation of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for reporting what she believed to be an improper
arrangement between Atlantic Coast Airlines and one of its unions. The complainant’s allegations were
investigated by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), the Labor Department
agency with responsibility for investigating allegations of Sarbanes-Oxley employment violations; in
July 2003 OSHA found the complaint to be without merit. The complainant filed objections to the
decision, and on April 30, 2004, a Labor Department administrative law judge ruled that the
complainant had been improperly terminated from employment, although the judge also found that
legitimate grounds had existed to terminate the complainant’s employment. In the decision, the judge
has ordered that the complainant be paid back pay and benefits, and the costs and expenses of
litigation, including attorney’s fees. FLY1i, Inc. believes that this case was wrongly decided and is
vigorously pursuing the appeal. The Labor Department’s Administrative Review Board granted the
Company’s petition for review of the judge’s decision on July 30, 2004. The parties have submitted
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briefs to the Board and are awaiting its decision. The Company intends to vigorously pursue the
appeal.

The Company and the Air Line Pilots Association (“ALPA”) have not been able to agree over the
interpretation of the collective bargaining agreement with respect to the cancellation in March 2003 of
certain pilot vacancies. Under the Railway Labor Act, the parties have submitted the issue of the
interpretation of the labor agreement to arbitration. If ALPA’s position is upheld, the arbitrator will
determine whether any amounts are owed by the Company.

One party participating as a lender in the leveraged lease of a single CRIJ aircraft declined to
participate in negotiations to restructure the transaction, and chose to exercise its available remedies
following the Company’s failure to pay the aircraft’s lease rents when due. On January 27, 2005, the
Company was served with a lawsuit in the Superior Court of the State of New York seeking, among
other things, termination of the lease, repossession of the aircraft and damages resulting from the early
termination. Because of the obligation to mitigate damages with respect to the aircraft, the Company
cannot assess the amount, if any, that will ultimately be recovered in damages.

In addition to those matters discussed above, the Company is a party to routine litigation all of
which is viewed to be incidental to its business, and none of which the Company believes are likely to
have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or the results of its operations.

18. Financial Instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, “Disclosure of Fair Value of Financial
Instruments” requires the disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments. Some of the information
used to determine fair value is subjective and judgmental in nature; therefore, fair value estimates,
especially for less marketable securities, may vary. The amounts actually realized or paid upon
settlement or maturity could be significantly different.

Unless quoted market price indicates otherwise, the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
short-term investments, accounts receivable and accounts payable generally approximate market
because of the short maturity of these instruments. The Company has estimated the fair value of long
term debt based on quoted market prices, when available, or by discounted expected future cash flows
using current rates offered to the Company for debt with similar maturities.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments, none of which are held for
trading purposes, are summarized as follows (brackets denote liability):

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2004
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents . .................... $ 95879 $ 95879 $ 5219 $ 5219
Short-term investments . ...................... 202,055 202,055 163,984 163,984
Accounts receivable . . ... ... .. ... L L. 9,071 9,071 54,395 54,395
Accounts payable . . . ... ... L (24,842) (24,842) (23,273) (23,273)
Long-termdebt . ........ ... ... ... .. ... . ... (133,971)  (143,373)  (230,230) (159,472)
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19. Cash Flow Information

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Year ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004

(in thousands)

Cash paid during the period for:

—Interest . ... e $ 4382 $ 5,657 $11,192

— INCOME tAXES . . . . vttt e e 24,353 26,158 5,299
Non-cash transactions for:

— Purchase of aircraft . ......... ...t $ — $83,258 $ 9,000

The following non-cash investing and financial activities took place in 2002, 2003 and 2004:

In 2002, the Company capitalized $1.4 million (net of a reversal $1.1 million of capitalized interest
in connection with the cancellation of future deliveries of 328Jets due to the Fairchild Dornier
insolvency) in interest related to $44.8 million on deposit with aircraft manufacturers.

In 2003, the Company capitalized $0.1 million (net of a reversal $0.8 million of capitalized interest
related to CRJ aircraft that were scheduled to be delivered in 2004 and 2005) in interest related to
$38.8 million on deposit with Bombardier.

In 2003, the Company obtained $30.7 million in seller financing for two aircraft and agreed with
the seller to apply the present value of a portion of future manufacturer’s credits and payments toward
the purchase of goods and services, including aircraft on order. This resulted in $43.5 million of
deferred credits that are being amortized over the life of the aircraft associated with the original
manufacturer’s credit.

During 2004, the Company used manufacturer financing to satisfy a requirement to pay $9 million
in progress payment deposits on future deliveries of A319 aircraft and capitalized $1.6 million in
interest related to the deposits being held by Airbus.

In 2004, the Company used approximately $35.4 million of the purchase deposits held by
Bombardier to repay the outstanding debt balance on two CRJs and to pay outstanding trade payables
owed to Bombardier and its affiliates.

20. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)”). SFAS 123(R)
requires all share based payments to employees, including employee stock option grants, to be
recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values. SFAS 123(R) is effective for public
companies beginning with the first interim period that begins after June 15, 2005. Under SFAS 123(R),
the Company will begin recognizing compensation expense for, the portion of outstanding stock option
awards for which the requisite vesting period has not yet been met, and any new awards over the
requisite vesting period, based on the fair value of these awards at date of grant. The Company is still
evaluating the impact of SFAS 123(R) on its financial statements.
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21. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2004 2004 2004 2004
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Operating revenues . . ... ...........o.ou... $176,950  $154,351 $ 74,656 $ 94,133
Operating income (10SS) . ... ... vvvvnon. .. 5,138 (41,575)M  (120,694)D  (108,162)M
Income (loss) from continuing operations® . . . . 476 (27,624)D  (94,883)1D) (79,108)™
Discontinued operations® .. .............. 3,148 548 12,209 (6,939)
Net income (10SS) ... ..., $ 3,624  $(27,076) $ (82,674) $ (86,047)
Income (loss) per share from continuing

operations

Basic........ ... $ 001 $ (0.61) $ (2.09 $ (175

Diluted ............ . ... . ... ... $ 001 $ (0.61) $ (2.09 $ (175
Income per share from discontinued operations

Basic........ ... $ 007 $ 0.01 $ 027 $ (0.15)

Diluted ....... ... .. .. . $ 007 § o001 $ 027 $ (0.15)
Net income (loss) per share

Basic . ... $ 008 $ (0.60) $ (1.82) $  (1.90)

Diluted ....... ... .. .. . $ 008 $ (0.60) $ (1.82) $  (1.90)
Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic .. ... 45,334 45,334 45,340 45,340

Diluted ........ ... . 45,417 45,334 45,340 45,340

Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2003 2003 2003 2003

Operating revenues . ... .........o.o.ouunons $166,579  $191,213 $ 185,090 $ 187,594
Operating income (10SS) . . . ... .. (455) 71,132@) 31,031 13,571@
Income (loss) from continuing operations® . . . . (640) 42,0170 17,449 10,123®
Discontinued operations® .. .............. 2,636 3,718 3,883 3,613
Net iNCOME . . v oottt e e e $ 1,996 §$ 45,735 $ 21,332 $ 13,736
Income (loss) per share from continuing

operations

Basic ....... ... .. $ (001) $ 093 $ 038 $ 022

Diluted ........ ... . ... . . ... $ (001) $ 093 $ 038 $ 022
Income per share from discontinued operations

Basic........ ... $ 005 § 0.08 $ 0.09 $ 008

Diluted ............ . ... . ... ... $ 005 § 0.08 $ 0.09 $ 008
Net income per share:

Basic........ ... $ 004 $ 101 $ 047 $ 030

Diluted ............ . ... . ... ... $ 004 $ 101 $ 047 $ 030
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic ....... ... 45,225 45,247 45,333 45,333

Diluted ....... ... . .. 45,328 45,344 45,425 45,648

(1) The Company recorded aircraft early retirement and impairment charges in the first, second, third
and fourth quarters of 2004 of $6.8 million, $21.9 million, $19.9 million and $1.6 million,
respectively.
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(2) In the second and fourth quarters of 2003, the Company recorded aircraft early retirement
charges. The amount of the charges were $(34.6) million (pre-tax) credit in the second quarter to
reverse amounts recorded in the years ended 2001 and 2002 and $6.9 million (pre-tax) in the
fourth quarter.

(3) Includes government compensation of $1.5 million in the second quarter of 2003.

(4) The cancellation of the Delta Connection agreement has been evaluated by the Company to
qualify as a discontinued operation. As such, the operating revenues and expenses, including early
retirement and impairment charges, attributable directly to the Delta Connection operation have
been reclassified from operating results to discontinued operations, net of applicable income taxes,
for all periods presented.

Note: The sum of the four quarters may not equal the totals for the year due to rounding of quarterly
results.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None to report.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining “disclosure controls
and procedures,” as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e). Management necessarily applied its
judgment in assessing the costs and benefits of such controls and procedures that, by their nature, can
provide only reasonable assurance regarding management’s control objectives. Management does not
expect that its disclosure controls and procedures will prevent all errors and fraud. A control system,
irrespective of how well it is designed and operated, can only provide reasonable assurance, and cannot
guarantee, that it will succeed in its stated objectives.

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, has carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness as of December 31,
2004 of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon the
foregoing evaluation, the principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of
the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the
Company’s Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified by the SEC, and that material information relating to the Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries is made known to management, including the principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, particularly during the period when the Company’s periodic reports are being
prepared.

MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting, as that term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). The
Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States of America.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting at December 31,
2004, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 and SEC regulations.
Management’s assessment is based on criteria established in the Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based
on this assessment, management concluded that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004.

KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, who audited and reported on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company included in this Annual Report, has issued an
attestation report on internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, and
management’s assessment of internal control over financial reporting. This KPMG attestation report
follows.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
FLYi, Inc:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that FLYi, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company)
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO. Also, in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of FLYi, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004, and our report dated March 25, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements and included an explanatory paragraph concerning matters that raise
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

KPMG LLP

McLean, VA
April 29, 2005

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

97






BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Kerry Skeen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, FLYi, Inc.

C. Edward Acker
Chairman, The Acker Group; airline-related
transaction advisor & principal

Bob Buchanan

President, Buchanan Partners, LLC;

real estate development, construction and
management

Susan Coughlin
President & Chief Executive Officer,
Aviation Safety Alliance

C. Maury Devine
Fellow, Harvard University Belfer Center
for Science & International Affairs

Dan McGinnis
Retired telecommunications executive

James Miller Il
Chairman, The CapAnalysis Group of Howrey, L.L.P;
economic, financial & regulatory consulting

Tom Moore
President and Chief Operating Officer,
FLYi, Inc.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Kerry Skeen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Tom Moore
President and Chief Operating Officer

Richard Surratt
Executive VP, Finance, Treasurer & Chief Financial
Officer

Bill Brown
Senior VP, Maintenance & Operations

Eric Nordling
Senior VP, Marketing

Rick Kennedy
VP, General Counsel & Secretary

David Asai
VP, Controller & Assistant Secretary

Cathy Bradley
VP, Inflight Services

Jerry Caler
VB Customer Service

John Cross
VP, Purchasing & Logistics

Lillian Dukes
VP, Maintenance

Bill Lange
VP, Safety, Compliance & Security

Charles “Duffy” Mees
VP Information Systems

Angie Shermer
VP, Employee Services

Celia Stokes
VP, Marketing

Steven Westberg
VP, Finance

Denise Womble
VP, Sales & Reservations

Mark Zweidinger
VP, Flight Operations

EXECUTIVE OFFICES
Independence Air
45200 Business Court
Dulles, VA 20166
(703) 650-6000

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s Annual Report is most easily accessed
on our website. However, a hard copy of Form 10-K
may be obtained by any shareholder without charge
upon request to:

Independence Air Investor Relations

45200 Business Court

Dulles, Virginia 20166

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT

Continental Stock Transfer and Trust Company
17 Battery Place

New York, NY 10004

(212) 509-4000

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
KPMG LLP

1660 International Drive
McLean, VA 22102

STOCK INFORMATION
The Company’s common stock is traded on the
Nasdaq National Market under the symbol FLYI.

INTERNET
The internet address for Independence Air is:
www.FLYi.com



63883_CVR 4/5/05 7:12 AM Page 4

independence air

45200 Business Court, Dulles, VA 20166






